## SUBMITTAL TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA



ITEM 3.16 (ID # 5095)

#### **MEETING DATE:**

FROM: PUBLIC SOCIAL SERVICES:

Tuesday, September 26, 2017

SUBJECT: PUBLIC SOCIAL SERVICES: Approve Agreements #CS-03725 with Perris Valley Recovery Program, Inc., #CS-03726 with Olive Branch Counseling Center, Inc., and #CS-03727 with Cox Romain Psychological Services, LLC for Domestic Violence Services, for five years, via the Competitive Bidding Process. [Districts: All]; [\$732,544 total cost, not to exceed \$154,220 annually-Federal 39.71%; State 1.82%; County .14%; Realignment 57.59%; Other .74%]

#### **RECOMMENDED MOTION:** That the Board of Supervisors:

Juda Tabay

- Approve and authorize the Chairman to execute the following professional service agreements for five years:
  - Perris Valley Recovery Program, Inc., in an amount not to exceed \$75,470 annually;
  - Olive Branch Counseling Center, Inc., in an amount not to exceed \$56,050 annually; and,
  - Cox Romain Psychological Services, LLC, in an amount not to exceed \$22,700 annually.
- 2. Authorize the Purchasing Agent, in accordance with Ordinance No. 459, based on availability of funding and as approved by County Counsel, to: sign amendments that do not change the substantive terms of the agreement and sign amendments to the compensation provisions that do not exceed 10% annually.

**ACTION: Policy** 

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

On motion of Supervisor Jeffries, seconded by Supervisor Tavaglione and duly carried by unanimous vote, IT WAS ORDERED that the above matter is approved as recommended.

Ayes:

Jeffries, Tavaglione, Washington, Perez and Ashley

Nays:

None

Absent:

None

Date:

September 26, 2017

XC:

DPSS, Purchasing

3.16

Kecia Harper-Ihem

#### SUBMITTAL TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

FINANCIAL DATA	Curre	ent Fiscal Year:	Next	Fiscal Year:	Total Cost:	Ongoir	ig Cost
COST	\$	115,664	\$	154,220	\$ 732,544	\$	0
NET COUNTY COST	\$	1,619	\$	2159	\$ 10,255	\$	0
	•				 Budget Adju	ıstment:	No
					For Fiscal Y	Fiscal Year: 17/18 - 21/22	

C.E.O. RECOMMENDATION: Approve.

#### **BACKGROUND:**

#### Summary

California Welfare and Institutions Code (WIC) 10601.2 requires Riverside County to develop and implement a System Improvement Plan (SIP) focused on improving outcomes for children in the Child Welfare System. The focus of Riverside County's current SIP is on reducing the incidence of child maltreatment and continued improvement of placement stability, reunification indicators and foster care re-entry outcomes. In an effort to meet these outcomes while also meeting the unique needs of the population DPSS serves, domestic violence victims/survivors, perpetrators and their families receive individual and group counseling services to improve their coping and parenting skills.

In addition to the SIP, a countywide Community Needs Assessment (CNA) was completed in the fall of 2016 to assist in funding determinations for: Promoting Safe and Stable Families (PSSF); Child Abuse Prevention, Intervention and Treatment (CAPIT); Community-Based Child Abuse Prevention (CBCAP); and Children's Trust Fund (CTF) availability beginning in Fiscal Year 18/19. The goal of the CNA is to identify community service needs and barriers in relation to child abuse and neglect prevention, intervention and treatment. In addition, a survey was conducted to ensure the diverse population of Riverside County's residents and service providers were representative of the program make-up and that funding priorities were aligned appropriately. Counseling services designed to prevent the occurrence/recurrence of child maltreatment or domestic violence arose within the top-five service priorities for the community, and use of PSSF funding recommended for domestic violence counseling services. On April 24, 2019, the Riverside County Child Abuse Council (CAC) approved the CNA and its funding recommendations for Fiscal Year 18/19 and beyond. The Riverside County Board of Supervisors approved the CNA and funding request on June 6, 2017, item no. 2.11.

The department requests approval of the attached agreements: #CS-03725, Perris Valley Recovery Program, Inc.,(PVRP), the lowest bidder for Zone 2 (central county), for individual and group counseling services; #CS-03726, Olive Branch Counseling Center, Inc., (OBCC), the lowest bidder for Zone 1 (Northwest County), for individual and group counseling services; and, #CS-03727, Cox Romain Psychological Services, LLC, (CRPS), the lowest bidder for Zone 3 (Southwest County), for individual and group counseling services. Due to lacking providers in the Desert region, DPSS received no bids for the Desert/East County Zone 4. DPSS is in the

#### SUBMITTAL TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

process of contacting approved vendors in the desert to determine their willingness to provide these services on a case-by-case basis, until a permanent provider is in place. In addition, DPSS is engaging RUHS-BH on the possibility of providing these services. The Blythe service area will continue to receive services through DPSS' MOU with Riverside University Health System-Behavioral Health.

#### Impact on Residents and Businesses

Approval of this Agreement will ensure adequate domestic violence counseling services are available to DPSS clients throughout Riverside County.

#### SUPPLEMENTAL

#### **Additional Fiscal Information**

Funding for these agreements was budgeted through the normal county budgeting process, with 100 percent of funds coming from Child Welfare Services (CWS Basic) funds for FY 17/18.

Beginning in fiscal year 18/19 a portion of the agreements will be funded through Promoting Safe and Stable Families (PSSF) funds. Following are the costs submitted by the proposers for Fiscal Years 17/18 through 21/22:

Fiscal Year	Perris Valley Recovery Program Zone 2	Olive Branch Counseling Center Zone 1	Cox Romain Psychological Services Zone 3 Maximum Reimbursable		
	Maximum Reimbursable	Maximum Reimbursable			
	Amount	Amount	Amount		
17/18	\$56,602	\$42,037	\$17,025		
18/19	\$75,470	\$56,050	\$22,700		
19/20	\$75,470	\$56,050	\$22,700		
20/21	\$75,470	\$56,050	\$22,700		
21/22	\$75,470	\$56,050	\$22,700		
Totals	\$358,482	\$266,237	\$107,825		

#### **Contract History and Price Reasonableness**

On February 9, 2017, Riverside County Purchasing Department issued a formal request for proposal (RFP) DPARC-524 for Domestic Violence Services. The RFP was posted on the County Purchasing website with a link to the Public Purchase website, which is used as a central bid repository for public agencies.

The RFP closed March 9, 2017, with responses received from five vendors. Three of the five vendors (PVRP, OBCC, and CRPS) were deemed responsive and moved into the evaluation phase. PVRP bid on individual and group counseling services in Zone 2; OBCC bid on individual and group counseling services in Zone 1; and CRPS bid on individual and group counseling in Zone 3. Following the interview, clarification, and best and final offer elements of the process, each of the above vendors were deemed lowest and most responsive bidder for

Page **3** of **4** ID#5095 **3.16** 

## SUBMITTAL TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

their respective zones. The costs for these services are in line with services in the areas served.

SvZ:mh

Jenwifer Sargevi, Principal Management Analyst

9/18/2017

Taresa Summers, Director of Purchasing

9/11/2017

Gregory V. Priaryos, Director County Counsel

9/6/2017

# County of Riverside Department of Public Social Services Contracts Administration Unit 10281 Kidd Street Riverside, CA 92503

AGREEMENT:

CS-03725

CONTRACTOR:

Perris Valley Recovery Programs, Inc.

**EFFECTIVE:** 

October 1, 2017 - June 30, 2022

**MAXIMUM AGGREGATE** 

AMOUNT:

\$358,482.00

WHEREAS, the County of Riverside, Department of Public Social Services (hereinafter referred to as the "County and/or DPSS"), desires to provide Domestic Violence Services;

WHEREAS, Perris Valley Recovery Programs, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor") is qualified to provide Domestic Violence Services;

WHEREAS, DPSS desires the Contractor, to perform these services in accordance with the TERMS and CONDITIONS (T&C) attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. The T&C specify the responsibilities of DPSS and the Contractor;

NOW THEREFORE, DPSS and the Contractor do hereby covenant and agree that the Contractor shall provide said services in return for monetary compensation, all in accordance with the TERMS and CONDITIONS contained herein and exhibits attached hereto and incorporated herein (hereinafter referred to as an "Agreement").

Authorized Signature for County.	Authorized Signature for Perris Valley Recovery Programs, Inc.
Printed Name of Person Signing.	Printed Name of Person Signing:
John F. Tavaglione	Tinya Holt Jinya Holt
Title:	Title:
Chair, Board of Supervisors	Executive Director
Address:	Address:
10281 Kidd St.	236 E Third Street Suite B
Riverside, CA 92503	Perris, CA 92557
Date Signed:	Date Signed:
SEP 2 6 2017	9/8/2017

ATTEST:

By MILL DOUBLE

Page 1 of 43

SEP 26 2017 3.16

(Template T-00161 v9.0)

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

١.	DE	FINITIONS	(
II.		BJECTIVES	
III.	OL	JTCOMES	
IV.	DF	PSS RESPONSIBILITIES	
V.	CC	ONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES	
•	Α.	GENERAL SCOPE OF SERVICE	
	B	REFERRAL AND INTAKE/EXIT PROCESS	
	Ċ.	INDIVIDUAL THERAPY SCOPE OF WORK (VICTIMS/SURVIVORS AND PERPETRATOR)	2) 8
	D.	GROUP THERAPY SCOPE OF WORK (VICTIMS/SURVIVORS AND PERPETRATORS)	<b>U</b> ) (
		REPORTING	
	F	FISCAL	٠ (
	G.	ADMINISTRATIVE	٠ ١
	<b>O</b> .	1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST.	12
		2. CONFIDENTIALITY	دا
		2. UOID HADMIECO/INDEMNIFICATION	دا داد
		HOLD HARMLESS/INDEMNIFICATION     INSURANCE	
		5. LICENSES AND PERMITS	
		6. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR	
		The state of the s	
		8. PERSONNEL	16
		9. SUBCONTRACT FOR SERVICES.	17
		10. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION	17
		11. COMPLIANCE WITH RULES, REGULATIONS AND DIRECTIVES	18
		12. EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES	
		13. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY	
		14. CLIENT CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE	
		15. PROCEDURE TO RESOLVE CLIENT GRIEVANCE	
		16. HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY ACCOUNTABILITY ACT (HIPAA)	
		17. CHILD ABUSE REPORTING	
		18. ADULT AND ELDER ABUSE REPORTING	20
		19. TRANSITION PERIOD	
<b>/</b> 1.		NERAL	
	Α.	PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE	
		NOTICES	
	C.	AVAILABILITY OF FUNDING	22
		DISPUTES	
		SANCTIONS	
		GOVERNING LAW	
		MODIFICATION OF TERMS	
	Н.	NON-APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS	23
	1.	TERMINATION	
	J.	ENTIRE AGREEMENT	23

#### List of Exhibits

Exhibit A - DPSS 2076A & Instructions

Exhibit B - Assurance of Compliance

Exhibit C - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement

Exhibit D – Geographical Zone List

Exhibit E - Intake/Referral Form

Exhibit F - Satisfaction Survey/Exit Form

#### TERMS AND CONDITIONS

#### I. DEFINITIONS

- A. "Contractor" refers to Perris Valley Recovery Programs, Inc. and its employees, agents and representatives providing services under this Agreement.
- B. "Domestic Violence" refers to abuse committed against an adult or minor who is a spouse, former spouse, cohabitant, former cohabitant, or person with whom the suspect has a child or is having or has had a dating or engagement relationship. For purposes of this subdivision, "cohabitant means two unrelated adult persons living together for a substantial period of time, resulting in some permanency of relationship". Factors that may determine whether persons are cohabitating include, but are not limited to:
  - a. Sexual relations between the parties while sharing the same living quarters;
  - b. Sharing of income or expenses;
  - c. Joint use or ownership of property:
  - d. Whether the parties hold themselves out as husband and wife;
  - e. The continuity of the relationship; and
  - f. The length of the relationship.
- C. "DPSS and/or County" refers to the County of Riverside and its Department of Public Social Services, which has administrative responsibility for this Agreement.
- D. "Family" or "household members" refers to the following persons:
  - a. Persons related by blood or marriage:
  - b. Persons legally married to one another;
  - c. Persons formerly married to one another regardless of whether they still reside in the same household;
  - d. Persons who have a child in common regardless of whether such persons are married or have lived together at any time:
  - e. Unrelated persons who are continually or at regular intervals living in the same household or who have in past continually or at regular intervals lived in the same household or
  - f. Unrelated persons who have had intimate or continuous social contact with one another and who have access to one another's household.
- E. "HIPAA" refers to the Health Insurance Portability Accountability Act.
- F. "Joint Operational Meeting" or "JOM" refers to meetings that are typically scheduled every three to six months so that DPSS and the service provider can discuss the partnership, services, successes, challenges, or other items of relevance to the program and service delivery.
- G. "Licensed Clinical Therapist" refers to a Licensed Marriage and Family Therapist, Licensed Clinical Social Worker, Licensed Educational Psychologist, or Licensed Psychologist in accordance with the guidelines of the State of California Board of Behavioral Sciences (BBS) or Board of Psychology (BOP). Credentials must be current, active and in clear status with the BBS or BOP for the entire duration of the Agreement.
- H. "Non-residential program for victims/survivors of domestic violence" refers to any program operated by a not-for-profit organization for the purpose of providing non-residential services

for victims/survivors of domestic violence including, but not limited to, telephone hotline assistance, information and referral services, advocacy, therapy, and community education/outreach activities.

- I. "Not-for-profit organization" refers to any organization which is incorporated as a not-for-profit corporation or religious corporation under the laws of this State or which provides care and/or services In the State and has been granted a federal tax exempt status.
- J. "Perpetrator" refer to a person who has been accused of inflicting domestic violence.
- K. "Registered intern" refers to a pre-licensed registered Marriage and Family Therapy Intern, Clinical Social Work Associate, or Psychologist in accordance with the guidelines of the State of California Board of Behavioral Sciences/California Board of Psychology. Credentials of all facilitators must be current, active, and in clear status with the BBS/Board of Psychology for the entire duration of the Agreement.
- L. "Subcontract" refers to any contract, purchase order, or other purchase agreement, including modifications and change orders to the foregoing, entered into by the Contractor with a subcontractor to furnish supplies, materials, equipment, and services for the performance of any of the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement.
- M. "Subcontractor" refers to any supplier, vendor, or firm that furnishes supplies, materials, equipment, or services to or for the Contractor or another subcontractor.
- N. "Supervised Intern" refers to a Marriage and Family Therapist Intern (MFTI) or an Associate Clinical Social Worker (ASW) who is gaining experience under the supervision of a licensed mental health professional who meets the requirements to supervise such hours according to the Board of Behavioral Sciences (BBS) regulations. See <a href="https://www.bbs.ca.gov">www.bbs.ca.gov</a>
- O. "Residential program for victims/survivors of domestic violence" refers to any residential program approved by the County and operated by a not-for-profit organization for the purposes of providing temporary shelter, emergency services, and care to victims/survivors of domestic violence.
- P. "Team Decision Making" or "TDM" and "Child and Family Team" or "CFT" session refers to meetings scheduled in DPSS operational regions to meet goals and objectives that stabilize and maintain placements. TDMs may involve community members and service providers along with family members and care givers to reach a group consensus regarding safety and placement decisions for the child.
- Q. "Victim of domestic violence" refers to a person who is subjected to domestic violence.

#### II. OBJECTIVES

- A. Delivery of competent and effective individual and group therapy services to adult victims/survivors and perpetrators of domestic violence in Riverside County. Services are delivered to adult victims/survivors and/or perpetrators of domestic violence who are being served by DPSS for abusing and/or neglecting their child(ren).
- B. Prevent the unnecessary separation of children from their families, improve the quality of care and services to children and their families, and ensure permanency for children.
- C. Provision of services that strengthen parental relationships (when safe and appropriate to do so), improve parenting skills, and increase relationship skills within the family to prevent child abuse and neglect, while promoting timely family reunification when children must be

- separated from their parents.
- D. Provision of services which are culturally and linguistically appropriate to the population served.

#### III. OUTCOMES

- A. All services must be evidenced-based or evidence-informed.
- B. All services must be outcome-based and the following outcomes must be measured and addressed for DPSS CSD program evaluation purposes:
  - 1. Perpetrators:
    - a. After completion of the Domestic Violence (DV) batterer intervention program, participating clients will demonstrate a 10% increase in readiness to change their abusive behavior as measured by a difference in scores using an assessment provided or approved by DPSS, administrated to clients prior to participation in the program (Pre) and subsequent to participation in the program (Post).
    - b. After completion of the DV batterer intervention program, participating clients will demonstrate a 10% reduction in abusive behaviors as measured by a difference in scores using an assessment provided or approved by DPSS, administrated to clients prior to participation in the program (Pre) and subsequent to participation in the program (Post).

#### 2. Victims/Survivors:

- a. After completion of the DV survivor intervention program, participating clients will demonstrate a 10% increase in their knowledge about the topic of domestic violence as measured by a difference in scores using a knowledge test provided or approved by DPSS, administrated to clients prior to participation in the program (Pre) and subsequent to participation in the program (Post).
- b. After completion of the DV survivor intervention program, participating clients will demonstrate a 10% increase in domestic violence coping self-efficacy as measured by a difference in scores using an assessment provided or approved by DPSS, administrated to clients prior to participation in the program (Pre) and subsequent to participation in the program (Post).
- c. After completion of the DV victim intervention program, participating clients will demonstrate a 10% increase in perceived safety, culture, health, and self-strength as measured by a difference in scores using an assessment provided or approved by DPSS, administrated to clients prior to participation in the program (Pre) and subsequent to participation in the program (Post).

#### IV. DPSS RESPONSIBILITIES

- A. Assign staff to be liaisons between DPSS and the Contractor.
- B. DPSS may monitor the performance of the Contractor in meeting the terms, conditions and services in this Agreement. DPSS, at its sole discretion, may monitor the performance of the Contractor through any combination of the following methods: periodic on-site visits, annual inspections, evaluations and Contractor self-monitoring.

#### V. CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES

- A. GENERAL SCOPE OF SERVICE
  - 1. Assign staff to be liaisons between the Contractor and DPSS.

- 2. Provide individual therapy and group therapy in Zone 2. Zones are defined in the Geographical Zone List, attached hereto as Exhibit D, and incorporated herein by this reference.
- 3. All individual and group therapy sessions must be facilitated by a Licensed Clinical Therapist or Supervised Intern, as defined in "Section I Definitions" of this Agreement.
- 4. Program staff must have a minimum of two (2) years of experience providing domestic violence services.
- 5. Provide services in English and Spanish. Services must be available during the day and evenings; evening is defined as after 6:00 PM.
- 6. Domestic violence victim groups must always be separated from perpetrator groups. Perpetrators and victims/survivors must never attend the same groups. Additional safeguards must be identified and put into place to decrease the likelihood that perpetrators and victims/survivors will come into contact with each other or be put at risk for further domestic violence.
- 7. The type of services offered for each individual client will be determined on a case-by-case basis by the Contractor.

For victims, the services for the individual shall include, but are not limited to:

- a. Safety Planning: Safety from the abuser / Lethality assessment
- b. Referrals to community resources and opportunities as appropriate
- c. Strategies to increase social support and community connections
- d. Individualized service planning
- e. Self-protection strategies
- f. Education regarding the process of moving from a victim to a "survivor"
- g. Providing information to increase knowledge about a variety of topics important to the client's long-term well-being, the impact of the family violence on the survivor and the child(ren); the risk for recurrence of violence
- h. Skills building: Coping, emotion regulation, problem solving, parenting, and parentchild relationships

For perpetrators, the services for the individual shall include, but are not limited to:

- a. Referrals to community resources as appropriate
- b. Individualized service planning
- c. Strategies to identify negative thoughts and redirect behavior
- d. Education regarding the various forms of abuse; beliefs of dominance; the impact of the family violence on the survivor and child(ren)
- e. Assistance in developing alternative behavioral strategies (non-abusive response to negative thoughts) and accepting responsibility
- f. Skills building: Coping, emotion regulation, problem solving, and parenting and parent-child relationships
- 8. The Contractor must assess and document the needs of the client and develop an individualized service plan for each client. The service plan should identify strengths, presenting problems, interventions, support system, family origin, education/employment, physical health, mental health, multi-provider involvement, interviewer's impressions, conclusions, recommendations, and referrals, if applicable.

The plan shall include measurable goals, objectives, and the methods of achieving the objective.

- The Contractor shall maintain a neat and organized case file for each client served that ensures client confidentiality and HIPAA compliance. Case files must be available for DPSS to review upon request, and must contain:
  - a. Client's name (or unique identifier) and date of birth;
  - b. Basic demographic data;
  - c. A copy of the referral form from the County of Riverside;
  - d. Intake/Referral Form:
  - e. An assessment of each client's service needs;
  - f. A copy of the individualized service/ plan, including written narratives of contacts, progress reports and observations, safety plan, a record of other services to which the client was referred, and a closing assessment and summary of the services that have been provided to the client;
  - g. Client contact log;
  - h. Client Written Agreement;
  - i. Satisfaction Survey/Exit Forms; and
  - j. Sign-in sheets for all group services provided, including date, starting and ending time, facilitator name, and topics reviewed.
- 10. The Contractor is required to enter into a written agreement with each client with respect to the responsibilities each client must satisfy in order to complete their prospective program. Written agreements must be maintained in the client's individual case file.
- 11. Participate in Joint Operation Meetings (JOMs) as requested.
- 12. Participate in Team Decision Making (TDM) and Child and Family Team (CFT) sessions when requested to do so by the referring social worker. When this occurs, the contractor liaison shall present a progress update to include the number of group and individual sessions a client has attended, along with a progress narrative update for the meeting. A note of such attendance must be entered in the client's case file.
- 13. Contractor must return phone calls to social workers and DPSS staff within one (1) business day.
- 14. Contractor must provide written progress reports (when requested by assigned social worker) within three (3) business days of the request.

#### B. REFERRAL AND INTAKE/EXIT PROCESS

- 1. Services shall be provided only to clients referred by DPSS.
- Contractor must contact or attempt to contact the client within two (2) business days of the referral to schedule an in-person enrollment/intake. The Contractor must document all contact attempts in writing.
- 3. Contractor must complete an Intake/Referral Form (Exhibit E) within fifteen (15) business days of the initial client contact for all clients.
- 4. All clients must begin group and or/individual therapy within fifteen (15) calendar days of client's in-person intake. If a client is not able to begin group therapy, the Contractor must begin individual therapy, place the client on the list for the next available group with start date, and notify the DPSS designated liaison via email.

- 5. Contractor must have each client complete a Satisfaction Survey/Exit Form (Exhibit F) at the end of their services to measure changes in parental attitudes, behaviors, skills, and other relevant indicators.
- C. INDIVIDUAL THERAPY SCOPE OF WORK (VICTIMS/SURVIVORS AND PERPETRATORS)
  - All individual therapy sessions for victims/survivors must utilize the Cognitive Behavioral

     Trauma Focused and Solution Focused program model and be facilitated by a Licensed Clinical Therapist or Registered Intern, as defined in "Section I – Definitions" of this Agreement.
  - 2. All individual therapy sessions for perpetrators must utilize the Cognitive Behavioral Therapy Interventions program model and be facilitated by a Licensed Clinical Therapist or Registered Intern, as defined in "Section I Definitions" of this Agreement.
  - 3. Each session of individual therapy must be a minimum of fifty (50) minutes of face-to-face contact between the Licensed Clinical Therapist or Registered Intern and the client.
  - 4. Individual therapy sessions are limited to a maximum of sixteen (16) sessions per client. The Contractor must obtain prior approval by DPSS for any client needing more than sixteen (16) therapy sessions. All approvals must be documented in writing and maintained in the client's case file.
- D. GROUP THERAPY SCOPE OF WORK (VICTIMS/SURVIVORS AND PERPETRATORS)
  - 1. All group therapy sessions for victims/survivors must utilize the Helping to Overcome PTSD through Empowerment (HOPE) program model. All group therapy sessions must be facilitated by a Licensed Clinical Therapist or Registered Intern, as defined in "Section I Definitions" of this Agreement.
  - 2. All group therapy sessions for perpetrators must utilize the Cognitive Behavioral Therapy Interventions program model. All group therapy sessions must be facilitated by a Licensed Clinical Therapist or Register Intern, as defined in "Section I Definitions" of this Agreement.
  - 3. Each session of group therapy must be a minimum of ninety (90) minutes of face-to-face contact between the Licensed Clinical Therapist or Registered Intern and a group of clients.
  - 4. Group therapy sessions are limited to a maximum of sixteen (16) sessions per client.
  - 5. Groups must have a minimum of four (4) clients and a maximum of twelve (12) clients to one (1) Licensed Clinical Therapist or Registered Intern. Groups exceeding twelve (12) clients shall have a group facilitator (Licensed Clinical Therapist or Registered Intern) and a co-facilitator (Licensed Clinical Therapist or Registered Intern). The cost for a group with fewer than four (4) clients will be prorated per client at a rate of \$75.00.

#### E. REPORTING

The Contractor shall submit the following reports as specified below:

- 1. A monthly service report from the Contractor is required and shall be submitted no later than the 15<sup>th</sup> calendar day of the month following the month in which services were provided. This report will include, but is not limited to the following data elements:
  - a. 19-digit CSD Client ID number;

- Client demographics (i.e. age, disability status, primary language, ethnicity, zip
- C. Clients that completed their service plans:
- Clients that stopped participating, refused service, otherwise dropped out of the program, or failed to complete their service plan indicating the reasons why;
- Total units of service provided:
- Service type and hours provided; and,
- Clients referred to additional services
- 2. An annual report aggregating the year's monthly data shall be submitted no later than the 15th of the month following the end of the contract year.
- 3. Submit the results of agreed upon outcome measures on a monthly basis, utilizing a database provided by DPSS.
- 4. The monthly service and annual aggregate reports shall be submitted in electronic format to

#### PDRreports@riversidedpss.org

- 5. The Contractor will also be required to:
  - a. Meet with the DPSS data and evaluation team no later than 30 days after contract execution in order to discuss, collaborate, and provide input on the evaluation plan and mandatory evaluation instruments (e.g. surveys, assessment tests) that will be required to be utilized by the provider to measure and report progress on the program objectives and outcomes.

#### F. d뫵wCAL

#### MAXIMUM AGGREGATE AMOUNT

Total payment under this Agreement shall not exceed in aggregate \$358,482.00.

Annually, payments shall not exceed:

FISCAL YEAR PERIOD	ANNUAL PAYMENT			
October 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018	\$56,602.00			
July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019	\$75,470.00			
July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020	\$75,470.00			
July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021	\$75,470.00			
July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022	\$75,470.00			
Total	\$358,482.00			

#### 2. UNIT OF SERVICE COST RATE

Zone	Unit of Service		st Per Unit ervice	Supporting Documentation		
2	Individual Therapy (Victims/ survivors)	\$119.00		<ul> <li>Client name (and/or 19-digit CSD Client ID number);</li> <li>Beginning and ending</li> </ul>		
2	Group Therapy (Victims/ survivors)	# of Clients in Group 4+ 3 2	Prorated Group Amount \$300.00 \$225.00 \$150.00 \$75.00	time of session; Date(s) of service; Facilitator name; Initial CWS referral form (2468) Written documentation of the County approval for clients receiving more		
2	Individual Therapy (Perpetrators)	\$119.00		than 16 sessions per service (if applicable).		
2	Group Therapy	# of Clients in Group 4+	Prorated Group Amount \$300.00			
	(Perpetrators)	3 2 1	\$225.00 \$150.00 \$75.00			

#### 3. METHOD, TIME AND SCHEDULE CONDITIONS OF PAYMENT

- a. The Contractor will be paid the actual amount of each monthly invoice for payment. If the required supporting documentation is not provided, DPSS may delay payment until the information is received by DPSS.
- b. All completed claims must be submitted on a monthly basis no later than 30 days after the end of each month in which the services were provided. All complete claims submitted in a timely manner shall be processed within forty-five (45) calendar days.
- c. The Contractor shall submit DPSS Forms 2076A, 2076B (if applicable) (Exhibit A), following the instructions set forth. Exhibit A is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference for request of all payments.
- d. Each claiming period shall consist of a calendar month claiming period. Contractor Invoice estimates for May and June are due no later than the 5th of June. Actual Contractor invoices for May and June are due no later than the 30th of July.

#### 4. FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Contractor warrants that during the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall retain sufficient financial resources necessary to perform all aspects of its obligations, as described under this Agreement. Further, the Contractor warrants that there has been no adverse material change in the Contractor, Parent, or Subsidiary business entities, resulting in negative impact to the financial condition and circumstances of the Contractor since the date of the most recent financial statements.

#### 5. RECORDS, INSPECTIONS AND AUDITS

- a. The Contractor shall maintain auditable books, records, documents, and other evidence pertaining to costs and expenses in this Agreement. The Contractor shall maintain these records for three (3) years after final payment has been made or until all pending County, State, and Federal audits, if any, are completed, whichever is later.
- b. Any authorized representative of the County of Riverside, the State of California, and the Federal government shall have access to any books, documents, papers, electronic data, and other records, which these representatives may determine to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purpose of performing an audit, evaluation, inspection, review, assessment, or examination. These representatives are authorized to obtain excerpts, transcripts, and copies, as they deem necessary. Further, these authorized representatives shall have the right at all reasonable times to inspect or otherwise evaluate the work performed, or being performed, under this Agreement and the premises in which it is being performed.
- c. This access to records includes, but is not limited to, service delivery, referral, financial, and administrative documents for three (3) years after final payment is made, or until all pending County, State, and Federal audits are completed, whichever is later.
- d. Should the Contractor disagree with any audit conducted by DPSS, the Contractor shall have the right to employ a licensed, Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to prepare and file with DPSS a certified financial and compliance audit that is in compliance with generally-accepted government accounting standards of related services provided during the term of this Agreement. The Contractor shall not be reimbursed by DPSS for such an audit.
- e. In the event the Contractor does not make available its books and financial records at the location where they are normally maintained, the Contractor agrees to pay all necessary and reasonable expenses, including legal fees, incurred by DPSS in conducting such an audit.
- f. Contractors that expend \$750,000 or more in a year in Federal funding shall obtain an audit performed by an independent auditor in accordance with generally accepted governmental auditing standards covering financial and compliance audits as per the Single Audit Act of 1984 and the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, as per OMB Circular A-133. However, records must be available for review and audit by appropriate officials of Federal, State and County agencies.

#### 6. SUPPLANTATION

The Contractor shall not supplant any federal, state, or County funds intended for the purpose of this Agreement with any funds made available under any other Agreement. The Contractor shall not claim reimbursement from DPSS for, or apply any sums received from DPSS, with respect to the portion of its obligations, which have been paid by another source of revenue. The Contractor agrees that it will not use funds received pursuant to this Agreement, either directly or indirectly, as a contribution or compensation for purposes of obtaining state funds under any state program or County funds under any County programs without prior approval of DPSS.

#### 7. DISALLOWANCE

In the event the Contractor receives payment for services under this Agreement which is later disallowed for nonconformance with the terms and conditions herein by DPSS, the Contractor shall promptly refund the disallowed amount to DPSS on request, or at its option, DPSS may offset the amount disallowed from any payment due to the Contractor under any agreement with DPSS.

#### G. ADMINISTRATIVE

#### 1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The Contractor, Contractor's employees, and agents shall have no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which shall conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of services required under this Agreement.

#### 2. CONFIDENTIALITY

The Contractor shall maintain the confidentiality of all information and records and comply with all other statutory laws and regulations relating to privacy and confidentiality.

Each party shall ensure that case record information is kept confidential when it identifies an individual by name, address, or other information. Confidential information requires special precautions to protect it from loss, unauthorized use, access, disclosure, modification, and destruction.

The parties to this Agreement shall keep all information that is exchanged between them in the strictest confidence, in accordance with Section 10850 of the Welfare and Institutions Code. All records and information concerning any and all persons referred to the Contractor shall be considered and kept confidential by the Contractor, its staff, agents, employees and volunteers. The Contractor shall require all of its employees, agents, subcontractors and volunteer staff who may provide services under this Agreement with the Contractor before commencing the provision of any such services, to maintain the confidentiality of any and all materials and information with which they may come into contact, or the identities or any identifying characteristics or information with respect to any and all participants referred to the Contractor by Riverside County.

The confidentiality of juvenile records is established under section 827 and 828 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, California Rules of Court, Rule 5.552 and case law. The Juvenile Court has exclusive jurisdiction over juvenile records and information and has the responsibility to protect the interests of minors and their families in the confidentiality of any records and information concerning minors involved in the justice system and to provide a reasonable method for release of these records and information in appropriate circumstances.

Contractor shall ensure that no person will publish, disclose, use, permit, or cause to be published, disclosed, or used, any confidential information pertaining to any applicant or recipient of services under this Agreement. The Contractor agrees to inform all persons directly or indirectly involved in administration of services provided under this Agreement of the above provisions and that any person deliberately violating these provisions is guilty of a misdemeanor.

#### 3. HOLD HARMLESS/INDEMNIFICATION

Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless County, all Agencies, Districts, Special Districts and Departments of County, their respective directors, officers, Board of Supervisors, elected and appointed officials, employees, agents and representatives from any liability whatsoever, based or asserted upon any services of Contractor, its

officers, employees, subcontractors, agents or representatives arising out of or in any way relating to this Agreement, including but not limited to property damage, bodily injury, death, or any other element of any kind or nature whatsoever arising from the performance of Contractor, its officers, agents, employees, subcontractors, agents or representatives from this Agreement. Contractor shall defend, at its sole expense, all costs and fees, including but not limited to attorney fees, cost of investigation, defense and settlements or awards, of County, all Agencies, Districts, Special Districts and Departments of County, their respective directors, officers, Board of Supervisors, elected and appointed officials, employees, agents or representatives in any claim or action based upon such alleged acts or omissions.

With respect to any action or claim subject to indemnification herein by Contractor, Contractor shall, at their sole cost, have the right to use counsel of their choice, subject to the approval of County, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, and shall have the right to adjust, settle, or compromise any such action or claim without the prior consent of County; provided, however, that any such adjustment, settlement or compromise in no manner whatsoever limits or circumscribes Contractor's indemnification to County as set forth herein. Contractor's obligation to defend, indemnify and hold harmless County shall be subject to County having given Contractor written notice within a reasonable period of time of the claim or of the commencement of the related action, as the case may be, and information and reasonable assistance, at Contractor's expense, for the defense or settlement thereof. Contractor's obligation hereunder shall be satisfied when Contractor has provided to County the appropriate form of dismissal relieving County from any liability for the action or claim involved.

The specified insurance limits required in this Agreement shall in no way limit or circumscribe Contractor's obligations to indemnify and hold harmless County herein from third party claims.

In the event there is conflict between this clause and California Civil Code §2782, this clause shall be interpreted to comply with Civil Code §2782. Such interpretation shall not relieve the Contractor from indemnifying County to the fullest extent allowed by law.

#### 4. INSURANCE

- a. Without limiting or diminishing the Contractor's obligation to indemnify or hold the County harmless, Contractor shall procure and maintain or cause to be maintained, at its sole cost and expense, the following insurance coverage's during the term of this Agreement. As respects to the insurance section only, the County herein refers to the County of Riverside, its Agencies, Districts, Special Districts, and Departments, their respective directors, officers, Board of Supervisors, employees, elected or appointed officials, agents or representatives as Additional Insureds.
  - (1) Worker's Compensation:
    - If the Contractor has employees as defined by the State of California, the Contractor shall maintain statutory Worker's Compensation Insurance (Coverage A) as prescribed by the laws of the State of California. Policy shall include Employers' Liability (Coverage B) including Occupational Disease with limits not less than \$1,000,000 per person per accident. The policy shall be endorsed to waive subrogation in favor of The County of Riverside, and, if applicable, to provide a Borrowed Servant/Alternate Employer Endorsement.
  - (2) Commercial General Liability:

Commercial General Liability insurance coverage, including but not limited to, premises liability, contractual liability, products and completed operations liability, personal and advertising injury, and cross liability coverage, covering claims which may arise from or out of Contractor's performance of its obligations hereunder. Policy shall name the County as additional Insured. Policy's limit of liability shall not be less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence combined single limit. If such insurance contains a general aggregate limit, it shall apply separately to this Agreement or be no less than two (2) times the occurrence limit.

#### (3) Vehicle Liability:

If vehicles or mobile equipment are used in the performance of the obligations under this Agreement, then Contractor shall maintain liability insurance for all owned, non-owned or hired vehicles so used in an amount not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence combined single limit. If such insurance contains a general aggregate limit, it shall apply separately to this Agreement or be no less than two (2) times the occurrence limit. Policy shall name the County as additional Insured.

#### (4) Professional Liability:

If, at any time during the duration of this Agreement and any renewal or extension thereof, the Contractor, its employees, agents or subcontractors provide professional counseling for issues of medical diagnosis, medical treatment, mental health, dispute resolution or any other services for which it is the usual and customary practice to maintain Professional Liability Insurance, the Contractor shall procure and maintain Professional Liability Insurance (Errors & Omissions), providing coverage for performance of work included within this Agreement, with a limit of liability of not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence and \$2,000,000 annual aggregate. If Contractor's Professional Liability Insurance is written on a claims made basis rather than an occurrence basis, such insurance shall continue through the term of this Agreement. Upon termination of this Agreement or the expiration or cancellation of the claims made insurance policy Contractor shall purchase at his sole expense either 1) an Extended Reporting Endorsement (also known as Tail Coverage); or, 2) Prior Dates Coverage from a new insurer with a retroactive date back to the date of, or prior to, the inception of this Agreement; or, 3) demonstrate through Certificates of Insurance that Contractor has maintained continuous coverage with the same or original insurer. Coverage provided under items 1), 2) or 3) will continue for a period of five (5) years beyond the termination of this Agreement.

#### b. General Insurance Provisions - All lines:

- (1) Any insurance carrier providing insurance coverage hereunder shall be admitted to the State of California and have an A M BEST rating of not less than A: VIII (A:8) unless such requirements are waived, in writing, by the County Risk Manager. If the County's Risk Manager waives a requirement for a particular insurer such waiver is only valid for that specific insurer and only for one policy term.
- (2) The Contractor's insurance carrier(s) must declare its insurance self-insured retentions. If such self-insured retentions exceed \$500,000 per occurrence such retentions shall have the prior written consent of the County Risk Manager before the commencement of operations under this Agreement. Upon notification of self insured retention unacceptable to the County, and at the election of the County's

- Risk Manager, Contractor's carriers shall either; 1) reduce or eliminate such self-insured retention as respects this Agreement with the County, or 2) procure a bond which guarantees payment of losses and related investigations, claims administration, and defense costs and expenses.
- (3) Contractor shall cause Contractor's insurance carrier(s) to furnish the County of Riverside with either 1) a properly executed original Certificate(s) of Insurance and certified original copies of Endorsements effecting coverage as required herein, and 2) if requested to do so orally or in writing by the County Risk Manager, provide original Certified copies of policies including all Endorsements and all attachments thereto, showing such insurance is in full force and effect. Further, said Certificate(s) and policies of insurance shall contain the covenant of the insurance carrier(s) that thirty (30) days written notice shall be given to the County of Riverside prior to any material modification, cancellation, expiration or reduction in coverage of such insurance. In the event of a material modification, cancellation, expiration, or reduction in coverage, this Agreement shall terminate forthwith, unless the County of Riverside receives, prior to such effective date, another properly executed original Certificate of Insurance and original copies of endorsements or certified original policies, including all endorsements and attachments thereto evidencing coverages set forth herein and the insurance required herein is in full force and effect. Contractor shall not commence operations until the County has been furnished original Certificate(s) of Insurance and certified original copies of endorsements and if requested, certified original policies of insurance including all endorsements and any and all other attachments as required in this Section. An individual authorized by the insurance carrier to do so on it's behalf shall sign the original endorsements for each policy and the Certificate of Insurance.
- (4) It is understood and agreed to by the parties hereto that the Contractor's insurance shall be construed as primary insurance, and the County's insurance and/or deductibles and/or self-insured retentions or self-insured programs shall not be construed as contributory.
- (5) If, during the term of this Agreement or any extension thereof, there is a material change in the scope of services; or, there is a material change in the equipment to be used in the performance of the scope of work which will add additional exposures (such as the use of aircraft, watercraft, cranes, etc.); or, the term of this Agreement, including any extensions thereof, exceeds five (5) years the County reserves the right to adjust the types of insurance required under this Agreement and the monetary limits of liability for the insurance coverages currently required herein, if; in the County Risk Manager's reasonable judgment, the amount or type of insurance carried by the Contractor has become inadequate.
- (6) Contractor shall pass down the insurance obligations contained herein to all tiers of subcontractors working under this Agreement.
- (7) The insurance requirements contained in this Agreement may be met with a program(s) of self-insurance acceptable to the County.
- (8) Contractor agrees to notify County of any claim by a third party or any incident or event that may give rise to a claim arising from the performance of this Agreement.

#### 5. LICENSES AND PERMITS

In accordance with the provisions of the Business and Professions Code concerning the licensing of Contractors, all Contractors shall be licensed, if required, in accordance with the laws of this State and any Contractor not so licensed is subject to the penalties imposed by such laws.

The Contractor warrants that it has all necessary permits, approvals, certificates, waivers, and exemptions necessary for the provision of services hereunder and required by the laws and regulations of the United States, State of California, the County of Riverside and all other appropriate governmental agencies, and shall maintain these throughout the term of this Agreement.

#### 6. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

It is understood and agreed that the Contractor is an independent Contractor and that no relationship of employer-employee exists between the parties hereto. Contractor and/or Contractor's employees shall not be entitled to any benefits payable to employees of the County including, but not limited to, County Worker's Compensation benefits. County shall not be required to make any deductions for employees of Contractor from the compensation payable to Contractor under the provision of this Agreement.

As an independent Contractor, Contractor hereby holds County harmless from any and all claims that may be made against County based upon any contention by any third party that an employer-employee relationship exists by reason of this Agreement. As part of the foregoing indemnity, the Contractor agrees to protect and defend at its own expense, including attorney's fees, the County, its officers, agents and employees in any legal action based upon any such alleged existence of an employer-employee relationship by reason of this Agreement.

#### 7. ASSIGNMENT

The Contractor shall not assign any interest in this Agreement, and shall not transfer any interest in the same, whether by assignment or novation, without the prior written consent of DPSS. Any attempt to assign or delegate any interest without written consent of DPSS shall be deemed void and of no force or effect.

#### 8. PERSONNEL

#### a. Background Checks

Conduct criminal background records checks on all employees, subcontractors, and volunteers providing services under this Agreement. Prior to these individuals providing services to clients, the Contractor shall have received a criminal records clearance from the State of California Department of Justice (DOJ). A signed certification of such clearance shall be retained in each individual's personnel file.

#### Alcohol and Drug Use Prohibited

As a material condition of this Agreement, the Contractor agrees that the Contractor and its employees, while performing services for DPSS:

Shall not be in any way impaired because of being under the influence of alcohol or drugs.

(1) Shall not possess an open container of alcohol or consumer alcohol or possess or be under the influence of an illegal drug.

(2) Shall not sell, offer, or provide alcohol or an illegal drug to another person. This provision shall not be applicable to the Contractor or its employee who, as part of the performance of normal job duties and responsibilities, prescribes or administers medically prescribed drugs.

DPSS may terminate for default or breach of this Agreement, if the Contractor or its employees are determined by DPSS not to be in compliance with the conditions in this section.

#### 9. SUBCONTRACT FOR SERVICES

- a. The Contractor shall not enter into any subcontract with any subcontractor who:
  - is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, and declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by a federal department or agency.
  - (2) has within a 3-year period preceding this Agreement been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for the commission of fraud, or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or local) transaction; violation of Federal or State anti-trust status or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;
  - (3) is presently indicated or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government entity (Federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in the paragraph above; and
  - (4) has within a 3-year period preceding this Agreement had one or more public transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default.
- b. The Contractor shall be as fully responsible for the acts or omissions of its subcontractors, and of persons either directly or indirectly employed by them as for the acts or omissions of persons directly employed by the Contractor.
- c. The Contractor shall insert appropriate clauses in all subcontracts to bind subcontractors to the terms and conditions of this Agreement insofar as they are applicable to the work of subcontractors.
- d. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create any contractual relationship between any subcontractor and the County of Riverside, its Agencies, Districts, Special Districts and Departments, their respective directors, officers, Board of Supervisors, elected and appointed officials, employees, agents and representatives.

#### 10. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION

As a sub-grantee of federal funds under this Agreement, the Contractor certifies that it, and its principals:

a. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, and declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by a federal department or agency.

- b. Have not within a 3-year period preceding this Agreement been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for the commission of fraud, or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or local) transaction; violation of Federal or State anti-trust status or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property:
- c. Are not presently indicated or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government entity (Federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in the paragraph above; and
- d. Have not within a 3-year period preceding this Agreement had one or more public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

#### 11. COMPLIANCE WITH RULES, REGULATIONS AND DIRECTIVES

The Contractor shall comply with all rules, regulations, requirements, and directives of the California Department of Social Services, other applicable state agencies, and funding sources which impose duties and regulations upon DPSS, which are equally applicable and made binding upon the Contractor as though made with the Contractor directly.

#### 12. EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES

- a. The Contractor shall not discriminate in its recruiting, hiring, promoting, demoting, or terminating practices on the basis of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex in the performance of this Agreement, and to the extent they shall apply, with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (FEHA), and the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P. L. 88-352).
- b. In the provision of benefits, the Contractor shall certify and comply with Public Agreement Code 10295.3, to not discriminate between employees with spouses and employees with domestic partners, or discriminate between the domestic partners and spouses of those employees.
- c. For the purpose of this section Domestic Partner means one of two persons who have filed a declaration of domestic partnership with the Secretary of State pursuant to Division 2.5 (commencing with Section 297) of the Family Code.

#### 13. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

By signing this Agreement or accepting funds under this Agreement, the Contractor shall comply with Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, entitled "Equal Employment Opportunity", as amended by Department of Labor regulations (41 CFR Chapter 60).

#### 14. CLIENT CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE

a. Assurance of Compliance

The Contractor shall complete the Vendor Assurance of Compliance with Riverside County Department of Public Social Services Non-Discrimination in State and Federally Assisted Programs, attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by this reference. The Contractor will sign and date Exhibit B and return it to DPSS along with the executed Agreement. The Contractor shall ensure that the administration of public assistance and social service programs are non-discriminatory. To the effect that no person shall because of ethnic group identification, age, sex, color, disability, medical condition, national origin, race,

ancestry, marital status, religion, religious creed or political belief be excluded from participation in or be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subject to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal or state financial assistance.

#### b. Client Complaints

The Contractor shall further establish and maintain written referral procedures under which any person, applying for or receiving services hereunder, may seek resolution from Riverside County DPSS Civil Rights Coordinator of a complaint with respect to any alleged discrimination in the provision of services by Contractor's personnel. The Contractor must distribute to social service clients that apply for and receive services, "Your Rights Under California Welfare Programs" brochure (Publication 13). For a copy of this brochure, visit the following website at:

http://www.dss.cahwnet.gov/cdssweb/entres/forms/English/pub13.pdf

#### Civil Rights Complaints should be referred to:

Civil Rights Coordinator Riverside County Department of Public Social Services 7894 Mission Grove Parkway, Suite 100 Riverside, CA 92508 (951) 358-6841

#### c. Services, Benefits and Facilities

Contractor shall not discriminate in the provision of services, the allocation of benefits, or in the accommodation in facilities on the basis of color, race, religion, national origin, sex, age, sexual preference, physical or mental handicap in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. Section 2000d and all other pertinent rules and regulations promulgated pursuant thereto, and as otherwise provided by State law and regulations, as all may now exist or be hereafter amended or changed.

For the purpose of this Section, discrimination means denying a participant or potential participant any service, benefit, or accommodation that would be provided to another and includes, but is not limited to, the following:

- (1) Denying a participant any service or benefit or availability of a facility.
- (2) Providing any service or benefit to a participant which is different, or is provided in a different manner, or at a different time or place from that provided to other participants on the basis of race, color, creed or national origin.
- (3) Restricting a participant in any way in the enjoyment of any advantage or privilege enjoyed by others receiving any service or benefit. Treating a participant differently from others in satisfying any admission requirement or condition, or eligibility requirement or condition, which individuals must meet in order to be provided any service or benefit.

#### d. Cultural Competency

Contractor shall cause to be available bilingual professional staff or qualified interpreter to ensure adequate communication between clients and staff. Any individual with limited English language capability or other communicative barriers shall have equal access to services.

For the purpose of this Section, a qualified interpreter is defined as someone who is fluent in English and in the necessary second language, can accurately speak, read and readily interpret the necessary second language and/or accurately sign and read sign language. A qualified interpreter must be able to translate in linguistically appropriate terminology necessary to convey information such as symptoms or instructions to the client in both languages.

#### 15. PROCEDURE TO RESOLVE CLIENT GRIEVANCE

Contractor shall establish a Client grievance policy and procedure that describes the system by which clients of service shall have the opportunity to express and have considered their views, grievance, and complaints regarding the Contractor's delivery of services. This system shall not negate the rights of a client for a State hearing.

16. HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY ACCOUNTABILITY ACT (HIPAA)
Under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA), 42 U.S.C. 1320d et seq. and its 162, and 164 ("Privacy Rule and Security Rule"), the Contractor must comply with the Security Rule as a Business Associate, if under this Agreement, it receives, maintains or transmits any health information in electronic form in connection with a transaction covered by part 162 of Title 45 of the Code of Federal Regulations.

The County and Contractor acknowledge that HIPAA mandates them to comply as business associates in order to safeguard protected health information that may be accessed during the performance of this Agreement. The parties agree to the terms and conditions set forth from the County of Riverside Board of Supervisors Policy No. B-23 and the HIPAA Business Associated Agreement with County of Riverside DPSS as attached hereto as Exhibit C.

All social service privacy complaints should be referred to:

Department of Public Social Services
HR/Administrative Compliance Services Unit
10281 Kidd Street
Riverside, CA 92503
(951) 358-3030

#### 17. CHILD ABUSE REPORTING

If Contractor is a mandated reporter under Penal Code Sections 11165 -11174.3, the Contractor shall establish a procedure acceptable to the County and in accordance with applicable laws to ensure that all employees, volunteers, consultants, subcontractors or agents performing services under this Agreement report child abuse or neglect to a child protective agency as defined in the Penal Code.

#### 18. ADULT AND ELDER ABUSE REPORTING

The Contractor shall provide documentation of a policy and procedure acceptable to DPSS to ensure that all employees, volunteers, consultants, subcontractors, or agents performing services under this Agreement report elder and dependent adult abuse pursuant to Welfare & Institutions Code (WIC) Sections 15600 et seg.

Suspected incidents of abuse should be immediately reported to DPSS, followed by a written report within two working days.

#### 19. TRANSITION PERIOD

The Contractor recognizes that the services under this Agreement are vital to DPSS and must be continued without interruption, and that, upon expiration, a successor, either DPSS or another contractor, may continue the services outlined herein. The Contractor agrees to exercise its best efforts and cooperation to effect an orderly and efficient transition of clients to a successor.

- a. The Contractor shall, upon written notification from DPSS, negotiate in good faith a transition plan with a successor to determine the nature and extent of the transitioning of services. The transition plan for each service type and shall be subject to DPSS' approval and shall specify:
  - (1.) List of clients that include:
    - (a.) Current contact information;
    - (b.) Assigned social worker.
- b. Discharge summary that includes:
  - (1.) Services received:
  - (2.) Number of hours of services completed;
  - (3.) On-going service recommendations:
  - (4.) Date for transferring responsibilities.
- c. The Contractor shall provide DPSS with copies of client files.

#### VI. GENERAL

#### A. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE

This Agreement shall be effective October 1, 2017 to June 30, 2022, unless terminated earlier. Contractor shall commence performance upon the effective date of this Agreement and shall diligently and continuously perform thereafter. The Riverside County Board of Supervisors is the only authority that may obligate the County for a non-cancelable multi-year agreement.

#### **B. NOTICES**

All notices, claims, correspondence, and/or statements authorized or required by this Agreement shall be addressed as follows:

DPSS:

Department of Public Social Services Contracts Administration Unit P.O. Box 7789

Riverside, CA 92513

Invoices and other financial documents:

Department of Public Social Services
Fiscal/Management Reporting Unit

4060 County Circle Drive Riverside, CA 92503

CONTRACTOR:

Perris Valley Recovery Executive Director

236 E Third Street Suite B

Perris, CA 92557

#### Contractor "Remit To" address:

All notices shall be deemed effective when they are made in writing, addressed as indicated above, and deposited in the United States mail. Any notices, correspondence, reports and/or statements authorized or required by this Agreement, addressed in any other fashion will not be acceptable.

#### C. AVAILABILITY OF FUNDING

DPSS' obligation for payment of any Agreement is contingent upon the availability of funds from which payment can be made.

#### D. DISPUTES

- 1. The parties shall attempt to resolve any disputes amicably at the working level. If that is not successful, the dispute shall be referred to the senior management of the parties. Any dispute relating to this Agreement which is not resolved by the parties shall be decided by the County's Compliance Contract Officer who shall furnish the decision in writing. The decision of the County's Compliance Contract Officer shall be final and conclusive unless determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to have been fraudulent, capricious, arbitrary, or so grossly erroneous as necessarily to imply bad faith. The Contractor shall proceed diligently with the performance of this Agreement pending the resolution of a dispute.
- 2. Prior to the filing of any legal action related to this Agreement, the parties shall be obligated to attend a mediation session in Riverside County before a neutral third party mediator. A second mediation session shall be required if the first session is not successful. The parties shall share the cost of the mediations.

#### E. SANCTIONS

Failure by the Contractor to comply with any of the provisions covenants, requirements, or conditions of this Agreement including, but not limited to, reporting and evaluation requirements, shall be a material breach of this Agreement. In such event, DPSS may immediately terminate this Agreement and may take other remedies available by law, or otherwise specified in this Agreement. DPSS may also:

- 1. Afford the Contractor a time period within which to cure the breach, the period of which shall be established at the sole discretion of DPSS; and/or
- 2. Discontinue reimbursement to the Contractor for, and during the period in which the Contractor is in breach, the reimbursement of which the Contractor shall not be entitled to recover later; and/or
- 3. Withhold funds pending a cure of the breach; and/or
- 4. Offset against any monies billed by the Contractor but yet unpaid by DPSS. DPSS shall give the Contractor notice of any action pursuant to this paragraph, the notice of which shall be effective when given.

#### F. GOVERNING LAW

This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted according to the laws of the State of California. Any legal action related to the interpretation or performance of this Agreement shall be filed only in the appropriate courts located in the County of Riverside, State of California. Should action be brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of the Agreement,

the prevailing party shall be entitled to attorney's fees in addition to whatever other relief are granted.

#### G. MODIFICATION OF TERMS

No addition to or alteration of the terms of this Agreement, whether by written or verbal understanding of the parties, their officers, agents, or employees shall be valid unless made in writing and formally approved and executed by both parties. Requests to modify fiscal provisions shall be submitted no later than April 1.

#### H. NON-APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS

The County obligation for payment of this Agreement beyond the current fiscal year end is contingent upon and limited by the availability of County funding from which payment can be made, and invoices shall be rendered "monthly" in arrears. In the State of California, Government agencies are not allowed to pay excess interest and late charges, per Government Codes, Section 926.10. No legal liability on the part of the County shall arise for payment beyond June 30 of each calendar year unless funds are made available for such payment. In the event that such funds are not forthcoming for any reason, County shall immediately notify Contractor in writing; and this Agreement shall be deemed terminated, have no further force, and effect.

#### I. TERMINATION

This Agreement may be terminated without cause by either party by giving thirty (30) days written notification to the other party. In the event DPSS elects to abandon, indefinitely postpone, or terminate the Agreement, DPSS shall make payments for all services performed up to the date that written notice was given in a prorated amount.

#### J. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, and all prior or contemporaneous agreements of any kind or nature relating to the same shall be deemed to be merged herein.

#### **Exhibit A – Contractor Payment Request**

### COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SOCIAL SERVICES

#### CONTRACTOR PAYMENT REQUEST

Department of Public Social Services	From:	Remit to Name	very	<del></del> -
Attn: Management Reporting Unit 4060 County Circle Drive		Address	<del></del>	<del></del>
Riverside, CA 92503		Contractor Name		
		Contract Number		
Total amount requested	_ for the period of		20	
Select Payment Type(s) Below:				
Advance Payment \$ (if allowed by Contract/MOU)		Actual Payment \$ (Same amount a	as 2076B if needed)	<del>-</del>
Unit of Service Payment \$	<del></del>	# of Units) X	(\$)	
# of Units) X (\$)	<u> </u>	# of Units) X	(\$)	
# of Units) X (\$)	<u> </u>	# of Units) X	(\$)	
Any questions regarding this request should be direct	-td-t			
any questions regarding this request should be direct	Name		Phone Numbe	<u>r</u>
I hereby certify under penalty of perjury that to the l	est of my knowled	ge the above is true an	nd correct	
Authorized Signature	Title		nd correct  Date	
	Title			
Authorized Signature	Title			
Authorized Signature  FOR DPSS USE ONLY (DO NOT WRITE BEI	Title		Date	
Authorized Signature  FOR DPSS USE ONLY (DO NOT WRITE BEI  Business Unit (5)  Account (6)	Title OW THIS LINE)  Purchase Order # (10)  Amount Authorized		Date Invoice #	
Authorized Signature  FOR DPSS USE ONLY (DO NOT WRITE BEI  Business Unit (5)  Account (6)  Fund (5)	Title OW THIS LINE)  Purchase Order # (10)  Amount Authorized		Date Invoice #	
Authorized Signature  FOR DPSS USE ONLY (DO NOT WRITE BEI  Business Unit (5)  Account (6)	Title OW THIS LINE)  Purchase Order # (10)  Amount Authorized		Date Invoice #	
Authorized Signature  FOR DPSS USE ONLY (DO NOT WRITE BEI  Business Unit (5)  Account (6)  Fund (5)	Title OW THIS LINE)  Purchase Order # (10)  Amount Authorized		Date Invoice #	
Authorized Signature  FOR DPSS USE ONLY (DO NOT WRITE BEI  Business Unit (5)  Account (6)  Fund (5)	Title OW THIS LINE)  Purchase Order # (10)  Amount Authorized	different from amount req	Date Invoice #	
Authorized Signature  FOR DPSS USE ONLY (DO NOT WRITE BEI  Business Unit (5)  Account (6)  Fund (5)  Dept ID (10)	Purchase Order # (10)  Amount Authorized If amount authorized is	different from amount req	Date  Invoice #  uest, please explain:	
Authorized Signature  FOR DPSS USE ONLY (DO NOT WRITE BEI  Business Unit (5)  Account (6)  Fund (5)  Dept ID (10)  Program (5)	Purchase Order # (10)  Amount Authorized If amount authorized is  Program (if applicable)	different from amount req	Date  Invoice #  uest, please explain:  Date	
Authorized Signature  FOR DPSS USE ONLY (DO NOT WRITE BEI  Business Unit (5)  Account (6)  Fund (5)  Dept ID (10)  Program (5)  Class (10)	Purchase Order # (10)  Amount Authorized If amount authorized is  Program (if applicable)  Management Reporting	different from amount req	Date  Invoice #  uest, please explain:  Date	

#### DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SOCIAL SERVICES FORMS

Mailing Instructions: When completed, these forms will summarize all of your claims for payment. Your Claims Packet will include DPSS 2076A, 2076B (if required). invoices, payroll verification, and copies of canceled checks attached, receipts, bank statements, sign-in sheets, daily logs, mileage logs, and other back-up documentation needed to comply with Contract/MOU.

Mail Claims Packet to address shown on upper left corner of DPSS 2076A. [see method, time, and schedule/condition of payments). (Please type or print information on all DPSS Forms.)

DPSS 2076A
CONTRACTOR PAYMENT REQUEST

"Remit to Name"
The legal name of your agency.

"Address"

The remit to address used when this contract was established for your agency. All address changes must be submitted for processing prior to use.

"Contractor Name"

Business name, if different than legal name (if not leave blank).

"Contract Number"
Can be found on the first page of your contract.

"Amount Requested"
Fill in the total amount and billing period you are requesting payment for.

"Payment Type"

Check the box and enter the dollar amount for the type(s) of payment(s) you are requesting payment for.

"Any questions regarding..."
Fill in the name and phone number of the person to be contacted should any questions arise regarding your request for payment.

"Authorized Signature, Title, and Date (Contractor's)
Self-explanatory (required). Original Signature needed for payment.

EVERYTHING BELOW THE THICK SOLID LINE IS FOR DPSS USE ONLY AND SHOULD BE LEFT BLANK.

#### Exhibit B - Assurance of Compliance

## ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE RIVERSIDE COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SOCIAL SERVICES NONDISCRIMINATION IN STATE AND FEDERALLY ASSISTED PROGRAMS

Perris Valle	y Recovery	
NAME OF OF	RGANIZATION	

HEREBY AGREES THAT it will comply with Title VI and VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as amended; the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 as amended; the Food Stamp Act of 1977, as amended and in particular section 272.6; Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990; California Civil Code Section 51 et seq., as amended; California Government Code section 11135-11139.5, as amended; California Government Code section 12940 (c), (h) (1), (i), and (j); California Government Code section 4450; Title 22, California Code of Regulations section 98000 – 98413; Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations, Section 3105A(e); the Dymally-Alatorre Bilingual Services Act (California Government Code Section 7290-7299.8); Section 1808 of the Removal of Barriers to Interethnic Adoption Act of 1996; and other applicable federal and state laws, as well as their implementing regulations [including 45 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Parts 80, 84, and 91, 7 CFR Part 15, and 28 CFR Part 42], by ensuring that employment practices and the administration of public assistance and social services programs are nondiscriminatory, to the effect that no person shall because of ethnic group identification, age, sex, color, disability, medical condition, national origin, race, ancestry, marital status, religion, religious creed or political belief be excluded from participation in or be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subject to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal or state financial assistance; and HEREBY GIVE ASSURANCE THAT it will immediately take any measures necessary to effectuate this agreement.

THIS ASSURANCE is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all federal and state assistance; and THE VENDOR/RECIPIENT HEREBY GIVES ASSURANCE THAT administrative methods/procedures which have the effect of subjecting individuals to discrimination or defeating the objectives of the California Department of Social Services (CDSS) Manual of Policies and Procedures (MPP) Chapter 21, will be prohibited.

BY ACCEPTING THIS ASSURANCE, the vendor/recipient agrees to compile data, maintain records and submit reports as required, to permit effective enforcement of the aforementioned laws, rules and regulations and permit authorized CDSS and/or federal government personnel, during normal working hours, to review such records, books and accounts as needed to ascertain compliance. If there are any violations of this assurance, CDSS shall have the right to invoke fiscal sanctions or other legal remedies in accordance with Welfare and Institutions Code section 10605, or Government Code section 11135-11139.5, or any other laws, or the issue may be referred to the appropriate federal agency for further compliance action and enforcement of this assurance.

THIS ASSURANCE is binding on the vendor/recipient directly or through contract, license, or other provider services, as long as it receives federal or state assistance.

Date	Director's Signature							
236 E Third Street Suite B Perris, CA 92557								
Address of Vendor/Recipient								
(08/13/01)					CR50-Vend	or Assura	nce of (	Compliance

#### Exhibit C - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement

#### Exhibit B - HIPAA Business Associate Addendum to the Agreement

#### Addendum to Contract

Between the County of Riverside and Perris Valley Recovery

This HIPAA Business Associate Agreement (the "Addendum") supplements, and is made part of Agreement #CS-03725 (the "Underlying Agreement") between the County of Riverside ("County") and Perris Valley Recovery ("Contractor") and shall be effective as of the date the Underlying Agreement is approved by both Parties (the "Effective Date").

#### **RECITALS**

WHEREAS, County and Contractor entered into the Underlying Agreement pursuant to which the Contractor provides services to County, and in conjunction with the provision of such services certain protected health information ("PHI") and/or certain electronic protected health information ("ePHI") may be created by or made available to Contractor for the purposes of carrying out its obligations under the Underlying Agreement; and,

WHEREAS, the provisions of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 ("HIPAA"), Public Law 104-191 enacted August 21, 1996, and the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act ("HITECH") of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, Public Law 111-5 enacted February 17, 2009, and the laws and regulations promulgated subsequent thereto, as may be amended from time to time, are applicable to the protection of any use or disclosure of PHI and/or ePHI pursuant to the Underlying Agreement; and,

WHEREAS, County is a covered entity, as defined in the Privacy Rule; and,

WHEREAS, to the extent County discloses PHI and/or ePHI to Contractor or Contractor creates, receives, maintains, transmits, or has access to PHI and/or ePHI of County, Contractor is a business associate, as defined in the Privacy Rule; and,

WHEREAS, pursuant to 42 USC §17931 and §17934, certain provisions of the Security Rule and Privacy Rule apply to a business associate of a covered entity in the same manner that they apply to the covered entity, the additional security and privacy requirements of HITECH are applicable to business associates and must be incorporated into the business associate agreement, and a business associate is liable for civil and criminal penalties for failure to comply with these security and/or privacy provisions; and,

WHEREAS, the parties mutually agree that any use or disclosure of PHI and/or ePHI must be in compliance with the Privacy Rule, Security Rule, HIPAA, HITECH and any other applicable law; and,

WHEREAS, the parties intend to enter into this Addendum to address the requirements and obligations set forth in the Privacy Rule, Security Rule, HITECH and HIPAA as they apply to Contractor as a business associate of County, including the establishment of permitted and required uses and disclosures of PHI and/or ePHI created or received by Contractor during the course of performing functions, services and activities on behalf of County, and appropriate limitations and conditions on such uses and disclosures;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained herein, the parties agree as follows:

- 1. <u>Definitions</u>. Terms used, but not otherwise defined, in this Addendum shall have the same meaning as those terms in HITECH, HIPAA, Security Rule and/or Privacy Rule, as may be amended from time to time.
  - A. "Breach" when used in connection with PHI means the acquisition, access, use or disclosure of PHI in a manner not permitted under subpart E of the Privacy Rule which compromises the security or privacy of the PHI, and shall have the meaning given such term in 45 CFR §164.402.
    - (1) Except as provided below in Paragraph (2) of this definition, acquisition, access, use, or disclosure of PHI in a manner not permitted by subpart E of the Privacy Rule is presumed to be a breach unless Contractor demonstrates that there is a low probability that the PHI has been compromised based on a risk assessment of at least the following four factors:
      - (a) The nature and extent of the PHI involved, including the types of identifiers and the likelihood of reidentification;
      - (b) The unauthorized person who used the PHI or to whom the disclosure was made;
      - (c) Whether the PHI was actually acquired or viewed; and
      - (d) The extent to which the risk to the PHI has been mitigated.

#### (2) Breach excludes:

- (a) Any unintentional acquisition, access or use of PHI by a workforce member or person acting under the authority of a covered entity or business associate, if such acquisition, access or use was made in good faith and within the scope of authority and does not result in further use or disclosure in a manner not permitted under subpart E of the Privacy Rule.
- (b) Any inadvertent disclosure by a person who is authorized to access PHI at a covered entity or business associate to another person authorized to access PHI at the same covered entity, business associate, or organized health care arrangement in which County participates, and the information received as a result of such disclosure is not further used or disclosed in a manner not permitted by subpart E of the Privacy Rule.
- (c) A disclosure of PHI where a covered entity or business associate has a good faith belief that an unauthorized person to whom the disclosure was made would not reasonably have been able to retain such information.
- B. "Business associate" has the meaning given such term in 45 CFR §164.501, including but not limited to a subcontractor that creates, receives, maintains, transmits or accesses PHI on behalf of the business associate.
- C. "Data aggregation" has the meaning given such term in 45 CFR §164.501.
- D. "Designated record set" as defined in 45 CFR §164.501 means a group of records maintained by or for a covered entity that may include: the medical records and billing records about individuals maintained by or for a covered health care provider; the enrollment, payment, claims adjudication, and case or medical management record systems maintained by or for a health plan; or, used, in whole or in part, by or for the covered entity to make decisions about individuals.
- E. "Electronic protected health information" ("ePHI") as defined in 45 CFR §160.103 means protected health information transmitted by or maintained in electronic media.

- F. "Electronic health record" means an electronic record of health-related information on an individual that is created, gathered, managed, and consulted by authorized health care clinicians and staff, and shall have the meaning given such term in 42 USC §17921(5).
- G. "Health care operations" has the meaning given such term in 45 CFR §164.501.
- H. "Individual" as defined in 45 CFR §160.103 means the person who is the subject of protected health information.
- I. "Person" as defined in 45 CFR §160.103 means a natural person, trust or estate, partnership, corporation, professional association or corporation, or other entity, public or private.
- J. "Privacy Rule" means the HIPAA regulations codified at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, Subparts A 17 and E.
- K. "Protected health information" ("PHI") has the meaning given such term in 45 CFR §160.103, which includes ePHI.
- L. "Required by law" has the meaning given such term in 45 CFR §164.103.
- M. "Secretary" means the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 22 ("HHS").
- N. "Security incident" as defined in 45 CFR §164.304 means the attempted or successful unauthorized access, use, disclosure, modification, or destruction of information or interference with system operations in an information system.
- O. "Security Rule" means the HIPAA Regulations codified at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, Subparts 27 A and C.
- P. "Subcontractor" as defined in 45 CFR §160.103 means a person to whom a business associate delegates a function, activity, or service, other than in the capacity of a member of the workforce of such business associate.
- Q. "Unsecured protected health information" and "unsecured PHI" as defined in 45 CFR §164.402 means PHI not rendered unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized persons through use of a technology or methodology specified by the Secretary in the guidance issued 34 under 42 USC §17932(h)(2).

#### 2. Scope of Use and Disclosure by Contractor of County's PHI and/or ePHI.

- A. Except as otherwise provided in this Addendum, Contractor may use, disclose, or access PHI and/or ePHI as necessary to perform any and all obligations of Contractor under the Underlying Agreement or to perform functions, activities or services for, or on behalf of, County as specified in this Addendum, if such use or disclosure does not violate HIPAA, HITECH, the Privacy Rule and/or Security Rule.
- B. Unless otherwise limited herein, in addition to any other uses and/or disclosures permitted or authorized by this Addendum or required by law, in accordance with 45 CFR §164.504(e)(2), Contractor may:
  - (1) Use PHI and/or ePHI if necessary for Contractor's proper management and administration and to carry out its legal responsibilities; and,
  - (2) Disclose PHI and/or ePHI for the purpose of Contractor's proper management and administration or to carry out its legal responsibilities, only if:
    - (a) The disclosure is required by law; or,
    - (b) Contractor obtains reasonable assurances, in writing, from the person to whom Contractor will Hold such PHI disclose such PHI and/or ePHI that the person will:

- (i) and/or ePHI in confidence and use or further disclose it only for the purpose for which Contractor disclosed it to the person, or as required by law; and,
- (ii) Notify Contractor of any instances of which it becomes aware in which the confidentiality of the information has been breached; and,
- (3) Use PHI to provide data aggregation services relating to the health care operations of County pursuant to the Underlying Agreement or as requested by County; and,
- (4) De-identify all PHI and/or ePHI of County received by Contractor under this Addendum provided that the de-identification conforms to the requirements of the Privacy Rule and/or 24 Security Rule and does not preclude timely payment and/or claims processing and receipt.
- C. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in any instance where applicable state and/or federal laws and/or regulations are more stringent in their requirements than the provisions of HIPAA, including, but not limited to, prohibiting disclosure of mental health and/or substance abuse records, the applicable state and/or federal laws and/or regulations shall control the disclosure of records.

#### 3. Prohibited Uses and Disclosures.

- A. Contractor may neither use, disclose, nor access PHI and/or ePHI in a manner not authorized by the Underlying Agreement or this Addendum without patient authorization or de-identification of the PHI and/or ePHI and as authorized in writing from County.
- B. Contractor may neither use, disclose, nor access PHI and/or ePHI it receives from County or from another business associate of County, except as permitted or required by this Addendum, or as required by law.
- C. Contractor agrees not to make any disclosure of PHI and/or ePHI that County would be prohibited from making.
- D. Contractor shall not use or disclose PHI for any purpose prohibited by the Privacy Rule, Security Rule, HIPAA and/or HITECH, including, but not limited to 42 USC §17935 and §17936. Contractor agrees:
  - (1) Not to use or disclose PHI for fundraising, unless pursuant to the Underlying Agreement and only if permitted by and in compliance with the requirements of 45 CFR §164.514(f) or 45 CFR §164.508;
  - (2) Not to use or disclose PHI for marketing, as defined in 45 CFR §164.501, unless pursuant to the Underlying Agreement and only if permitted by and in compliance with the requirements of 45 CFR §164.508(a)(3);
  - (3) Not to disclose PHI, except as otherwise required by law, to a health plan for purposes of carrying out payment or health care operations, if the individual has requested this restriction pursuant to 42 USC §17935(a) and 45 CFR §164.522, and has paid out of pocket in full for the health care item or service to which the PHI solely relates; and,
  - (4) Not to receive, directly or indirectly, remuneration in exchange for PHI, or engage in any act that would constitute a sale of PHI, as defined in 45 CFR §164.502(a)(5)(ii), unless permitted by the Underlying Agreement and in compliance with the requirements of a valid authorization under 45 CFR §164.508(a)(4). This prohibition shall not apply to payment by County to Contractor for services provided pursuant to the Underlying Agreement.

#### 4. Obligations of County.

- A. County agrees to make its best efforts to notify Contractor promptly in writing of any restrictions on the use or disclosure of PHI and/or ePHI agreed to by County that may affect Contractor's ability to perform its obligations under the Underlying Agreement, or this Addendum.
- B. County agrees to make its best efforts to promptly notify Contractor in writing of any changes in, or revocation of, permission by any individual to use or disclose PHI and/or ePHI, if such changes or revocation may affect Contractor's ability to perform its obligations under the Underlying Agreement, or this Addendum.
- C. County agrees to make its best efforts to promptly notify Contractor in writing of any known limitation(s) in its notice of privacy practices to the extent that such limitation may affect Contractor's use or disclosure of PHI and/or ePHI.
- D. County agrees not to request Contractor to use or disclose PHI and/or ePHI in any manner that would not be permissible under HITECH, HIPAA, the Privacy Rule, and/or Security Rule.
- E. County agrees to obtain any authorizations necessary for the use or disclosure of PHI and/or ePHI, so that Contractor can perform its obligations under this Addendum and/or Underlying Agreement.
- 5. Obligations of Contractor. In connection with the use or disclosure of PHI and/or ePHI, Contractor agrees to:
  - A. Use or disclose PHI only if such use or disclosure complies with each applicable requirement of 45 CFR §164.504(e). Contractor shall also comply with the additional privacy requirements that are applicable to covered entities in HITECH, as may be amended from time to time.
  - B. Not use or further disclose PHI and/or ePHI other than as permitted or required by this Addendum or as required by law. Contractor shall promptly notify County if Contractor is required by law to disclose PHI and/or ePHI.
  - C. Use appropriate safeguards and comply, where applicable, with the Security Rule with respect to ePHI, to prevent use or disclosure of PHI and/or ePHI other than as provided for by this Addendum.
  - D. Mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect that is known to Contractor of a use or disclosure of PHI and/or ePHI by Contractor in violation of this Addendum.
  - E. Report to County any use or disclosure of PHI and/or ePHI not provided for by this Addendum or otherwise in violation of HITECH, HIPAA, the Privacy Rule, and/or Security Rule of which Contractor becomes aware, including breaches of unsecured PHI as required by 45 CFR §164.410.
  - F. In accordance with 45 CFR §164.502(e)(1)(ii), require that any subcontractors that create, receive, maintain, transmit or access PHI on behalf of the Contractor agree through contract to the same restrictions and conditions that apply to Contractor with respect to such PHI and/or ePHI, including the restrictions and conditions pursuant to this Addendum.
  - G. Make available to County or the Secretary, in the time and manner designated by County or Secretary, Contractor's internal practices, books and records relating to the use, disclosure and privacy protection of PHI received from County, or created or received by Contractor on behalf of County, for purposes of determining, investigating or auditing Contractor's and/or County's compliance with the Privacy Rule.
  - H. Request, use or disclose only the minimum amount of PHI necessary to accomplish the intended purpose of the request, use or disclosure in accordance with 42 USC §17935(b) and 45 CFR §164.502(b)(1).
  - I. Comply with requirements of satisfactory assurances under 45 CFR §164.512 relating to notice or qualified protective order in response to a third party's subpoena, discovery request, or other lawful process for the

- disclosure of PHI, which Contractor shall promptly notify County upon Contractor's receipt of such request from a third party.
- J. Not require an individual to provide patient authorization for use or disclosure of PHI as a condition for treatment, payment, enrollment in any health plan (including the health plan administered by County), or eligibility of benefits, unless otherwise excepted under 45 CFR §164.508(b)(4) and authorized in writing by County.
- K. Use appropriate administrative, technical and physical safeguards to prevent inappropriate use, disclosure, or access of PHI and/or ePHI.
- L. Obtain and maintain knowledge of applicable laws and regulations related to HIPAA and HITECH, as may be amended from time to time.
- M. Comply with the requirements of the Privacy Rule that apply to the County to the extentContractor is to carry out County's obligations under the Privacy Rule.
- N. Take reasonable steps to cure or end any pattern of activity or practice of its subcontractor of which Contractor becomes aware that constitute a material breach or violation of the subcontractor's obligations under the business associate contract with Contractor, and if such steps are unsuccessful, Contractor agrees to terminate its contract with the subcontractor if feasible.
- 6. Access to PHI, Amendment and Disclosure Accounting. Contractor agrees to:
  - A. Access to PHI, including ePHI. Provide access to PHI, including ePHI if maintained electronically, in a designated record set to County or an individual as directed by County, within five (5) days of request from County, to satisfy the requirements of 45 CFR §164.524.
  - B. Amendment of PHI. Make PHI available for amendment and incorporate amendments to PHI in a designated record set County directs or agrees to at the request of an individual, within fifteen (15) days of receiving a written request from County, in accordance with 45 CFR §164.526.
  - C. Accounting of disclosures of PHI and electronic health record. Assist County to fulfill its obligations to provide accounting of disclosures of PHI under 45 CFR §164.528 and, where applicable, electronic health records under 42 USC §17935(c) if Contractor uses or maintains electronic health records. Contractor shall:
    - (1) Document such disclosures of PHI and/or electronic health records, and information related to such disclosures, as would be required for County to respond to a request by an individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI and/or electronic health record in accordance with 45 CFR §164.528.
    - (2) Within fifteen (15) days of receiving a written request from County, provide to County or any individual as directed by County information collected in accordance with this section to permit County to respond to a request by an individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI and/or electronic health record.
    - (3) Make available for County information required by this Section 6.C for six (6) years preceding the individual's request for accounting of disclosures of PHI, and for three (3) years preceding the individual's request for accounting of disclosures of electronic health record.
- 7. Security of ePHI. In the event County discloses ePHI to Contractor or Contractor needs to create, receive, maintain, transmit or have access to County ePHI, in accordance with 42 USC §17931 and 45 CFR §164.314(a)(2)(i), and §164.306, Contractor shall:
  - A. Comply with the applicable requirements of the Security Rule, and implement administrative, physical, and technical safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability

- of ePHI that Contractor creates, receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of County in accordance with 45 CFR §164.308, §164.310, and §164.312;
- B. Comply with each of the requirements of 45 CFR §164.316 relating to the implementation of policies, procedures and documentation requirements with respect to ePHI;
- C. Protect against any reasonably anticipated threats or hazards to the security or integrity of ePHI;
- D. Protect against any reasonably anticipated uses or disclosures of ePHI that are not permitted or required under the Privacy Rule;
- E. Ensure compliance with the Security Rule by Contractor's workforce;
- F. In accordance with 45 CFR §164.308(b)(2), require that any subcontractors that create, receive, maintain, transmit, or access ePHI on behalf of Contractor agree through contract to the same restrictions and requirements contained in this Addendum and comply with the applicable requirements of the Security Rule;
- G. Report to County any security incident of which Contractor becomes aware, including breaches of unsecured PHI as required by 45 CFR §164.410; and,
- H. Comply with any additional security requirements that are applicable to covered entities in Title 42 (Public Health and Welfare) of the United States Code, as may be amended from time to time, including but not limited to HITECH.
- 8. <u>Breach of Unsecured PHI</u>. In the case of breach of unsecured PHI, Contractor shall comply with the applicable provisions of 42 USC §17932 and 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart D, including but not limited to 45 CFR §164.410.
  - A. **Discovery and notification.** Following the discovery of a breach of unsecured PHI, Contractor shall notify County in writing of such breach without unreasonable delay and in no case later than 60 calendar days after discovery of a breach, except as provided in 45 CFR §164.412.
    - (1) **Breaches treated as discovered.** A breach is treated as discovered by Contractor as of the first day on which such breach is known to Contractor or, by exercising reasonable diligence, would have been known to Contractor, which includes any person, other than the person committing the breach, who is an employee, officer, or other agent of Contractor (determined in accordance with the federal common law of agency).
    - (2) Content of notification. The written notification to County relating to breach of unsecured PHI shall include, to the extent possible, the following information if known (or can be reasonably obtained) by Contractor:
      - (a) The identification of each individual whose unsecured PHI has been, or is reasonably believed by Contractor to have been accessed, acquired, used or disclosed during the breach;
      - (b) A brief description of what happened, including the date of the breach and the date of the discovery of the breach, if known;
      - (c) A description of the types of unsecured PHI involved in the breach, such as whether full name, social security number, date of birth, home address, account number, diagnosis, disability code, or other types of information were involved;
      - (d) Any steps individuals should take to protect themselves from potential harm resulting from the breach;

- (e) A brief description of what Contractor is doing to investigate the breach, to mitigate harm to individuals, and to protect against any further breaches; and,
- (f) Contact procedures for individuals to ask questions or learn additional information, which shall include a toll-free telephone number, an e-mail address, web site, or postal address.
- B. Cooperation. With respect to any breach of unsecured PHI reported by Contractor, Contractor shall cooperate with County and shall provide County with any information requested by County to enable County to fulfill in a timely manner its own reporting and notification obligations, including but not limited to providing notice to individuals, prominent media outlets and the Secretary in accordance with 42 USC §17932 and 45 CFR §164.404, §164.406 and §164.408.
- C. Breach log. To the extent breach of unsecured PHI involves less than 500 individuals, Contractor shall maintain a log or other documentation of such breaches and provide such log or other documentation on an annual basis to County not later than fifteen (15) days after the end of each calendar year for submission to the Secretary.
- D. Delay of notification authorized by law enforcement. If Contractor delays notification of breach of unsecured PHI pursuant to a law enforcement official's statement that required notification, notice or posting would impede a criminal investigation or cause damage to national security, Contractor shall maintain documentation sufficient to demonstrate its compliance with the requirements of 45 CFR §164.412.
- E. Payment of costs. With respect to any breach of unsecured PHI caused solely by the Contractor's failure to comply with one or more of its obligations under this Addendum and/or the provisions of HITECH, HIPAA, the Privacy Rule or the Security Rule, Contractor agrees to pay any and all costs associated with providing all legally required notifications to individuals, media outlets, and the Secretary. This provision shall not be construed to limit or diminish Contractor's obligations to indemnify, defend and hold harmless County under Section 9 of this Addendum.
- F. **Documentation.** Pursuant to 45 CFR §164.414(b), in the event Contractor's use or disclosure of PHI and/or ePHI violates the Privacy Rule, Contractor shall maintain documentation sufficient to demonstrate that all notifications were made by Contractor as required by 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart D, or that such use or disclosure did not constitute a breach, including Contractor's completed risk assessment and investigation documentation.
- G. Additional State Reporting Requirements. The parties agree that this Section 8.G applies only if and/or when County, in its capacity as a licensed clinic, health facility, home health agency, or hospice, is required to report unlawful or unauthorized access, use, or disclosure of medical information under the more stringent requirements of California Health & Safety Code §1280.15. For purposes of this Section 8.G, "unauthorized" has the meaning given such term in California Health & Safety Code §1280.15(j)(2).
  - (1) Contractor agrees to assist County to fulfill its reporting obligations to affected patients and to the California Department of Public Health ("CDPH") in a timely manner under the California Health & Safety Code §1280.15.
  - (2) Contractor agrees to report to County any unlawful or unauthorized access, use, or disclosure of patient's medical information without unreasonable delay and no later than two (2) business days after Contractor detects such incident. Contractor further agrees such report shall be made in writing, and shall include substantially the same types of information listed above in Section 8.A.2 (Content of Notification) as applicable to the unlawful or unauthorized access, use, or disclosure as defined above in this section, understanding and acknowledging that the term "breach" as used in Section 8.A.2 does not apply to California Health & Safety Code §1280.15.

## 9. Hold Harmless/Indemnification.

- A. Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless County, all Agencies, Districts, Special Districts and Departments of County, their respective directors, officers, Board of Supervisors, elected and appointed officials, employees, agents and representatives from any liability whatsoever, based or asserted upon any services of Contractor, its officers, employees, subcontractors, agents or representatives arising out of or in any way relating to this Addendum, including but not limited to property damage, bodily injury, death, or any other element of any kind or nature whatsoever arising from the performance of Contractor, its officers, agents, employees, subcontractors, agents or representatives from this Addendum. Contractor shall defend, at its sole expense, all costs and fees, including but not limited to attorney fees, cost of investigation, defense and settlements or awards, of County, all Agencies, Districts, Special Districts and Departments of County, their respective directors, officers, Board of Supervisors, elected and appointed officials, employees, agents or representatives in any claim or action based upon such alleged acts or omissions.
- B. With respect to any action or claim subject to indemnification herein by Contractor, Contractor shall, at their sole cost, have the right to use counsel of their choice, subject to the approval of County, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, and shall have the right to adjust, settle, or compromise any such action or claim without the prior consent of County; provided, however, that any such adjustment, settlement or compromise in no manner whatsoever limits or circumscribes Contractor's indemnification to County as set forth herein. Contractor's obligation to defend, indemnify and hold harmless County shall be subject to County having given Contractor written notice within a reasonable period of time of the claim or of the commencement of the related action, as the case may be, and information and reasonable assistance, at Contractor's expense, for the defense or settlement thereof. Contractor's obligation hereunder shall be satisfied when Contractor has provided to County the appropriate form of dismissal relieving County from any liability for the action or claim involved.
- C. The specified insurance limits required in the Underlying Agreement of this Addendum shall in no way limit or circumscribe Contractor's obligations to indemnify and hold harmless County herein from third party claims arising from issues of this Addendum.
- D. In the event there is conflict between this clause and California Civil Code §2782, this clause shall be interpreted to comply with Civil Code §2782. Such interpretation shall not relieve the Contractor from indemnifying County to the fullest extent allowed by law.
- E. In the event there is a conflict between this indemnification clause and an indemnification clause contained in the Underlying Agreement of this Addendum, this indemnification shall only apply to the subject issues included within this Addendum.
- 10. <u>Term.</u> This Addendum shall commence upon the Effective Date and shall terminate when all PHI and/or ePHI provided by County to Contractor, or created or received by Contractor on behalf of County, is destroyed or returned to County, or, if it is infeasible to return or destroy PHI and/ePHI, protections are extended to such information, in accordance with section 11.B of this Addendum.

## 11. Termination.

- A. Termination for Breach of Contract. A breach of any provision of this Addendum by either party shall constitute a material breach of the Underlying Agreement and will provide grounds for terminating this Addendum and the Underlying Agreement with or without an opportunity to cure the breach, notwithstanding any provision in the Underlying Agreement to the contrary. Either party, upon written notice to the other party describing the breach, may take any of the following actions:
  - (1) Terminate the Underlying Agreement and this Addendum, effective immediately, if the other party breaches a material provision of this Addendum.

- (2) Provide the other party with an opportunity to cure the alleged material breach and in the event the other party fails to cure the breach to the satisfaction of the non-breaching party in a timely manner, the non-breaching party has the right to immediately terminate the Underlying Agreement and this Addendum.
- (3) If termination of the Underlying Agreement is not feasible, the breaching party, upon the request of the non-breaching party, shall implement, at its own expense, a plan to cure the breach and report regularly on its compliance with such plan to the non-breaching party.

## B. Effect of Termination.

- (1) Upon termination of this Addendum, for any reason, Contractor shall return or, if agreed to in writing by County, destroy all PHI and/or ePHI received from County, or created or received by the Contractor on behalf of County, and, in the event of destruction, Contractor shall certify such destruction, in writing, to County. This provision shall apply to all PHI and/or ePHI which are in the possession of subcontractors or agents of Contractor. Contractor shall retain no copies of PHI and/or ePHI, except as provided below in paragraph (2) of this section.
- (2) In the event that Contractor determines that returning or destroying the PHI and/or ePHI is not feasible, Contractor shall provide written notification to County of the conditions that make such return or destruction not feasible. Upon determination by Contractor that return or destruction of PHI and/or ePHI is not feasible, Contractor shall extend the protections of this Addendum to such PHI and/or ePHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI and/or ePHI to those purposes which make the return or destruction not feasible, for so long as Contractor maintains such PHI and/or ePHI.

#### 12. General Provisions.

- A. Retention Period. Whenever Contractor is required to document or maintain documentation pursuant to the terms of this Addendum, Contractor shall retain such documentation for 6 years from the date of its creation or as otherwise prescribed by law, whichever is later.
- B. Amendment. The parties agree to take such action as is necessary to amend this Addendum from time to time as is necessary for County to comply with HITECH, the Privacy Rule, Security Rule, and HIPAA generally.
- C. Survival. The obligations of Contractor under Sections 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 11.B and 12.A of this Addendum shall survive the termination or expiration of this Addendum.
- D. Regulatory and Statutory References. A reference in this Addendum to a section in HITECH, HIPAA, the Privacy Rule and/or Security Rule means the section(s) as in effect or as amended.
- E. Conflicts. The provisions of this Addendum shall prevail over any provisions in the Underlying Agreement that conflict or appear inconsistent with any provision in this Addendum.

## F. Interpretation of Addendum.

- (1) This Addendum shall be construed to be part of the Underlying Agreement as one document. The purpose is to supplement the Underlying Agreement to include the requirements of the Privacy Rule, Security Rule, HIPAA and HITECH.
- (2) Any ambiguity between this Addendum and the Underlying Agreement shall be resolved to permit County to comply with the Privacy Rule, Security Rule, HIPAA and HITECH generally.

G. Notices to County. All notifications required to be given by Contractor to County pursuant to the terms of this Addendum shall be made in writing and delivered to the County both by fax and to both of the addresses listed below by either registered or certified mail return receipt requested or guaranteed overnight mail with tracing capability, or at such other address as County may hereafter designate. All notices to County provided by Contractor pursuant to this Section shall be deemed given or made when received by County.

County HIPAA Privacy Officer: HIPAA Privacy Manager				
County HIPAA Privacy Officer Address: P.O. Box 1569 Riverside, CA 92502				
County HIPAA Privacy Officer Fax Number: (951) 955-HIPAA or (95	51) 955-4472			
——————————————————————————————————————	RSONNEL (	ONLY—	. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	- 1 - 1 - 1
County Departmental Officer:				
County Departmental Officer Title:				
County Department Address:				
County Department Fax Number:				

County of Riverside BAA 09/2013

## Exhibit D – Geographical Zone List

Zone 2 Central			
City	Zip code		
Banning	•	92220	
Beaumont/Cherry Valley		92223	
Cabazon		92230	
Hemet		92545	
Hemet/Valle Vista		92544	
Homeland		92548	
March AFB		92518	
Moreno Valley		92551	
Moreno Valley		92552	
Moreno Valley		92553	
Moreno Valley		92554	
Moreno Valley		92555	
Moreno Valley		92556	
Moreno Valley		92557	
Nuevo/Lakeview		92567	
Perris		92571	
Perris		92572	
Perris		92570	
Romoland		92585	
		<u>.</u>	

INTAKE	/REI	ERR	$\mathbf{AL}$	FO	RN	
--------	------	-----	---------------	----	----	--

	CII . D.			
	Client Name:			
	Intake Date:	Provider Name:		
	Service Type:			
	Provider Client ID #:	and the second s		
	CWS/CMS Client ID #:			
	Service Delivery Location:	☐ Client home ☐ Other (specify): _		
. Wh	at is your relationship to the childs	ren in vour househol	d?	
	☐ Biological Parent	J 9 412 210 415 0210 1		
	Adoptive Parent			
	Step Parent			
	Foster Parent			
	Grandparent			
	☐ Relative			
	☐ Non-Related Caregiver			
	ial referral date to the program: [This is the date that the Servary referral source (or, How did y	ou hear about us) (se		
		ou hear about us) (se		
Prir	[This is the date that the Servenary referral source (or, How did y  Adoption Assistance Program	v <b>ou hear about us) (se</b> Eligibility	elect one only):	
Prin	[This is the date that the Server referral source (or, How did y	v <b>ou hear about us) (se</b> Eligibility	elect one only):  Medicaid/Medical  Cal  Private	
Prin	[This is the date that the Servenary referral source (or, How did y  Adoption Assistance Program  (Community-based organization, in	ecluding 2-1-1)	Medicaid/Medi- Cal Private Adoption Agency	
Prin	[This is the date that the Servenary referral source (or, How did y  Adoption Assistance Program  (Community-based organization, in  DMH (Department of Mental	cou hear about us) (see Eligibility cluding 2-1-1) Health)	Medicaid/Medi- Cal Private Adoption Agency School	
Prin	[This is the date that the Servenary referral source (or, How did y  Adoption Assistance Program  (Community-based organization, in  DMH (Department of Mental  DOP (Department of Probation	cou hear about us) (see Eligibility cluding 2-1-1) Health)	Medicaid/Medi- Cal Private Adoption Agency School Self-Referred	
Prin	[This is the date that the Servenary referral source (or, How did y  Adoption Assistance Program  (Community-based organization, in  DMH (Department of Mental	cou hear about us) (see Eligibility cluding 2-1-1) Health)	Medicaid/Medi- Cal Private Adoption Agency School Self-Referred State	
Prin	[This is the date that the Servenary referral source (or, How did y  Adoption Assistance Program  (Community-based organization, in  DMH (Department of Mental  DOP (Department of Probation	cou hear about us) (see Eligibility acluding 2-1-1)	Medicaid/Medi- Cal Private Adoption Agency School Self-Referred State Adoptions Office	
Prin	This is the date that the Services  [This is the date that the Services are always referral source (or, How did y) and a point of Mental of Dop (Department of Mental of Dop (Department of Probation of Dop (Department of Dop (	cou hear about us) (see Eligibility acluding 2-1-1)	Medicaid/Medi- Cal Private Adoption Agency School Self-Referred State Adoptions Office WIC	har
Prin	This is the date that the Services  [This is the date that the Services]  [This is the date that the Services]  [Adoption Assistance Program]  [Adoption Assistance Program]  [Adoption Assistance Program]  [Doministry-based organization, in adoption of Mental and Dop (Department of Probation and D	cou hear about us) (see Eligibility acluding 2-1-1)	Medicaid/Medi- Cal Private Adoption Agency School Self-Referred State Adoptions Office WIC Ot	her
Prin	To improve social service dor, How didy and properties of the services.  [This is the date that the Services of the Services of the Services of the Service	Pou hear about us) (see Eligibility  I cluding 2-1-1)  Health)  Por and meet the dive	Medicaid/Medi- Cal Private Adoption Agency School Self-Referred State Adoptions Office WIC (specify):	tion
Prin	To improve social service delive following demographic (qr. How did y and property of the services and property of the services and property of the service	cou hear about us) (see Eligibility  I cluding 2-1-1)  Health)  In country and meet the divergence are asked. St	Medicaid/Medical Medicaid/Medical Private Adoption Agency School Self-Referred State Adoptions Office WIC Ot (specify):	tion
Prir	To improve social service delive following demographic (qr. How did y and property of the services and property of the services and property of the service	cou hear about us) (see Eligibility  I cluding 2-1-1)  Health)  In country and meet the divergence are asked. St	Medicaid/Medical Medicaid/Medical Private Adoption Agency School Self-Referred State Adoptions Office WIC Ot (specify):	tion
Prir	To improve social service delive following demographic question and is not used to did y and y to proper to the total and is not used to did y to proper to the total and is not used to did y to proper the total and is not used to did y to proper the total and is not used to did y to proper the total and is not used to did y to proper the total and is not used to did y to proper the total and is not used to did y to proper the total and y to proper the tota	ery and meet the divergence asked. Steetermine eligibility	Medicaid/Medical Medicaid/Medical Private Adoption Agency School Self-Referred State Adoptions Office WIC Ot (specify):	tion
Prir	To improve social service delive following demographic (qr. How did y and property of the services and property of the services and property of the service	ery and meet the divergence asked. Steetermine eligibility	Medicaid/Medical Medicaid/Medical Private Adoption Agency School Self-Referred State Adoptions Office WIC Ot (specify):	tion
Prin	To improve social service delive following demographic question in the solution and is not used to desire the services DEMOGRAPHIC CHARACTE	ery and meet the divergence asked. Steetermine eligibility	Medicaid/Medical Medicaid/Medical Private Adoption Agency School Self-Referred State Adoptions Office WIC Ot (specify):	tion
Prir	To improve social service delive following demographic question and is not used to d. Mary referral source (or, How did y. Adoption Assistance Program.  Community-based organization, in DMH (Department of Mental. DOP (Department of Probation. DPSS Children's Services. DPSS Other Services. DPSS Other Services. DR (Differential Response)	ery and meet the divergence asked. Steetermine eligibility	Medicaid/Medical Medicaid/Medical Private Adoption Agency School Self-Referred State Adoptions Office WIC Ot (specify):	tion

Hispanic/Latino	
Not Hispanic or Lati	ano
ace (check all that apply):	
Black/African Am	onicon Dy
Asian/Pacific Islan	
White/European	oder Other
winte/European	
imary language spoken in the	hama?
English	Other (specify):
Spanish	
o you have a disability?	
☐ Yes	
□No	
hat country were you born in?	
United States	
Other (const.)	
Other (specify):	
	in the United States?
w many years have you lived i	e year or less
ow many years have you lived i  One  More than one year:	e year or less
ow many years have you lived i	in the United States? e year or less (number of years)
ow many years have you lived in One  More than one year:  N/A, born in US	e year or less
w many years have you lived i  One  More than one year:  N/A, born in US  rital status:	e year or less (number of years)
w many years have you lived in One One More than one year: N/A, born in US writal status:  Married	e year or less(number of years)  Divorced
ow many years have you lived in One More than one year: N/A, born in US arital status: Married Single, never married	e year or less (number of years)
w many years have you lived in One One More than one year: N/A, born in US  rital status:  Married Single, never married	e year or less(number of years)  Divorced
Married Single, never married W many years have you lived in One More than one year: N/A, born in US Married Single, never married Widowed	(number of years)  Divorced Separated
ow many years have you lived in One One More than one year: N/A, born in US  arital status:  Married Single, never married Widowed  e you currently employed?	Divorced Separated Domestic Partner
w many years have you lived in One One One More than one year: N/A, born in US  rital status:  Married Single, never married Widowed  you currently employed?  Yes, full-time (37 or 1)	
Married Single, never married Widowed  Yes, full-time (37 or a Yes, part-time (less the	Divorced Separated Domestic Partner
w many years have you lived in One One One More than one year: N/A, born in US writal status:  Married Single, never married Widowed  e you currently employed?  Yes, full-time (37 or 1)	
ow many years have you lived in One One More than one year:  N/A, born in US  arital status:  Married  Single, never married  Widowed  e you currently employed?  Yes, full-time (37 or in Yes, part-time (less the No	Divorced Separated Domestic Partner  more hours per week) han 37 hours per week)
ow many years have you lived in One One One More than one year: N/A, born in US  arital status:  Married Single, never married  Widowed  e you currently employed?  Yes, full-time (37 or in Yes, part-time (less the No	Divorced Separated Domestic Partner  more hours per week) han 37 hours per week) cation obtained?
More than one year:  N/A, born in US  mrital status:  Married  Single, never married  Widowed  Yes, full-time (37 or 1)  Yes, part-time (less the light) No  mat is your highest level of education of the light of t	Divorced Separated Domestic Partner  more hours per week) han 37 hours per week)  cation obtained?  Some college
ow many years have you lived in One  More than one year:  N/A, born in US  arital status:  Married  Single, never married  Widowed  e you currently employed?  Yes, full-time (37 or in Yes, part-time (less the No)  nat is your highest level of educe  4 <sup>th</sup> grade or less  5 <sup>th</sup> grade to 8 <sup>th</sup> grade	Divorced Separated Domestic Partner  more hours per week) han 37 hours per week)  cation obtained?  Some college
w many years have you lived in One More than one year: N/A, born in US  rital status:  Married Single, never married Widowed  you currently employed?  Yes, full-time (37 or Yes, part-time (less the No)  at is your highest level of educe 4 <sup>th</sup> grade or less 5 <sup>th</sup> grade to 8 <sup>th</sup> grade Some High School	Divorced   Separated   Domestic Partner
More than one year:  N/A, born in US  arital status:  Married  Single, never married  Widowed  Yes, full-time (37 or yes, part-time (less the No)  nat is your highest level of educe 4th grade or less  5th grade to 8th grade  Some High School  High School Diplon	Divorced   Separated   Domestic Partner
w many years have you lived in One More than one year: N/A, born in US  rital status:  Married Single, never married Widowed  you currently employed?  Yes, full-time (37 or Yes, part-time (less the No)  at is your highest level of educe 4 <sup>th</sup> grade or less 5 <sup>th</sup> grade to 8 <sup>th</sup> grade Some High School	more hours per week) han 37 hours per week)  cation obtained?  Some college  College Degree  Trade School

	No
- 1	1 1 1

13.	What kind of public assistance has the pmonths? (Check all that apply.)	participant and	or child received	within the past 6
	CalWORKS/Welfare			
				and the second second
	General Assistance			
	Disability Benefits			
	Medi-Cal/Medicare/Medicai	d - narticinant		
	Medi-Cal/Medicare/Medicai	d – child		
	Food stamps	d Cillid		
	□ SSI			
	AAP Monies			
	Unemployment insurance be	nofita		
	State Children's Health Insur		COLUD)	
	WIC WIC	rance Program (	SCHIP)	
	Government subsidized child	1		
	Other (specify)	care		
	Other (specify)			
	14. What is your total annual hou	sehold income	?	
	Less than \$10,000		\$45,000-\$49,999	
	<b>\$10,000-\$14,999</b>		\$50,000-\$54,999	
	<b>\$15,000-\$19,999</b>		\$55,000-\$59,999	<del>- </del>
	\$20,000-\$24,999		\$60,000-\$64,999	
	\$25,000-\$29,999		\$65,000-\$69,999	_
	\$30,000-\$34,999		\$70,000-\$74,999	
	\$35,000-\$39,999		\$75,000-\$79,999	
	\$40,000-\$44,999		\$80,000 or more	_
			pou,uuu or more	1

15. Number of children under the age of 18 in your household?

## Exhibit F - Satisfaction Survey/Exit Form

Satisfaction Survey / Exit Form Client Name: Provider Name: Perris Valley Recovery Programs, Inc. Today's Date: Service Type: Instructions: For each question, please check the box that best describes your response. Never Rarely Sometimes Often **Always** 1. I looked forward to coming to class/session/program. 2. I was bored in class/session/program. 3. I put a lot of effort into class/session/program. 4. This class/session/program was an excellent learning experience. 5. Hearned nothing. 6. I thought that my friends and family should come to this class/session/program. 7. My clinician/instructor was clear and understandable. 8. My clinician/instructor was on time to appointments. 9. My clinician/instructor was good at explaining the class material. 10. My clinician/instructor speaks with me about my

personal goals and thoughts about treatment.

	Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Always
11. My clinician/instructor and I are open with one another.					
12. My clinician/instructor and I share a trusting relationship.					
13. I believe my clinician/instructor withholds the truth from me.					
14. My clinician/instructor and I share an honest relationship.					
15. My clinician/instructor and I work towards mutually agreed upon goals.					
16. My clinician/instructor is stern with me when I speak about things that are important to me and my situation.					
17. My clinician/instructor and I have established an understanding of the kind of changes that would be good for me.					
18. My clinician/instructor is impatient with me.					
19. My clinician/instructor seems to like me regardless of what I do or say.					
20. My clinician/instructor and I agree on what is important for me to work on.					
21. I believe my clinician/instructor has an understanding of what my experiences have meant to me.					
22. Overall, I was satisfied with the class/service/program.  For office use only:					

CONTRACTOR OF THE PARTY OF THE	

# County of Riverside Department of Public Social Services Contracts Administration Unit 10281 Kidd Street Riverside, CA 92503

AGREEMENT:

CS-03726

**CONTRACTOR:** 

Olive Branch Counseling Center Inc.

**EFFECTIVE:** 

October 1, 2017 - June 30, 2022

**MAXIMUM AGGREGATE** 

**AMOUNT:** 

\$266,237.00

WHEREAS, the County of Riverside, Department of Public Social Services (hereinafter referred to as the "County and or "DPSS"), desires to provide Domestic Violence Services;

WHEREAS, Olive Branch Counseling Center Inc. (hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor") is qualified to provide Domestic Violence Services;

WHEREAS, DPSS desires the Contractor, to perform these services in accordance with the TERMS and CONDITIONS (T&C) attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. The T&C specify the responsibilities of DPSS and the Contractor;

NOW THEREFORE, DPSS and the Contractor do hereby covenant and agree that the Contractor shall provide said services in return for monetary compensation, all in accordance with the TERMS and CONDITIONS contained herein and exhibits attached hereto and incorporated herein (hereinafter referred to as an "Agreement")

Authorized Signature for County:	Authorized Signature for Olive Branch Counseling Center Inc.
Printed Name of Person Signing:	Printed Name of Person Signing:
John F. Tavaglione	Ken Olsen
Title:	Title:
Chair, Board of Supervisors	Executive Director
Address:	Address:
10281 Kidd St.	4041 Brockton Ave
Riverside, CA 92503	Riverside, CA 92501
Date Signed:	Date Signed:
SEP 2 6 2017	8-3 -17

ATTEST

EDIA HARPER IHEM, Clerk

FORM APPROVED COUNTY COUNSEL

WRISTINE BELL-VALDEZ DA

(Template T-00161 v9.0)

Page 1 of 43

SEP 26 2017 3.16

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

l	DEFINITIONS	3
II.	OBJECTIVES	
III.	OUTCOMES	5
IV.	DPSS RESPONSIBILITIES	5
V.	CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES	5
	A. GENERAL SCOPE OF SERVICE	5
	B. REFERRAL AND INTAKE/EXIT PROCESS	
	C. INDIVIDUAL THERAPY SCOPE OF WORK (VICTIMS/SURVIVORS AND PERPETRAT	FORS) 8
	D. GROUP THERAPY SCOPE OF WORK (VICTIMS/SURVIVORS AND PERPETRATORS	S) 8
	E. REPORTING	
	F. FISCAL	g
	G. ADMINISTRATIVE	11
	1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST	11
	2. CONFIDENTIALITY	12
	3. HOLD HARMLESS/INDEMNIFICATION	12
	4. INSURANCE	13
	5. LICENSES AND PERMITS	15
	6. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR	16
	7. ASSIGNMENT	
	8 PERSONNEL	16
	9. SUBCONTRACT FOR SERVICES	17
	10. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION	17
	11. COMPLIANCE WITH RULES, REGULATIONS AND DIRECTIVES	
	12. EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES	
	13. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY	
	14. CLIENT CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE	
	15. PROCEDURE TO RESOLVE CLIENT GRIEVANCE	
	16. HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY ACCOUNTABILITY ACT (HIPAA)	
	17. CHILD ABUSE REPORTING	20
	18. ADULT AND ELDER ABUSE REPORTING	20
	19. TRANSITION PERIOD	
<b>/</b> 1.	GENERAL	21
	A. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE	
	B. NOTICES	
	C. AVAILABILITY OF FUNDING	
	D. DISPUTES	
	E. SANCTIONS	22
	F. GOVERNING LAW	22
	G. MODIFICATION OF TERMS	22
	H. NON-APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS	
	I. TERMINATION	
	J. ENTIRE AGREEMENT	23

## List of Exhibits

Exhibit A – DPSS 2076A & Instructions

Exhibit B - Assurance of Compliance

Exhibit C – HIPAA Business Associate Agreement

Exhibit D – Geographical Zone List Exhibit E – Intake/Referral Form

Exhibit F - Satisfaction Survey/Exit Form

#### **TERMS AND CONDITIONS**

#### I. DEFINITIONS

- A. "Contractor" refers to Olive Branch Counseling Center, Inc. and its employees, agents and representatives providing services under this Agreement.
- B. "Domestic Violence" refers to abuse committed against an adult or minor who is a spouse, former spouse, cohabitant, former cohabitant, or person with whom the suspect has a child or is having or has had a dating or engagement relationship. For purposes of this subdivision, "cohabitant means two unrelated adult persons living together for a substantial period of time, resulting in some permanency of relationship. Factors that may determine whether persons are cohabitating include, but are not limited to:
  - a. Sexual relations between the parties while sharing the same living quarters;
  - b. Sharing of income or expenses:
  - c. Joint use or ownership of property;
  - d. Whether the parties hold themselves out as husband and wife;
  - e. The continuity of the relationship; and
  - f. The length of the relationship.
- C. "DPSS and/or County" refers to the County of Riverside and its Department of Public Social Services, which has administrative responsibility for this Agreement.
- D. "Family" or "household members" refers to the following persons:
  - a. Persons related by blood or marriage;
  - b. Persons legally married to one another;
  - c. Persons formerly married to one another regardless of whether they still reside in the same household:
  - d. Persons who have a child in common regardless of whether such persons are married or have lived together at any time;
  - e. Unrelated persons who are continually or at regular intervals living in the same household or who have in past continually or at regular intervals lived in the same household; or
  - f. Unrelated persons who have had intimate or continuous social contact with one another and who have access to one another's household.
- E. "HIPAA" refers to the Health Insurance Portability Accountability Act.
- F. Joint Operational Meeting" or "JOM" refers to meetings that are typically scheduled every three to six months so that DPSS and the service provider can discuss the partnership, services, successes, challenges, or other items of relevance to the program and service delivery.
- G. "Licensed Clinical Therapist" refers to a Licensed Marriage and Family Therapist, Licensed Clinical Social Worker, Licensed Educational Psychologist, or Licensed Psychologist in accordance with the guidelines of the State of California Board of Behavioral Sciences (BBS) or Board of Psychology (BOP). Credentials must be current, active and in clear status with the BBS or BOP for the entire duration of the Agreement.
- H. "Non-residential program for victims/survivors of domestic violence" refers to any program operated by a not-for-profit organization for the purpose of providing non-residential services

for victims/survivors of domestic violence including, but not limited to, telephone hotline assistance, information and referral services, advocacy, therapy, and community education/outreach activities

- I. "Not-for-profit organization" refers to any organization which is incorporated as a not-for-profit corporation or religious corporation under the laws of this State or which provides care and/or services In the State and has been granted a federal tax exempt status.
- J. "Perpetrator" refer to a person who has been accused of inflicting domestic violence.
- K. "Registered intern" refers to a pre-licensed registered Marriage and Family Therapy Intern, Clinical Social Work Associate, or Psychologist in accordance with the guidelines of the State of California Board of Behavioral Sciences/California Board of Psychology. Credentials of all facilitators must be current, active, and in clear status with the BBS/Board of Psychology for the entire duration of the Agreement.
- L. "Subcontract" refers to any contract, purchase order, or other purchase agreement, including modifications and change orders to the foregoing, entered into by the Contractor with a subcontractor to furnish supplies, materials, equipment, and services for the performance of any of the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement.
- M. "Subcontractor" refers to any supplier, vendor, or firm that furnishes supplies, materials, equipment, or services to or for the Contractor or another subcontractor.
- N. "Supervised Intern" refers to a Marriage and Family Therapist Intern (MFTI) or an Associate Clinical Social Worker (ASW) who is gaining experience under the supervision of a licensed mental health professional who meets the requirements to supervise such hours according to the Board of Behavioral Sciences (BBS) regulations. See <a href="https://www.bbs.ca.gov">www.bbs.ca.gov</a>
- O. "Residential program for victims/survivors of domestic violence" refers to any residential program approved by the County and operated by a not-for-profit organization for the purposes of providing temporary shelter, emergency services, and care to victims/survivors of domestic violence.
- P. "Team Decision Making" or "TDM" and "Child and Family Team" or "CFT" session refers to meetings scheduled in DPSS operational regions to meet goals and objectives that stabilize and maintain placements. TDMs may involve community members and service providers along with family members and care givers to reach a group consensus regarding safety and placement decisions for the child.
- Q. "Victim of domestic violence" refers to a person who is subjected to domestic violence.

## II. OBJECTIVES

- A. Delivery of competent and effective individual and group therapy services to adult victims/survivors and perpetrators of domestic violence in Riverside County. Services are delivered to adult victims/survivors and/or perpetrators of domestic violence who are being served by DPSS for abusing and/or neglecting their child(ren).
- B. Prevent the unnecessary separation of children from their families, improve the quality of care and services to children and their families, and ensure permanency for children.
- C. Provision of services that strengthen parental relationships (violence: when safe and appropriate to do so), improve parenting skills, and increase relationship skills within the family to prevent child abuse and neglect, while promoting timely family reunification when

- children must be separated from their parents.
- D. Provision of services which are culturally and linguistically appropriate to the population served.

#### III. OUTCOMES

- A. All services must be evidenced-based or evidence-informed.
- B. All services must be outcome-based and the following outcomes must be measured and addressed for DPSS CSD program evaluation purposes:
  - 1. Perpetrators:
    - a. After completion of the Domestic Violence (DV) batterer intervention program, participating clients will demonstrate a 10% increase in readiness to change their abusive behavior as measured by a difference in scores using an assessment provided or approved by DPSS, administrated to clients prior to participation in the program (Pre) and subsequent to participation in the program (Post).
    - b. After completion of the DV batterer intervention program, participating clients will demonstrate a 10% reduction in abusive behaviors as measured by a difference in scores using an assessment provided or approved by DPSS, administrated to clients prior to participation in the program (Pre) and subsequent to participation in the program (Post).

#### 2. Victims/Survivors:

- a. After completion of the DV survivor intervention program, participating clients will demonstrate a 10% increase in their knowledge about the topic of domestic violence as measured by a difference in scores using a knowledge test provided or approved by DPSS, administrated to clients prior to participation in the program (Pre) and subsequent to participation in the program (Post).
- b. After completion of the DV survivor intervention program, participating clients will demonstrate a 10% increase in domestic violence coping self-efficacy as measured by a difference in scores using an assessment provided or approved by DPSS, administrated to clients prior to participation in the program (Pre) and subsequent to participation in the program (Post).
- c. After completion of the DV victim intervention program, participating clients will demonstrate a 10% increase in perceived safety, culture, health, and self-strength as measured by a difference in scores using an assessment provided or approved by DPSS, administrated to clients prior to participation in the program (Pre) and subsequent to participation in the program (Post).

#### IV. DPSS RESPONSIBILITIES

- A. Assign staff to be liaisons between DPSS and the Contractor.
- B. DPSS may monitor the performance of the Contractor in meeting the terms, conditions and services in this Agreement. DPSS, at its sole discretion, may monitor the performance of the Contractor through any combination of the following methods: periodic on-site visits, annual inspections, evaluations and Contractor self-monitoring.

## V. CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES

- A. GENERAL SCOPE OF SERVICE
  - 1. Assign staff to be liaisons between the Contractor and DPSS.

- 2. Provide individual therapy and group therapy in Zone 1. Zones are defined in the Geographical Zone List, attached hereto as Exhibit D, and incorporated herein by this reference.
- 3. All individual and group therapy sessions must be facilitated by a Licensed Clinical Therapist or Supervised Intern, as defined in "Section I Definitions" of this Agreement.
- 4. Program staff must have a minimum of two (2) years of experience providing domestic violence services.
- 5. Provide services in English and Spanish. Services must be available during the day and evenings; evening is defined as after 6:00 PM.
- 6. Domestic violence victim groups must always be separated from perpetrator groups. Perpetrators and victims/survivors must never attend the same groups. Additional safeguards must be identified and put into place to decrease the likelihood that perpetrators and victims/survivors will come into contact with each other or be put at risk for further domestic violence.
- 7. The type of services offered for each individual client will be determined on a case-by-case basis by the Contractor.

For victims, the services for the individual shall include but are not limited to:

- a. Safety Planning: Safety from the abuser / Lethality assessment
- b. Referrals to community resources and opportunities as appropriate
- c. Strategies to increase social support and community connections
- d. Individualized service planning
- e. Self-protection strategies
- f. Education regarding the process of moving from a victim to a "survivor"
- g. Providing information to increase knowledge about a variety of topics important to the client's long-term well-being, the impact of the family violence on the survivor and the child(ren); the risk for recurrence of violence
- h. Skills building: Coping, emotion regulation, problem solving, parenting, and parentchild relationships

For perpetrators, the services for the individual shall include, but are not limited to:

- a. Referrals to community resources as appropriate
- b. Individualized service planning
- c. Strategies to identify negative thoughts and redirect behavior
- d. Education regarding the various forms of abuse; beliefs of dominance; the impact of the family violence on the survivor and child(ren)
- e. Assistance in developing alternative behavioral strategies (non-abusive response to negative thoughts) and accepting responsibility
- f. Skills building: Coping, emotion regulation, problem solving, and parenting and parent-child relationships
- 8. The Contractor must assess and document the needs of the client and develop an individualized service plan for each client. The service plan should identify strengths, presenting problems, interventions, support system, family origin, education/employment, physical health, mental health, multi-provider involvement, interviewer's impressions, conclusions, recommendations, and referrals, if applicable.

The plan shall include measurable goals, objectives, and the methods of achieving the objective.

- 9. The Contractor shall maintain a neat and organized case file for each client served that ensures client confidentiality and HIPAA compliance. Case files must be available for DPSS to review upon request, and must contain:
  - a. Client's name (or unique identifier) and date of birth;
  - b. Basic demographic data;
  - c. A copy of the referral form from the County of Riverside;
  - d. Intake/Referral Form:
  - e. An assessment of each client's service needs;
  - f. A copy of the individualized service plan, including written narratives of contacts, progress reports and observations, safety plan, a record of other services to which the client was referred, and a closing assessment and summary of the services that have been provided to the client;
  - g. Client contact log;
  - h. Client Written Agreement;
  - i. Satisfaction Survey/Exit Forms; and,
  - j. Sign-in sheets for all Group services provided, including date, starting and ending time, facilitator name, and topics reviewed.
- 10. The Contractor is required to enter into a written agreement with each client with respect to the responsibilities each client must satisfy in order to complete their prospective program. Written agreements must be maintained in the client's individual case file.
- 11. Participate in Joint Operation Meetings (JOMs) as requested.
- 12. Participate in Team Decision Making (TDM) and Child and Family Team (CFT) sessions when requested to do so by the referring social worker. When this occurs, the contractor liaison shall present a progress update to include the number of group and individual sessions a client has attended, along with a progress narrative update for the meeting. A note of such attendance must be entered in the client's case file.
- 13. Contractor must return phone calls to social workers and DPSS staff within one (1) business day.
- 14. Contractor must provide written progress reports (when requested by assigned social worker) within three (3) business days of the request.

#### B. REFERRAL AND INTAKE/EXIT PROCESS

- 1. Services shall be provided only to clients referred by DPSS.
- 2. Contractor must contact or attempt to contact the client within two (2) business days of the referral to schedule an in-person enrollment/intake. The Contractor must document all contact attempts in writing.
- 3. Contractor must complete an Intake/Referral Form (Exhibit E) within fifteen (15) business days of the initial client contact for all clients.
- 4. All clients must begin group and or/individual therapy within fifteen (15) calendar days of client's in-person intake. If a client is not able to begin group therapy, the Contractor must begin individual therapy, place the client on the list for the next available group with start date, and notify the DPSS designated liaison via email.

- 5. Contractor must have each client complete a Satisfaction Survey/Exit Form (Exhibit F) at the end of their services to measure changes in parental attitudes, behaviors, skills, and other relevant indicators.
- C. INDIVIDUAL THERAPY SCOPE OF WORK (VICTIMS/SURVIVORS AND PERPETRATORS)
  - 1. All individual therapy sessions for victims/survivors must utilize the Cognitive Therapy and Alternatives for Families AF CBT program model and be facilitated by a Licensed Clinical Therapist or Registered Intern, as defined in "Section I Definitions" of this Agreement.
  - 2. All individual sessions for perpetrators must utilize the Domestic Abuse Intervention Project The Duluth program model and be facilitated by a Licensed Clinical Therapist or Registered Intern, as defined in "Section I Definitions" of this Agreement.
  - 3. Each session of individual therapy must be a minimum of fifty (50) minutes of face-to-face contact between the Licensed Clinical Therapist or Registered Intern and the client.
  - 4. Individual therapy sessions are limited to a maximum of sixteen (16) sessions per client. The Contractor must obtain prior approval by DPSS for any client needing more than sixteen (16) therapy sessions. All approvals must be documented in writing and maintained in the client's case file.
- D. GROUP THERAPY SCOPE OF WORK (VICTIMS/SURVIVORS AND PERPETRATORS)
  - 1. All group therapy sessions for victims/survivors must utilize the San Diego Family Justice Center program model. All group therapy sessions must be facilitated by a Licensed Clinical Therapist or Registered Intern, as defined in "Section I Definitions" of this Agreement.
  - 2. All group therapy sessions for perpetrators must utilize the Domestic Abuse Intervention Project The Duluth program model. All group therapy sessions must be facilitated by a Licensed Clinical Therapist or Registered Intern, as defined in "Section I Definitions" of this Agreement.
  - 3. Each session of group therapy must be a minimum of ninety (90) minutes of face-to-face contact between the Licensed Clinical Therapist or Registered Intern and a group of clients.
  - 4. Group therapy sessions are limited to a maximum of sixteen (16) sessions per client.
  - 5. Groups must have a minimum of four (4) clients and a maximum of twelve (12) clients to one (1) Licensed Clinical Therapist or Registered Intern. Groups exceeding twelve (12) clients shall have a group facilitator (Licensed Clinical Therapist or Registered Intern) and a co-facilitator (Licensed Clinical Therapist or Registered Intern). The cost for a group with fewer than four (4) clients will be prorated per client at a rate of \$56.25.

#### E. REPORTING

The Contractor shall submit the following reports as specified below:

- 1. A monthly service report from the Contractor is required and shall be submitted no later than the 15<sup>th</sup> calendar day of the month following the month in which services were provided. This report will include, but is not limited to the following data elements:
  - a. 19 digit CSD Client ID number;

- b. Client demographics (i.e. age, disability status, primary language, ethnicity, zip code);
- c. Clients that completed their service plans;
- d. Clients that stopped participating, refused service, otherwise dropped out of the program, or failed to complete their service plan indicating the reasons why;
- e. Total units of service provided;
- f. Service type and hours provided; and,
- g. Clients referred to additional services.
- 2. An annual report aggregating the year's monthly data shall be submitted no later than the 15<sup>th</sup> of the month following the end of the contract year.
- 3. Submit the results of agreed upon outcome measures on a monthly basis, utilizing a database provided by DPSS.
- 4. The monthly service and annual aggregate reports shall be submitted in electronic format to:

## PDRreports@riversidedpss.org

- 5. The Contractor will also be required to
  - a. Meet with the DPSS data and evaluation team no later than 30 days after contract execution in order to discuss, collaborate, and provide input on the evaluation plan and mandatory evaluation instruments (e.g. surveys, assessment tests) that will be required to be utilized by the provider to measure and report progress on the program objectives and outcomes.

#### F. FISCAL

#### MAXIMUM AGGREGATE AMOUNT

Total payment under this Agreement shall not exceed in aggregate \$266,237.00.

Annually, payments shall not exceed:

FISCAL YEAR PERIOD	ANNUAL PAYMENT
October 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018	\$42,037.00
July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019	\$56,050.00
July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020	\$56,050.00
July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021	\$56,050.00
July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022	\$56,050.00
Total	\$266,237.00

#### 2. UNIT OF SERVICE COST RATE

Zone	Unit of Service	Billing Cost Per Unit of Service		Supporting Documentation		
1	Individual Therapy (Victims/survi vors)	\$85.00		<ul> <li>Client name (and/or 19-digit CSD Client ID number);</li> <li>Beginning and ending</li> </ul>		
1	Group Therapy	# of Clients in	Prorated Group	time of session;		

	(Victims/survi	Group	Amount	Date(s) of service;		
	vors)	4+	\$225.00	Facilitator name;		
		3	\$168.75	Initial CWS referral form		
		2	\$112.50	(2468)		
		1	\$56.25	Written documentation of		
1	Individual Therapy (Perpetrators)	\$85.00		the County approval for clients receiving more than 16 sessions per service (if applicable).		
		# of Clients in	Prorated Group			
	Group	Group	Amount			
1	Therapy	4+	\$225.00			
	(Perpetrators)	3	\$168.75			
1 1 1		2	\$112.50			
		1	\$56.25			

#### 3. METHOD, TIME AND SCHEDULE CONDITIONS OF PAYMENT

- a. The Contractor will be paid the actual amount of each monthly invoice for payment. If the required supporting documentation is not provided, DPSS may delay payment until the information is received by DPSS.
- b. All completed claims must be submitted on a monthly basis no later than 30 days after the end of each month in which the services were provided. All complete claims submitted in a timely manner shall be processed within forty-five (45) calendar days.
- c. The Contractor shall submit DPSS Forms 2076A, 2076B (if applicable) (Exhibit A), following the instructions set forth. Exhibit A is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference for request of all payments.
- d. Each claiming period shall consist of a calendar month claiming period. Contractor Invoice estimates for May and June are due no later than the 5th of June. Actual Contractor invoices for May and June are due no later than the 30th of July.

#### 4. FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Contractor warrants that during the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall retain sufficient financial resources necessary to perform all aspects of its obligations, as described under this Agreement. Further, the Contractor warrants that there has been no adverse material change in the Contractor, Parent, or Subsidiary business entities, resulting in negative impact to the financial condition and circumstances of the Contractor since the date of the most recent financial statements.

#### 5. RECORDS, INSPECTIONS AND AUDITS

- a. The Contractor shall maintain auditable books, records, documents, and other evidence pertaining to costs and expenses in this Agreement. The Contractor shall maintain these records for three (3) years after final payment has been made or until all pending County, State, and Federal audits, if any, are completed, whichever is later.
- b. Any authorized representative of the County of Riverside, the State of California, and the Federal government shall have access to any books, documents, papers, electronic data, and other records, which these representatives may determine to be

pertinent to this Agreement, for the purpose of performing an audit, evaluation, inspection, review, assessment, or examination. These representatives are authorized to obtain excerpts, transcripts, and copies, as they deem necessary. Further, these authorized representatives shall have the right at all reasonable times to inspect or otherwise evaluate the work performed, or being performed, under this Agreement and the premises in which it is being performed.

- c. This access to records includes, but is not limited to, service delivery, referral, financial, and administrative documents for three (3) years after final payment is made, or until all pending County, State, and Federal audits are completed, whichever is later.
- d. Should the Contractor disagree with any audit conducted by DPSS, the Contractor shall have the right to employ a licensed, Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to prepare and file with DPSS a certified financial and compliance audit that is in compliance with generally-accepted government accounting standards of related services provided during the term of this Agreement. The Contractor shall not be reimbursed by DPSS for such an audit.
- e. In the event the Contractor does not make available its books and financial records at the location where they are normally maintained, the Contractor agrees to pay all necessary and reasonable expenses, including legal fees, incurred by DPSS in conducting such an audit.
- f. Contractors that expend \$750,000 or more in a year in Federal funding shall obtain an audit performed by an independent auditor in accordance with generally accepted governmental auditing standards covering financial and compliance audits as per the Single Audit Act of 1984 and the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, as per OMB Circular A-133. However, records must be available for review and audit by appropriate officials of Federal, State and County agencies.

#### 6. SUPPLANTATION

The Contractor shall not supplant any federal, state, or County funds intended for the purpose of this Agreement with any funds made available under any other Agreement. The Contractor shall not claim reimbursement from DPSS for, or apply any sums received from DPSS, with respect to the portion of its obligations, which have been paid by another source of revenue. The Contractor agrees that it will not use funds received pursuant to this Agreement, either directly or indirectly, as a contribution or compensation for purposes of obtaining state funds under any state program or County funds under any County programs without prior approval of DPSS.

#### 7. DISALLOWANCE

In the event the Contractor receives payment for services under this Agreement which is later disallowed for nonconformance with the terms and conditions herein by DPSS, the Contractor shall promptly refund the disallowed amount to DPSS on request, or at its option, DPSS may offset the amount disallowed from any payment due to the Contractor under any agreement with DPSS.

#### G. ADMINISTRATIVE

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The Contractor, Contractor's employees, and agents shall have no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which shall conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of services required under this Agreement.

#### 2. CONFIDENTIALITY

The Contractor shall maintain the confidentiality of all information and records and comply with all other statutory laws and regulations relating to privacy and confidentiality.

Each party shall ensure that case record information is kept confidential when it identifies an individual by name, address, or other information. Confidential information requires special precautions to protect it from loss, unauthorized use, access, disclosure, modification, and destruction.

The parties to this Agreement shall keep all information that is exchanged between them in the strictest confidence, in accordance with Section 10850 of the Welfare and Institutions Code. All records and information concerning any and all persons referred to the Contractor shall be considered and kept confidential by the Contractor, its staff, agents, employees and volunteers. The Contractor shall require all of its employees, agents, subcontractors and volunteer staff who may provide services under this Agreement with the Contractor before commencing the provision of any such services, to maintain the confidentiality of any and all materials and information with which they may come into contact, or the identities or any identifying characteristics or information with respect to any and all participants referred to the Contractor by Riverside County.

The confidentiality of juvenile records is established under section 827 and 828 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, California Rules of Court, Rule 5.552 and case law. The Juvenile Court has exclusive jurisdiction over juvenile records and information and has the responsibility to protect the interests of minors and their families in the confidentiality of any records and information concerning minors involved in the justice system and to provide a reasonable method for release of these records and information in appropriate circumstances

Contractor shall ensure that no person will publish, disclose, use, permit, or cause to be published, disclosed, or used, any confidential information pertaining to any applicant or recipient of services under this Agreement. The Contractor agrees to inform all persons directly or indirectly involved in administration of services provided under this Agreement of the above provisions and that any person deliberately violating these provisions is guilty of a misdemeanor.

## 3. HOLD HARMLESS/INDEMNIFICATION

Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless County, all Agencies, Districts, Special Districts and Departments of County, their respective directors, officers, Board of Supervisors, elected and appointed officials, employees, agents and representatives from any liability whatsoever, based or asserted upon any services of Contractor, its officers, employees, subcontractors, agents or representatives arising out of or in any way relating to this Agreement, including but not limited to property damage, bodily injury, death, or any other element of any kind or nature whatsoever arising from the performance of Contractor, its officers, agents, employees, subcontractors, agents or representatives from this Agreement. Contractor shall defend, at its sole expense, all costs and fees, including but not limited to attorney fees, cost of investigation, defense and settlements or awards, of County, all Agencies, Districts, Special Districts and Departments of County, their respective directors, officers, Board of Supervisors, elected

and appointed officials, employees, agents or representatives in any claim or action based upon such alleged acts or omissions.

With respect to any action or claim subject to indemnification herein by Contractor, Contractor shall, at their sole cost, have the right to use counsel of their choice, subject to the approval of County, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, and shall have the right to adjust, settle, or compromise any such action or claim without the prior consent of County; provided, however, that any such adjustment, settlement or compromise in no manner whatsoever limits or circumscribes Contractor's indemnification to County as set forth herein. Contractor's obligation to defend, indemnify and hold harmless County shall be subject to County having given Contractor written notice within a reasonable period of time of the claim or of the commencement of the related action, as the case may be, and information and reasonable assistance, at Contractor's expense, for the defense or settlement thereof. Contractor's obligation hereunder shall be satisfied when Contractor has provided to County the appropriate form of dismissal relieving County from any liability for the action or claim involved.

The specified insurance limits required in this Agreement shall in no way limit or circumscribe Contractor's obligations to indemnify and hold harmless County herein from third party claims.

In the event there is conflict between this clause and California Civil Code §2782, this clause shall be interpreted to comply with Civil Code §2782. Such interpretation shall not relieve the Contractor from indemnifying County to the fullest extent allowed by law.

#### 4. INSURANCE

a. Without limiting or diminishing the Contractor's obligation to indemnify or hold the County harmless, Contractor shall procure and maintain or cause to be maintained, at its sole cost and expense, the following insurance coverage's during the term of this Agreement. As respects to the insurance section only, the County herein refers to the County of Riverside, its Agencies, Districts, Special Districts, and Departments, their respective directors, officers, Board of Supervisors, employees, elected or appointed officials, agents or representatives as Additional Insureds.

## (1) Worker's Compensation:

If the Contractor has employees as defined by the State of California, the Contractor shall maintain statutory Worker's Compensation Insurance (Coverage A) as prescribed by the laws of the State of California. Policy shall include Employers' Liability (Coverage B) including Occupational Disease with limits not less than \$1,000,000 per person per accident. The policy shall be endorsed to waive subrogation in favor of The County of Riverside, and, if applicable, to provide a Borrowed Servant/Alternate Employer Endorsement.

#### (2) Commercial General Liability:

Commercial General Liability insurance coverage, including but not limited to, premises liability, contractual liability, products and completed operations liability, personal and advertising injury, and cross liability coverage, covering claims which may arise from or out of Contractor's performance of its obligations hereunder. Policy shall name the County as additional Insured. Policy's limit of liability shall not be less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence combined single limit. If such insurance contains a general aggregate limit, it shall apply separately to this Agreement or be no less than two (2) times the occurrence limit.

(3) Vehicle Liability:

If vehicles or mobile equipment are used in the performance of the obligations under this Agreement, then Contractor shall maintain liability insurance for all owned, non-owned or hired vehicles so used in an amount not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence combined single limit. If such insurance contains a general aggregate limit, it shall apply separately to this Agreement or be no less than two (2) times the occurrence limit. Policy shall name the County as additional Insured.

(4) Professional Liability:

If, at any time during the duration of this Agreement and any renewal or extension thereof, the Contractor, its employees, agents or subcontractors provide professional counseling for issues of medical diagnosis, medical treatment, mental health, dispute resolution or any other services for which it is the usual and customary practice to maintain Professional Liability Insurance, the Contractor shall procure and maintain Professional Liability Insurance (Errors & Omissions), providing coverage for performance of work included within this Agreement, with a limit of liability of not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence and \$2,000,000 annual aggregate. If Contractor's Professional Liability Insurance is written on a claims made basis rather than an occurrence basis, such insurance shall continue through the term of this Agreement. Upon termination of this Agreement or the expiration or cancellation of the claims made insurance policy Contractor shall purchase at his sole expense either 1) an Extended Reporting Endorsement (also known as Tail Coverage); or, 2) Prior Dates Coverage from a new insurer with a retroactive date back to the date of, or prior to, the inception of this Agreement; or, 3) demonstrate through Certificates of Insurance that Contractor has maintained continuous coverage with the same or original insurer. Coverage provided under items 1), 2) or 3) will continue for a period of five (5) years beyond the termination of this Agreement.

#### b. General Insurance Provisions - All lines:

- (1) Any insurance carrier providing insurance coverage hereunder shall be admitted to the State of California and have an A M BEST rating of not less than A: VIII (A:8) unless such requirements are waived, in writing, by the County Risk Manager. If the County's Risk Manager waives a requirement for a particular insurer such waiver is only valid for that specific insurer and only for one policy term.
- (2) The Contractor's insurance carrier(s) must declare its insurance self-(2) The Contractor's insurance carrier(s) must declare its insurance self-insured retentions. If such self-insured retentions exceed \$500,000 per occurrence such retentions shall have the prior written consent of the County Risk Manager before the commencement of operations under this Agreement. Upon notification of self insured retention unacceptable to the County, and at the election of the County's Risk Manager, Contractor's carriers shall either; 1) reduce or eliminate such selfinsured retention as respects this Agreement with the County, or 2) procure a bond which guarantees payment of losses and related investigations, claims administration, and defense costs and expenses.
- (3) Contractor shall cause Contractor's insurance carrier(s) to furnish the County of Riverside with either 1) a properly executed original Certificate(s) of Insurance and certified original copies of Endorsements effecting coverage as required herein, and 2) if requested to do so orally or in writing by the County Risk

Manager, provide original Certified copies of policies including all Endorsements and all attachments thereto, showing such insurance is in full force and effect. Further, said Certificate(s) and policies of insurance shall contain the covenant of the insurance carrier(s) that thirty (30) days written notice shall be given to the County of Riverside prior to any material modification, cancellation, expiration or reduction in coverage of such insurance. In the event of a material modification, cancellation, expiration, or reduction in coverage, this Agreement shall terminate forthwith, unless the County of Riverside receives, prior to such effective date, another properly executed original Certificate of Insurance and original copies of endorsements or certified original policies, including all endorsements and attachments thereto evidencing coverages set forth herein and the insurance required herein is in full force and effect. Contractor shall not commence operations until the County has been furnished original Certificate(s) of Insurance and certified original copies of endorsements and if requested, certified original policies of insurance including all endorsements and any and all other attachments as required in this Section. An individual authorized by the insurance carrier to do so on its behalf shall sign the original endorsements for each policy and the Certificate of Insurance.

- (4) It is understood and agreed to by the parties hereto that the Contractor's insurance shall be construed as primary insurance, and the County's insurance and/or deductibles and/or self-insured retentions or self-insured programs shall not be construed as contributory.
- (5) If, during the term of this Agreement or any extension thereof, there is a material change in the scope of services; or, there is a material change in the equipment to be used in the performance of the scope of work which will add additional exposures (such as the use of aircraft, watercraft, cranes, etc.); or, the term of this Agreement, including any extensions thereof, exceeds five (5) years the County reserves the right to adjust the types of insurance required under this Agreement and the monetary limits of liability for the insurance coverages currently required herein, if; in the County Risk Manager's reasonable judgment, the amount or type of insurance carried by the Contractor has become inadequate.
- (6) Contractor shall pass down the insurance obligations contained herein to all tiers of subcontractors working under this Agreement.
- (7) The insurance requirements contained in this Agreement may be met with a program(s) of self-insurance acceptable to the County.
- (8) Contractor agrees to notify County of any claim by a third party or any incident or event that may give rise to a claim arising from the performance of this Agreement.

#### 5. LICENSES AND PERMITS

In accordance with the provisions of the Business and Professions Code concerning the licensing of Contractors, all Contractors shall be licensed, if required, in accordance with the laws of this State and any Contractor not so licensed is subject to the penalties imposed by such laws.

The Contractor warrants that it has all necessary permits, approvals, certificates, waivers, and exemptions necessary for the provision of services hereunder and required

by the laws and regulations of the United States, State of California, the County of Riverside and all other appropriate governmental agencies, and shall maintain these throughout the term of this Agreement.

## 6. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

It is understood and agreed that the Contractor is an independent Contractor and that no relationship of employer-employee exists between the parties hereto. Contractor and/or Contractor's employees shall not be entitled to any benefits payable to employees of the County including, but not limited to, County Worker's Compensation benefits. County shall not be required to make any deductions for employees of Contractor from the compensation payable to Contractor under the provision of this Agreement.

As an independent Contractor, Contractor hereby holds County harmless from any and all claims that may be made against County based upon any contention by any third party that an employer-employee relationship exists by reason of this Agreement. As part of the foregoing indemnity, the Contractor agrees to protect and defend at its own expense, including attorney's fees, the County, its officers, agents and employees in any legal action based upon any such alleged existence of an employer-employee relationship by reason of this Agreement.

#### 7. ASSIGNMENT

The Contractor shall not assign any interest in this Agreement, and shall not transfer any interest in the same, whether by assignment or novation, without the prior written consent of DPSS. Any attempt to assign or delegate any interest without written consent of DPSS shall be deemed void and of no force or effect.

#### 8. PERSONNEL

#### a. Background Checks

.onduct criminal background records checks on all employees, subcontractors, and volunteers providing services under this Agreement. Prior to these individuals providing services to clients, the Contractor shall have received a criminal records clearance from the State of California Department of Justice (DOJ). A signed certification of such clearance shall be retained in each individual's personnel file.

#### b. Alcohol and Drug Use Prohibited

As a material condition of this Agreement, the Contractor agrees that the Contractor and its employees, while performing services for DPSS:

Shall not be in any way impaired because of being under the influence of alcohol or drugs.

- (1) Shall not possess an open container of alcohol or consumer alcohol or possess or be under the influence of an illegal drug.
- (2) Shall not sell, offer, or provide alcohol or an illegal drug to another person. This provision shall not be applicable to the Contractor or its employee who, as part of the performance of normal job duties and responsibilities, prescribes or administers medically prescribed drugs.

DPSS may terminate for default or breach of this Agreement, if the Contractor or its employees are determined by DPSS not to be in compliance with the conditions in this section.

## 9. SUBCONTRACT FOR SERVICES

- a. The Contractor shall not enter into any subcontract with any subcontractor who:
  - (1) is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, and declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by a federal department or agency.
  - (2) has within a 3-year period preceding this Agreement been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for the commission of fraud, or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or local) transaction; violation of Federal or State anti-trust status or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;
  - (3) is presently indicated or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government entity (Federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in the paragraph above; and
  - (4) has within a 3-year period preceding this Agreement had one or more public transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default.
- b. The Contractor shall be as fully responsible for the acts or omissions of its subcontractors, and of persons either directly or indirectly employed by them as for the acts or omissions of persons directly employed by the Contractor.
- c. The Contractor shall insert appropriate clauses in all subcontracts to bind subcontractors to the terms and conditions of this Agreement insofar as they are applicable to the work of subcontractors.
- d. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create any contractual relationship between any subcontractor and the County of Riverside, its Agencies, Districts, Special Districts and Departments, their respective directors, officers, Board of Supervisors, elected and appointed officials, employees, agents and representatives.

#### 10. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION

As a sub-grantee of federal funds under this Agreement, the Contractor certifies that it, and its principals:

- a. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, and declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by a federal department or agency.
- b. Have not within a 3-year period preceding this Agreement been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for the commission of fraud, or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or local) transaction; violation of Federal or State anti-trust status or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;
- c. Are not presently indicated or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government entity (Federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in the paragraph above; and

d. Have not within a 3-year period preceding this Agreement had one or more public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

#### 11. COMPLIANCE WITH RULES, REGULATIONS AND DIRECTIVES

The Contractor shall comply with all rules, regulations, requirements, and directives of the California Department of Social Services, other applicable state agencies, and funding sources which impose duties and regulations upon DPSS, which are equally applicable and made binding upon the Contractor as though made with the Contractor directly.

#### 12. EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES

- a. The Contractor shall not discriminate in its recruiting, hiring, promoting, demoting, or terminating practices on the basis of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex in the performance of this Agreement, and to the extent they shall apply, with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (FEHA), and the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P. L. 88-352).
- b. In the provision of benefits, the Contractor shall certify and comply with Public Agreement Code 10295.3, to not discriminate between employees with spouses and employees with domestic partners, or discriminate between the domestic partners and spouses of those employees.
- c. For the purpose of this section Domestic Partner means one of two persons who have filed a declaration of domestic partnership with the Secretary of State pursuant to Division 2.5 (commencing with Section 297) of the Family Code.

#### 13. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

By signing this Agreement or accepting funds under this Agreement, the Contractor shall comply with Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, entitled "Equal Employment Opportunity", as amended by Department of Labor regulations (41 CFR Chapter 60).

#### 14. CLIENT CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE

a. Assurance of Compliance

The Contractor shall complete the Vendor Assurance of Compliance with Riverside County Department of Public Social Services Non-Discrimination in State and Federally Assisted Programs, attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by this reference. The Contractor will sign and date Exhibit B and return it to DPSS along with the executed Agreement. The Contractor shall ensure that the administration of public assistance and social service programs are non-discriminatory. To the effect that no person shall because of ethnic group identification, age, sex, color, disability, medical condition, national origin, race, ancestry, marital status, religion, religious creed or political belief be excluded from participation in or be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subject to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal or state financial assistance.

#### b. Client Complaints

The Contractor shall further establish and maintain written referral procedures under which any person, applying for or receiving services hereunder, may seek resolution from Riverside County DPSS Civil Rights Coordinator of a complaint with respect to any alleged discrimination in the provision of services by Contractor's personnel. The Contractor must distribute to social service clients that apply for and receive

services, "Your Rights Under California Welfare Programs" brochure (Publication 13). For a copy of this brochure, visit the following website at:

http://www.dss.cahwnet.gov/cdssweb/entres/forms/English/pub13.pdf

## Civil Rights Complaints should be referred to:

Civil Rights Coordinator Riverside County Department of Public Social Services 7894 Mission Grove Parkway, Suite 100 Riverside, CA 92508 (951) 358-6841

#### c. Services, Benefits and Facilities

Contractor shall not discriminate in the provision of services, the allocation of benefits, or in the accommodation in facilities on the basis of color, race, religion, national origin, sex, age, sexual preference, physical or mental handicap in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. Section 2000d and all other pertinent rules and regulations promulgated pursuant thereto, and as otherwise provided by State law and regulations, as all may now exist or be hereafter amended or changed.

For the purpose of this Section, discrimination means denying a participant or potential participant any service, benefit, or accommodation that would be provided to another and includes, but is not limited to, the following:

- (1) Denying a participant any service or benefit or availability of a facility.
- (2) Providing any service or benefit to a participant which is different, or is provided in a different manner, or at a different time or place from that provided to other participants on the basis of race, color, creed or national origin.
- (3) Restricting a participant in any way in the enjoyment of any advantage or privilege enjoyed by others receiving any service or benefit. Treating a participant differently from others in satisfying any admission requirement or condition, or eligibility requirement or condition, which individuals must meet in order to be provided any service or benefit.

#### d. Cultural Competency

Contractor shall cause to be available bilingual professional staff or qualified interpreter to ensure adequate communication between clients and staff. Any individual with limited English language capability or other communicative barriers shall have equal access to services.

For the purpose of this Section, a qualified interpreter is defined as someone who is fluent in English and in the necessary second language, can accurately speak, read and readily interpret the necessary second language and/or accurately sign and read sign language. A qualified interpreter must be able to translate in linguistically appropriate terminology necessary to convey information such as symptoms or instructions to the client in both languages.

#### 15. PROCEDURE TO RESOLVE CLIENT GRIEVANCE

Contractor shall establish a Client grievance policy and procedure that describes the system by which clients of service shall have the opportunity to express and have considered their views, grievance, and complaints regarding the Contractor's delivery of services. This system shall not negate the rights of a client for a State hearing.

16. HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY ACCOUNTABILITY ACT (HIPAA)
Under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA), 42 U.S.C. 1320d et seq. and its 162, and 164 ("Privacy Rule and Security Rule"), the Contractor must comply with the Security Rule as a Business Associate, if under this Agreement, it receives, maintains or transmits any health information in electronic form in connection with a transaction covered by part 162 of Title 45 of the Code of Federal Regulations.

The County and Contractor acknowledge that HIPAA mandates them to comply as business associates in order to safeguard protected health information that may be accessed during the performance of this Agreement. The parties agree to the terms and conditions set forth from the County of Riverside Board of Supervisors Policy No. B-23 and the HIPAA Business Associated Agreement with County of Riverside DPSS as attached hereto as Exhibit C.

All social service privacy complaints should be referred to:

Department of Public Social Services
HR/Administrative Compliance Services Unit
10281 Kidd Street
Riverside, CA 92503
(951) 358-3030

#### 17. CHILD ABUSE REPORTING

If Contractor is a mandated reporter under Penal Code Sections 11165 -11174.3, the Contractor shall establish a procedure acceptable to the County and in accordance with applicable laws to ensure that all employees, volunteers, consultants, subcontractors or agents performing services under this Agreement report child abuse or neglect to a child protective agency as defined in the Penal Code.

## 18. ADULT AND ELDER ABUSE REPORTING

The Contractor shall provide documentation of a policy and procedure acceptable to DPSS to ensure that all employees, volunteers, consultants, subcontractors, or agents performing services under this Agreement report elder and dependent adult abuse pursuant to Welfare & Institutions Code (WIC) Sections 15600 et seq.

Suspected incidents of abuse should be immediately reported to DPSS, followed by a written report within two working days.

#### 19. TRANSITION PERIOD

The Contractor recognizes that the services under this Agreement are vital to DPSS and must be continued without interruption, and that, upon expiration, a successor, either DPSS or another contractor, may continue the services outlined herein. The Contractor agrees to exercise its best efforts and cooperation to effect an orderly and efficient transition of clients to a successor.

a. The Contractor shall, upon written notification from DPSS, negotiate in good faith a transition plan with a successor to determine the nature and extent of the

transitioning of services. The transition plan for each service type and shall be subject to DPSS' approval and shall specify:

- (1.) List of clients that include:
  - (a.) Current contact information;
  - (b.) Assigned social worker.
- b. Discharge summary that includes:
  - (1.) Services received;
  - (2.) Number of hours of services completed;
  - (3.) On-going service recommendations:
  - (4.) Date for transferring responsibilities.
- c. The Contractor shall provide DPSS with copies of client files.

#### VI. **GENERAL**

## A PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE

This Agreement shall be effective October 1, 2017 to June 30, 2022, unless terminated earlier. Contractor shall commence performance upon the effective date of this Agreement and shall diligently and continuously perform thereafter. The Riverside County Board of Supervisors is the only authority that may obligate the County for a non-cancelable multiyear agreement.

#### **B. NOTICES**

All notices, claims, correspondence, and/or statements authorized or required by this Agreement shall be addressed as follows:

DPSS:

Department of Public Social Services

Contracts Administration Unit

P.O. Box 7789

Riverside CA 92513

Invoices and other financial documents:

Department of Public Social Services

Fiscal/Management Reporting Unit

4060 County Circle Drive Riverside, CA 92503

CONTRACTOR:

Olive Branch Counseling Center Inc.

**Executive Director** 4041 Brockton Ave Riverside, CA 92501

All notices shall be deemed effective when they are made in writing, addressed as indicated above, and deposited in the United States mail. Any notices, correspondence, reports and/or statements authorized or required by this Agreement, addressed in any other fashion will not be acceptable.

#### C. AVAILABILITY OF FUNDING

DPSS' obligation for payment of any Agreement is contingent upon the availability of funds from which payment can be made.

#### D. DISPUTES

- 1. The parties shall attempt to resolve any disputes amicably at the working level. If that is not successful, the dispute shall be referred to the senior management of the parties. Any dispute relating to this Agreement which is not resolved by the parties shall be decided by the County's Compliance Contract Officer who shall furnish the decision in writing. The decision of the County's Compliance Contract Officer shall be final and conclusive unless determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to have been fraudulent, capricious, arbitrary, or so grossly erroneous as necessarily to imply bad faith. The Contractor shall proceed diligently with the performance of this Agreement pending the resolution of a dispute.
- 2. Prior to the filing of any legal action related to this Agreement, the parties shall be obligated to attend a mediation session in Riverside County before a neutral third party mediator. A second mediation session shall be required if the first session is not successful. The parties shall share the cost of the mediations.

#### E. SANCTIONS

Failure by the Contractor to comply with any of the provisions covenants, requirements, or conditions of this Agreement including, but not limited to, reporting and evaluation requirements, shall be a material breach of this Agreement. In such event, DPSS may immediately terminate this Agreement and may take other remedies available by law, or otherwise specified in this Agreement. DPSS may also:

- 1. Afford the Contractor a time period within which to cure the breach, the period of which shall be established at the sole discretion of DPSS; and/or
- 2. Discontinue reimbursement to the Contractor for, and during the period in which the Contractor is in breach, the reimbursement of which the Contractor shall not be entitled to recover later; and/or
- 3. Withhold funds pending a cure of the breach; and/or
- 4. Offset against any monies billed by the Contractor but yet unpaid by DPSS. DPSS shall give the Contractor notice of any action pursuant to this paragraph, the notice of which shall be effective when given.

#### F. GOVERNING LAW

This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted according to the laws of the State of California. Any legal action related to the interpretation or performance of this Agreement shall be filed only in the appropriate courts located in the County of Riverside, State of California. Should action be brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of the Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to attorney's fees in addition to whatever other relief are granted.

#### G. MODIFICATION OF TERMS

No addition to or alteration of the terms of this Agreement, whether by written or verbal understanding of the parties, their officers, agents, or employees shall be valid unless made in writing and formally approved and executed by both parties. Requests to modify fiscal provisions shall be submitted no later than April 1.

#### H. NON-APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS

The County obligation for payment of this Agreement beyond the current fiscal year end is contingent upon and limited by the availability of County funding from which payment can be made, and invoices shall be rendered "monthly" in arrears. In the State of California, Government agencies are not allowed to pay excess interest and late charges, per Government Codes, Section 926.10. No legal liability on the part of the County shall arise for payment beyond June 30 of each calendar year unless funds are made available for such payment. In the event that such funds are not forthcoming for any reason, County shall immediately notify Contractor in writing; and this Agreement shall be deemed terminated, have no further force, and effect.

#### I. TERMINATION

This Agreement may be terminated without cause by either party by giving thirty (30) days written notification to the other party. In the event DPSS elects to abandon, indefinitely postpone, or terminate the Agreement, DPSS shall make payments for all services performed up to the date that written notice was given in a prorated amount.

## J. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, and all prior or contemporaneous agreements of any kind or nature relating to the same shall be deemed to be merged herein.

## **Exhibit A – Contractor Payment Request**

# COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SOCIAL SERVICES

## CONTRACTOR PAYMENT REQUEST

To: Riverside County Department of Public Social Services Attn: Management Reporting Unit	From:	Olive Branch Cour Remit to Name	nseling Center l	nc.	
4060 County Circle Drive Riverside, CA 92503		Address			
Triverside, OA 02000		Contractor Name	2 2 2 2 2 2		
		Contract Number			
Total amount requested	for the period of			20	
Select Payment Type(s) Below:					
Advance Payment \$ (if allowed by Contract/MOU)		Actual Payment \$ (Same amount	as 2076B if need	led)	
Unit of Service Payment \$	·	# of Units) X	(\$)		
# of Units) X (\$)	<u></u>	# of Units) X	(\$)		
# of Units) X (\$)		# of Units) X	(\$)		
Any questions regarding this request should be dire	atad ta				
any questions regurating this request should be different	Name		Ph	one Number	
I hereby certify under penalty of perjury that to the	hast of my lenavilad	aa tha ahaya ia tuu a	und normant		
thereby certary under penalty of perjury that to the	best of my knowled	ge me above is nue a	ina correct		
Authorized Signature	Titlo		Data		
Authorized Signature W FOR DPSS USE ONLY (DO NOT WRITE B	Title		Date		
W FOR DPSS USE ONLY (DO NOT WRITE B	ELOW THIS LIN	7)	Date		
Authorized Signature W FOR DPSS USE ONLY (DO NOT WRITE BE	ELOW THIS LIN	7)	Date		
W FOR DPSS USE ONLY (DO NOT WRITE B	ELOW THIS LIN	<u>v)</u>	Date Invoice #		
FOR DPSS USE ONLY (DO NOT WRITE BE	ELOW THIS LINE)	<u>v)</u>			
FOR DPSS USE ONLY (DO NOT WRITE BE)  Business Unit (5)  Account (6)	Purchase Order # (10)  Amount Authorized	<u>v)</u>	Invoice #	n:	
W FOR DPSS USE ONLY (DO NOT WRITE BE)  Business Unit (5)	Purchase Order # (10)  Amount Authorized		Invoice #	n:	
FOR DPSS USE ONLY (DO NOT WRITE BE)  Business Unit (5)  Account (6)	Purchase Order # (10)  Amount Authorized		Invoice #	n:	
FOR DPSS USE ONLY (DO NOT WRITE BE)  Business Unit (5)  Account (6)  Fund (5)	Purchase Order # (10)  Amount Authorized		Invoice #	n;	
FOR DPSS USE ONLY (DO NOT WRITE BE)  Business Unit (5)  Account (6)  Fund (5)	Purchase Order # (10)  Amount Authorized	different from amount red	Invoice #	n:	
Business Unit (5)  Account (6)  Fund (5)  Dept ID (10)	Purchase Order # (10)  Amount Authorized If amount authorized is	different from amount red	Invoice # quest, please explai	n:	
Business Unit (5) Account (6) Fund (5) Dept ID (10)  Program (5)  Class (10)	Program (if applicable  Management Reporting	different from amount red	Invoice # quest, please explai	n:	
W FOR DPSS USE ONLY (DO NOT WRITE BE)  Business Unit (5)  Account (6)  Fund (5)  Dept ID (10)  Program (5)	Program (if applicable	different from amount red	Invoice # quest, please explai	n:	

#### DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SOCIAL SERVICES FORMS

Mailing Instructions: When completed, these forms will summarize all of your claims for payment. Your Claims Packet will include DPSS 2076A, 2076B (if required). invoices, payroll verification, and copies of canceled checks attached, receipts, bank statements, sign-in sheets, daily logs, mileage logs, and other back-up documentation needed to comply with Contract/MOU.

Mail Claims Packet to address shown on upper left corner of DPSS 2076A. [see method, time, and schedule/condition of payments). (Please type or print information on all DPSS Forms.)

DPSS 2076A CONTRACTOR PAYMENT REQUEST

"Remit to Name"
The legal name of your agency.

"Address"

The remit to address used when this contract was established for your agency. All address changes must be submitted for processing prior to use.

"Contractor Name"

Business name, if different than legal name (if not leave blank).

"Contract Number"
Can be found on the first page of your contract.

"Amount Requested"
Fill in the total amount and billing period you are requesting payment for.

"Payment Type"

Check the box and enter the dollar amount for the type(s) of payment(s) you are requesting payment for.

"Any questions regarding..."
Fill in the name and phone number of the person to be contacted should any questions arise regarding your request for payment.

"Authorized Signature, Title, and Date (Contractor's)
Self-explanatory (required). Original Signature needed for payment.

EVERYTHING BELOW THE THICK SOLID LINE IS FOR DPSS USE ONLY AND SHOULD BE LEFT BLANK.

#### Exhibit B - Assurance of Compliance

# ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE RIVERSIDE COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SOCIAL SERVICES NONDISCRIMINATION IN STATE AND FEDERALLY ASSISTED PROGRAMS

<u> </u>	Olive Branch Counseling Center Inc.	** -
	NAME OF ORGANIZATION	

HEREBY AGREES THAT it will comply with Title VI and VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as amended; the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 as amended; the Food Stamp Act of 1977, as amended and in particular section 272.6; Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990; California Civil Code Section 51 et seq., as amended; California Government Code section 11135-11139.5, as amended; California Government Code section 4450; Title 22, California Code of Regulations section 98000 – 98413; Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations, Section 3105A(e); the Dymally-Alatorre Bilingual Services Act (California Government Code Section 7290-7299.8); Section 1808 of the Removal of Barriers to Interethnic Adoption Act of 1996; and other applicable federal and state laws, as well as their implementing regulations [including 45 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Parts 80, 84, and 91, 7 CFR Part 15, and 28 CFR Part 42], by ensuring that employment practices and the administration of public assistance and social services programs are nondiscriminatory, to the effect that no person shall because of ethnic group identification, age, sex, color, disability, medical condition, national origin, race, ancestry, marital status, religion, religious creed or political belief be excluded from participation in or be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subject to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal or state financial assistance; and HEREBY GIVE ASSURANCE THAT it will immediately take any measures necessary to effectuate this agreement.

THIS ASSURANCE is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all federal and state assistance; and THE VENDOR/RECIPIENT HEREBY GIVES ASSURANCE THAT administrative methods/procedures which have the effect of subjecting individuals to discrimination or defeating the objectives of the California Department of Social Services (CDSS) Manual of Policies and Procedures (MPP) Chapter 21, will be prohibited.

BY ACCEPTING THIS ASSURANCE, the vendor/recipient agrees to compile data, maintain records and submit reports as required, to permit effective enforcement of the aforementioned laws, rules and regulations and permit authorized CDSS and/or federal government personnel, during normal working hours, to review such records, books and accounts as needed to ascertain compliance. If there are any violations of this assurance, CDSS shall have the right to invoke fiscal sanctions or other legal remedies in accordance with Welfare and Institutions Code section 10605, or Government Code section 11135-11139.5, or any other laws, or the issue may be referred to the appropriate federal agency for further compliance action and enforcement of this assurance.

THIS ASSURANCE is binding on the vendor/recipient directly or through contract, license, or other provider services, as long as it receives federal or state assistance.

Date			Director's Signature	
4041 Brockton Ave Riverside, CA 92501				
Address of Vendor/Recipient	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
(08/13/01)			CR50-Vendor Assuranc	e of Compliance

#### Exhibit C - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement

#### HIPAA Business Associate Addendum to the Agreement

#### Addendum to Contract

Between the County of Riverside and Olive Branch Counseling Center Inc.

This HIPAA Business Associate Agreement (the "Addendum") supplements, and is made part of Agreement #CS-03726 (the "Underlying Agreement") between the County of Riverside ("County") and Olive Branch Counseling Center Inc. ("Contractor") and shall be effective as of the date the Underlying Agreement is approved by both Parties (the "Effective Date").

#### **RECITALS**

WHEREAS, County and Contractor entered into the Underlying Agreement pursuant to which the Contractor provides services to County, and in conjunction with the provision of such services certain protected health information ("PHI") and/or certain electronic protected health information ("ePHI") may be created by or made available to Contractor for the purposes of carrying out its obligations under the Underlying Agreement; and,

WHEREAS, the provisions of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 ("HIPAA"), Public Law 104-191 enacted August 21, 1996, and the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act ("HITECH") of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, Public Law 111-5 enacted February 17, 2009, and the laws and regulations promulgated subsequent thereto, as may be amended from time to time, are applicable to the protection of any use or disclosure of PHI and/or ePHI pursuant to the Underlying Agreement; and,

WHEREAS, County is a covered entity, as defined in the Privacy Rule; and,

WHEREAS, to the extent County discloses PHI and/or ePHI to Contractor or Contractor creates, receives, maintains, transmits, or has access to PHI and/or ePHI of County, Contractor is a business associate, as defined in the Privacy Rule; and,

WHEREAS, pursuant to 42 USC §17931 and §17934, certain provisions of the Security Rule and Privacy Rule apply to a business associate of a covered entity in the same manner that they apply to the covered entity, the additional security and privacy requirements of HITECH are applicable to business associates and must be incorporated into the business associate agreement, and a business associate is liable for civil and criminal penalties for failure to comply with these security and/or privacy provisions; and,

WHEREAS, the parties mutually agree that any use or disclosure of PHI and/or ePHI must be in compliance with the Privacy Rule, Security Rule, HIPAA, HITECH and any other applicable law; and,

WHEREAS, the parties intend to enter into this Addendum to address the requirements and obligations set forth in the Privacy Rule, Security Rule, HITECH and HIPAA as they apply to Contractor as a business associate of County, including the establishment of permitted and required uses and disclosures of PHI and/or ePHI created or received by Contractor during the course of performing functions, services and activities on behalf of County, and appropriate limitations and conditions on such uses and disclosures;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained herein, the parties agree as follows:

- 1. <u>Definitions</u>. Terms used, but not otherwise defined, in this Addendum shall have the same meaning as those terms in HITECH, HIPAA, Security Rule and/or Privacy Rule, as may be amended from time to time.
  - A. "Breach" when used in connection with PHI means the acquisition, access, use or disclosure of PHI in a manner not permitted under subpart E of the Privacy Rule which compromises the security or privacy of the PHI, and shall have the meaning given such term in 45 CFR §164.402.
    - (1) Except as provided below in Paragraph (2) of this definition, acquisition, access, use, or disclosure of PHI in a manner not permitted by subpart E of the Privacy Rule is presumed to be a breach unless Contractor demonstrates that there is a low probability that the PHI has been compromised based on a risk assessment of at least the following four factors:
      - (a) The nature and extent of the PHI involved, including the types of identifiers and the likelihood of reidentification;
      - (b) The unauthorized person who used the PHI or to whom the disclosure was made;
      - (c) Whether the PHI was actually acquired or viewed; and
      - (d) The extent to which the risk to the PHI has been mitigated.

#### (2) Breach excludes:

- (a) Any unintentional acquisition, access or use of PHI by a workforce member or person acting under the authority of a covered entity or business associate, if such acquisition, access or use was made in good faith and within the scope of authority and does not result in further use or disclosure in a manner not permitted under subpart E of the Privacy Rule.
- (b) Any inadvertent disclosure by a person who is authorized to access PHI at a covered entity or business associate to another person authorized to access PHI at the same covered entity, business associate, or organized health care arrangement in which County participates, and the information received as a result of such disclosure is not further used or disclosed in a manner not permitted by subpart E of the Privacy Rule.
- (c) A disclosure of PHI where a covered entity or business associate has a good faith belief that an unauthorized person to whom the disclosure was made would not reasonably have been able to retain such information.
- B. "Business associate" has the meaning given such term in 45 CFR §164.501, including but not limited to a subcontractor that creates, receives, maintains, transmits or accesses PHI on behalf of the business associate.
- C. "Data aggregation" has the meaning given such term in 45 CFR §164.501.
- D. "Designated record set" as defined in 45 CFR §164.501 means a group of records maintained by or for a covered entity that may include: the medical records and billing records about individuals maintained by or for a covered health care provider; the enrollment, payment, claims adjudication, and case or medical management record systems maintained by or for a health plan; or, used, in whole or in part, by or for the covered entity to make decisions about individuals.
- E. "Electronic protected health information" ("ePHI") as defined in 45 CFR §160.103 means protected health information transmitted by or maintained in electronic media.

- F. "Electronic health record" means an electronic record of health-related information on an individual that is created, gathered, managed, and consulted by authorized health care clinicians and staff, and shall have the meaning given such term in 42 USC §17921(5).
- G. "Health care operations" has the meaning given such term in 45 CFR §164.501.
- H. "Individual" as defined in 45 CFR §160.103 means the person who is the subject of protected health information.
- I. "Person" as defined in 45 CFR §160.103 means a natural person, trust or estate, partnership, corporation, professional association or corporation, or other entity, public or private.
- J. "Privacy Rule" means the HIPAA regulations codified at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, Subparts A 17 and E.
- K. "Protected health information" ("PHI") has the meaning given such term in 45 CFR §160.103, which includes ePHI.
- L. "Required by law" has the meaning given such term in 45 CFR §164.103.
- M. "Secretary" means the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 22 ("HHS").
- N. "Security incident" as defined in 45 CFR §164.304 means the attempted or successful unauthorized access, use, disclosure, modification, or destruction of information or interference with system operations in an information system.
- O. "Security Rule" means the HIPAA Regulations codified at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, Subparts 27 A and C.
- P. "Subcontractor" as defined in 45 CFR §160.103 means a person to whom a business associate delegates a function, activity, or service, other than in the capacity of a member of the workforce of such business associate.
- Q. "Unsecured protected health information" and "unsecured PHI" as defined in 45 CFR §164.402 means PHI not rendered unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized persons through use of a technology or methodology specified by the Secretary in the guidance issued 34 under 42 USC §17932(h)(2).

## 2. Scope of Use and Disclosure by Contractor of County's PHI and/or ePHI.

- A. Except as otherwise provided in this Addendum, Contractor may use, disclose, or access PHI and/or ePHI as necessary to perform any and all obligations of Contractor under the Underlying Agreement or to perform functions, activities or services for, or on behalf of, County as specified in this Addendum, if such use or disclosure does not violate HIPAA, HITECH, the Privacy Rule and/or Security Rule.
- B. Unless otherwise limited herein, in addition to any other uses and/or disclosures permitted or authorized by this Addendum or required by law, in accordance with 45 CFR §164.504(e)(2), Contractor may:
  - (1) Use PHI and/or ePHI if necessary for Contractor's proper management and administration and to carry out its legal responsibilities; and,
  - (2) Disclose PHI and/or ePHI for the purpose of Contractor's proper management and administration or to carry out its legal responsibilities, only if:
    - (a) The disclosure is required by law; or,
    - (b) Contractor obtains reasonable assurances, in writing, from the person to whom Contractor will Hold such PHI disclose such PHI and/or ePHI that the person will:

- (i) and/or ePHI in confidence and use or further disclose it only for the purpose for which Contractor disclosed it to the person, or as required by law; and,
- (ii) Notify Contractor of any instances of which it becomes aware in which the confidentiality of the information has been breached; and,
- (3) Use PHI to provide data aggregation services relating to the health care operations of County pursuant to the Underlying Agreement or as requested by County; and,
- (4) De-identify all PHI and/or ePHI of County received by Contractor under this Addendum provided that the de-identification conforms to the requirements of the Privacy Rule and/or 24 Security Rule and does not preclude timely payment and/or claims processing and receipt.
- C. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in any instance where applicable state and/or federal laws and/or regulations are more stringent in their requirements than the provisions of HIPAA, including, but not limited to, prohibiting disclosure of mental health and/or substance abuse records, the applicable state and/or federal laws and/or regulations shall control the disclosure of records.

#### 3. Prohibited Uses and Disclosures.

- A. Contractor may neither use, disclose, nor access PHI and/or ePHI in a manner not authorized by the Underlying Agreement or this Addendum without patient authorization or de-identification of the PHI and/or ePHI and as authorized in writing from County.
- B. Contractor may neither use, disclose, nor access PHI and/or ePHI it receives from County or from another business associate of County, except as permitted or required by this Addendum, or as required by law.
- C. Contractor agrees not to make any disclosure of PHI and/or ePHI that County would be prohibited from making.
- D. Contractor shall not use or disclose PHI for any purpose prohibited by the Privacy Rule, Security Rule, HIPAA and/or HITECH, including, but not limited to 42 USC §17935 and §17936. Contractor agrees:
  - (1) Not to use or disclose PHI for fundraising, unless pursuant to the Underlying Agreement and only if permitted by and in compliance with the requirements of 45 CFR §164.514(f) or 45 CFR §164.508;
  - (2) Not to use or disclose PHI for marketing, as defined in 45 CFR §164.501, unless pursuant to the Underlying Agreement and only if permitted by and in compliance with the requirements of 45 CFR §164.508(a)(3);
  - (3) Not to disclose PHI, except as otherwise required by law, to a health plan for purposes of carrying out payment or health care operations, if the individual has requested this restriction pursuant to 42 USC §17935(a) and 45 CFR §164.522, and has paid out of pocket in full for the health care item or service to which the PHI solely relates; and,
  - (4) Not to receive, directly or indirectly, remuneration in exchange for PHI, or engage in any act that would constitute a sale of PHI, as defined in 45 CFR §164.502(a)(5)(ii), unless permitted by the Underlying Agreement and in compliance with the requirements of a valid authorization under 45 CFR §164.508(a)(4). This prohibition shall not apply to payment by County to Contractor for services provided pursuant to the Underlying Agreement.

#### 4. Obligations of County.

- A. County agrees to make its best efforts to notify Contractor promptly in writing of any restrictions on the use or disclosure of PHI and/or ePHI agreed to by County that may affect Contractor's ability to perform its obligations under the Underlying Agreement, or this Addendum.
- B. County agrees to make its best efforts to promptly notify Contractor in writing of any changes in, or revocation of, permission by any individual to use or disclose PHI and/or ePHI, if such changes or revocation may affect Contractor's ability to perform its obligations under the Underlying Agreement, or this Addendum.
- C. County agrees to make its best efforts to promptly notify Contractor in writing of any known limitation(s) in its notice of privacy practices to the extent that such limitation may affect Contractor's use or disclosure of PHI and/or ePHI.
- D. County agrees not to request Contractor to use or disclose PHI and/or ePHI in any manner that would not be permissible under HITECH, HIPAA, the Privacy Rule, and/or Security Rule.
- E. County agrees to obtain any authorizations necessary for the use or disclosure of PHI and/or ePHI, so that Contractor can perform its obligations under this Addendum and/or Underlying Agreement.
- 5. Obligations of Contractor. In connection with the use or disclosure of PHI and/or ePHI, Contractor agrees to:
  - A. Use or disclose PHI only if such use or disclosure complies with each applicable requirement of 45 CFR §164.504(e). Contractor shall also comply with the additional privacy requirements that are applicable to covered entities in HITECH, as may be amended from time to time.
  - B. Not use or further disclose PHI and/or ePHI other than as permitted or required by this Addendum or as required by law. Contractor shall promptly notify County if Contractor is required by law to disclose PHI and/or ePHI.
  - C. Use appropriate safeguards and comply, where applicable, with the Security Rule with respect to ePHI, to prevent use or disclosure of PHI and/or ePHI other than as provided for by this Addendum.
  - D. Mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect that is known to Contractor of a use or disclosure of PHI and/or ePHI by Contractor in violation of this Addendum.
  - E. Report to County any use or disclosure of PHI and/or ePHI not provided for by this Addendum or otherwise in violation of HITECH, HIPAA, the Privacy Rule, and/or Security Rule of which Contractor becomes aware, including breaches of unsecured PHI as required by 45 CFR §164.410.
  - F. In accordance with 45 CFR §164.502(e)(1)(ii), require that any subcontractors that create, receive, maintain, transmit or access PHI on behalf of the Contractor agree through contract to the same restrictions and conditions that apply to Contractor with respect to such PHI and/or ePHI, including the restrictions and conditions pursuant to this Addendum.
  - G. Make available to County or the Secretary, in the time and manner designated by County or Secretary, Contractor's internal practices, books and records relating to the use, disclosure and privacy protection of PHI received from County, or created or received by Contractor on behalf of County, for purposes of determining, investigating or auditing Contractor's and/or County's compliance with the Privacy Rule.
  - H. Request, use or disclose only the minimum amount of PHI necessary to accomplish the intended purpose of the request, use or disclosure in accordance with 42 USC §17935(b) and 45 CFR §164.502(b)(1).
  - I. Comply with requirements of satisfactory assurances under 45 CFR §164.512 relating to notice or qualified protective order in response to a third party's subpoena, discovery request, or other lawful process for the

- disclosure of PHI, which Contractor shall promptly notify County upon Contractor's receipt of such request from a third party.
- J. Not require an individual to provide patient authorization for use or disclosure of PHI as a condition for treatment, payment, enrollment in any health plan (including the health plan administered by County), or eligibility of benefits, unless otherwise excepted under 45 CFR §164.508(b)(4) and authorized in writing by County.
- K. Use appropriate administrative, technical and physical safeguards to prevent inappropriate use, disclosure, or access of PHI and/or ePHI.
- L. Obtain and maintain knowledge of applicable laws and regulations related to HIPAA and HITECH, as may be amended from time to time.
- M. Comply with the requirements of the Privacy Rule that apply to the County to the extentContractor is to carry out County's obligations under the Privacy Rule.
- N. Take reasonable steps to cure or end any pattern of activity or practice of its subcontractor of which Contractor becomes aware that constitute a material breach or violation of the subcontractor's obligations under the business associate contract with Contractor, and if such steps are unsuccessful, Contractor agrees to terminate its contract with the subcontractor if feasible.
- 6. Access to PHI, Amendment and Disclosure Accounting. Contractor agrees to:
  - A. Access to PHI, including ePHI. Provide access to PHI, including ePHI if maintained electronically, in a designated record set to County or an individual as directed by County, within five (5) days of request from County, to satisfy the requirements of 45 CFR §164.524.
  - B. Amendment of PHI. Make PHI available for amendment and incorporate amendments to PHI in a designated record set County directs or agrees to at the request of an individual, within fifteen (15) days of receiving a written request from County, in accordance with 45 CFR §164.526.
  - C. Accounting of disclosures of PHI and electronic health record. Assist County to fulfill its obligations to provide accounting of disclosures of PHI under 45 CFR §164.528 and, where applicable, electronic health records under 42 USC §17935(c) if Contractor uses or maintains electronic health records. Contractor shall:
    - (1) Document such disclosures of PHI and/or electronic health records, and information related to such disclosures, as would be required for County to respond to a request by an individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI and/or electronic health record in accordance with 45 CFR §164.528.
    - (2) Within fifteen (15) days of receiving a written request from County, provide to County or any individual as directed by County information collected in accordance with this section to permit County to respond to a request by an individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI and/or electronic health record.
    - (3) Make available for County information required by this Section 6.C for six (6) years preceding the individual's request for accounting of disclosures of PHI, and for three (3) years preceding the individual's request for accounting of disclosures of electronic health record.
- 7. Security of ePHI. In the event County discloses ePHI to Contractor or Contractor needs to create, receive, maintain, transmit or have access to County ePHI, in accordance with 42 USC §17931 and 45 CFR §164.314(a)(2)(i), and §164.306, Contractor shall:
  - A. Comply with the applicable requirements of the Security Rule, and implement administrative, physical, and technical safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability

- of ePHI that Contractor creates, receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of County in accordance with 45 CFR §164.308, §164.310, and §164.312:
- B. Comply with each of the requirements of 45 CFR §164.316 relating to the implementation of policies, procedures and documentation requirements with respect to ePHI;
- C. Protect against any reasonably anticipated threats or hazards to the security or integrity of ePHI;
- D. Protect against any reasonably anticipated uses or disclosures of ePHI that are not permitted or required under the Privacy Rule;
- E. Ensure compliance with the Security Rule by Contractor's workforce;
- F. In accordance with 45 CFR §164.308(b)(2), require that any subcontractors that create, receive, maintain, transmit, or access ePHI on behalf of Contractor agree through contract to the same restrictions and requirements contained in this Addendum and comply with the applicable requirements of the Security Rule;
- G. Report to County any security incident of which Contractor becomes aware, including breaches of unsecured PHI as required by 45 CFR §164.410; and,
- H. Comply with any additional security requirements that are applicable to covered entities in Title 42 (Public Health and Welfare) of the United States Code, as may be amended from time to time, including but not limited to HITECH.
- 8. <u>Breach of Unsecured PHI</u>. In the case of breach of unsecured PHI, Contractor shall comply with the applicable provisions of 42 USC §17932 and 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart D, including but not limited to 45 CFR §164.410.
  - A. **Discovery and notification.** Following the discovery of a breach of unsecured PHI, Contractor shall notify County in writing of such breach without unreasonable delay and in no case later than 60 calendar days after discovery of a breach, except as provided in 45 CFR §164.412.
    - (1) Breaches treated as discovered. A breach is treated as discovered by Contractor as of the first day on which such breach is known to Contractor or, by exercising reasonable diligence, would have been known to Contractor, which includes any person, other than the person committing the breach, who is an employee, officer, or other agent of Contractor (determined in accordance with the federal common law of agency).
    - (2) Content of notification. The written notification to County relating to breach of unsecured PHI shall include, to the extent possible, the following information if known (or can be reasonably obtained) by Contractor:
      - (a) The identification of each individual whose unsecured PHI has been, or is reasonably believed by Contractor to have been accessed, acquired, used or disclosed during the breach;
      - (b) A brief description of what happened, including the date of the breach and the date of the discovery of the breach, if known;
      - (c) A description of the types of unsecured PHI involved in the breach, such as whether full name, social security number, date of birth, home address, account number, diagnosis, disability code, or other types of information were involved;
      - (d) Any steps individuals should take to protect themselves from potential harm resulting from the breach;

- (e) A brief description of what Contractor is doing to investigate the breach, to mitigate harm to individuals, and to protect against any further breaches; and,
- (f) Contact procedures for individuals to ask questions or learn additional information, which shall include a toll-free telephone number, an e-mail address, web site, or postal address.
- B. Cooperation. With respect to any breach of unsecured PHI reported by Contractor, Contractor shall cooperate with County and shall provide County with any information requested by County to enable County to fulfill in a timely manner its own reporting and notification obligations, including but not limited to providing notice to individuals, prominent media outlets and the Secretary in accordance with 42 USC §17932 and 45 CFR §164.404, §164.406 and §164.408.
- C. **Breach log.** To the extent breach of unsecured PHI involves less than 500 individuals, Contractor shall maintain a log or other documentation of such breaches and provide such log or other documentation on an annual basis to County not later than fifteen (15) days after the end of each calendar year for submission to the Secretary.
- D. Delay of notification authorized by law enforcement. If Contractor delays notification of breach of unsecured PHI pursuant to a law enforcement official's statement that required notification, notice or posting would impede a criminal investigation or cause damage to national security, Contractor shall maintain documentation sufficient to demonstrate its compliance with the requirements of 45 CFR §164.412.
- E. Payment of costs. With respect to any breach of unsecured PHI caused solely by the Contractor's failure to comply with one or more of its obligations under this Addendum and/or the provisions of HITECH, HIPAA, the Privacy Rule or the Security Rule, Contractor agrees to pay any and all costs associated with providing all legally required notifications to individuals, media outlets, and the Secretary. This provision shall not be construed to limit or diminish Contractor's obligations to indemnify, defend and hold harmless County under Section 9 of this Addendum.
- F. **Documentation.** Pursuant to 45 CFR §164.414(b), in the event Contractor's use or disclosure of PHI and/or ePHI violates the Privacy Rule, Contractor shall maintain documentation sufficient to demonstrate that all notifications were made by Contractor as required by 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart D, or that such use or disclosure did not constitute a breach, including Contractor's completed risk assessment and investigation documentation.
- G. Additional State Reporting Requirements. The parties agree that this Section 8.G applies only if and/or when County, in its capacity as a licensed clinic, health facility, home health agency, or hospice, is required to report unlawful or unauthorized access, use, or disclosure of medical information under the more stringent requirements of California Health & Safety Code §1280.15. For purposes of this Section 8.G, "unauthorized" has the meaning given such term in California Health & Safety Code §1280.15(j)(2).
  - (1) Contractor agrees to assist County to fulfill its reporting obligations to affected patients and to the California Department of Public Health ("CDPH") in a timely manner under the California Health & Safety Code §1280.15.
  - (2) Contractor agrees to report to County any unlawful or unauthorized access, use, or disclosure of patient's medical information without unreasonable delay and no later than two (2) business days after Contractor detects such incident. Contractor further agrees such report shall be made in writing, and shall include substantially the same types of information listed above in Section 8.A.2 (Content of Notification) as applicable to the unlawful or unauthorized access, use, or disclosure as defined above in this section, understanding and acknowledging that the term "breach" as used in Section 8.A.2 does not apply to California Health & Safety Code §1280.15.

#### 9. Hold Harmless/Indemnification.

- A. Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless County, all Agencies, Districts, Special Districts and Departments of County, their respective directors, officers, Board of Supervisors, elected and appointed officials, employees, agents and representatives from any liability whatsoever, based or asserted upon any services of Contractor, its officers, employees, subcontractors, agents or representatives arising out of or in any way relating to this Addendum, including but not limited to property damage, bodily injury, death, or any other element of any kind or nature whatsoever arising from the performance of Contractor, its officers, agents, employees, subcontractors, agents or representatives from this Addendum. Contractor shall defend, at its sole expense, all costs and fees, including but not limited to attorney fees, cost of investigation, defense and settlements or awards, of County, all Agencies, Districts, Special Districts and Departments of County, their respective directors, officers, Board of Supervisors, elected and appointed officials, employees, agents or representatives in any claim or action based upon such alleged acts or omissions.
- B. With respect to any action or claim subject to indemnification herein by Contractor, Contractor shall, at their sole cost, have the right to use counsel of their choice, subject to the approval of County, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, and shall have the right to adjust, settle, or compromise any such action or claim without the prior consent of County; provided, however, that any such adjustment, settlement or compromise in no manner whatsoever limits or circumscribes Contractor's indemnification to County as set forth herein. Contractor's obligation to defend, indemnify and hold harmless County shall be subject to County having given Contractor written notice within a reasonable period of time of the claim or of the commencement of the related action, as the case may be, and information and reasonable assistance, at Contractor's expense, for the defense or settlement thereof. Contractor's obligation hereunder shall be satisfied when Contractor has provided to County the appropriate form of dismissal relieving County from any liability for the action or claim involved.
- C. The specified insurance limits required in the Underlying Agreement of this Addendum shall in no way limit or circumscribe Contractor's obligations to indemnify and hold harmless County herein from third party claims arising from issues of this Addendum.
- D. In the event there is conflict between this clause and California Civil Code §2782, this clause shall be interpreted to comply with Civil Code §2782. Such interpretation shall not relieve the Contractor from indemnifying County to the fullest extent allowed by law.
- E. In the event there is a conflict between this indemnification clause and an indemnification clause contained in the Underlying Agreement of this Addendum, this indemnification shall only apply to the subject issues included within this Addendum.
- 10. <u>Term.</u> This Addendum shall commence upon the Effective Date and shall terminate when all PHI and/or ePHI provided by County to Contractor, or created or received by Contractor on behalf of County, is destroyed or returned to County, or, if it is infeasible to return or destroy PHI and/ePHI, protections are extended to such information, in accordance with section 11.B of this Addendum.

#### 11. Termination.

- A. Termination for Breach of Contract. A breach of any provision of this Addendum by either party shall constitute a material breach of the Underlying Agreement and will provide grounds for terminating this Addendum and the Underlying Agreement with or without an opportunity to cure the breach, notwithstanding any provision in the Underlying Agreement to the contrary. Either party, upon written notice to the other party describing the breach, may take any of the following actions:
  - (1) Terminate the Underlying Agreement and this Addendum, effective immediately, if the other party breaches a material provision of this Addendum.

- (2) Provide the other party with an opportunity to cure the alleged material breach and in the event the other party fails to cure the breach to the satisfaction of the non-breaching party in a timely manner, the non-breaching party has the right to immediately terminate the Underlying Agreement and this Addendum.
- (3) If termination of the Underlying Agreement is not feasible, the breaching party, upon the request of the non-breaching party, shall implement, at its own expense, a plan to cure the breach and report regularly on its compliance with such plan to the non-breaching party.

#### B. Effect of Termination.

- (1) Upon termination of this Addendum, for any reason, Contractor shall return or, if agreed to in writing by County, destroy all PHI and/or ePHI received from County, or created or received by the Contractor on behalf of County, and, in the event of destruction, Contractor shall certify such destruction, in writing, to County. This provision shall apply to all PHI and/or ePHI which are in the possession of subcontractors or agents of Contractor. Contractor shall retain no copies of PHI and/or ePHI, except as provided below in paragraph (2) of this section.
- (2) In the event that Contractor determines that returning or destroying the PHI and/or ePHI is not feasible, Contractor shall provide written notification to County of the conditions that make such return or destruction not feasible. Upon determination by Contractor that return or destruction of PHI and/or ePHI is not feasible, Contractor shall extend the protections of this Addendum to such PHI and/or ePHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI and/or ePHI to those purposes which make the return or destruction not feasible, for so long as Contractor maintains such PHI and/or ePHI.

#### 12. General Provisions.

- A. Retention Period. Whenever Contractor is required to document or maintain documentation pursuant to the terms of this Addendum, Contractor shall retain such documentation for 6 years from the date of its creation or as otherwise prescribed by law, whichever is later.
- B. Amendment. The parties agree to take such action as is necessary to amend this Addendum from time to time as is necessary for County to comply with HITECH, the Privacy Rule, Security Rule, and HIPAA generally.
- C. Survival. The obligations of Contractor under Sections 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 11.B and 12.A of this Addendum shall survive the termination or expiration of this Addendum.
- D. Regulatory and Statutory References. A reference in this Addendum to a section in HITECH, HIPAA, the Privacy Rule and/or Security Rule means the section(s) as in effect or as amended.
- E. Conflicts. The provisions of this Addendum shall prevail over any provisions in the Underlying Agreement that conflict or appear inconsistent with any provision in this Addendum.

#### F. Interpretation of Addendum.

- (1) This Addendum shall be construed to be part of the Underlying Agreement as one document. The purpose is to supplement the Underlying Agreement to include the requirements of the Privacy Rule, Security Rule, HIPAA and HITECH.
- (2) Any ambiguity between this Addendum and the Underlying Agreement shall be resolved to permit County to comply with the Privacy Rule, Security Rule, HIPAA and HITECH generally.

G. Notices to County. All notifications required to be given by Contractor to County pursuant to the terms of this Addendum shall be made in writing and delivered to the County both by fax and to both of the addresses listed below by either registered or certified mail return receipt requested or guaranteed overnight mail with tracing capability, or at such other address as County may hereafter designate. All notices to County provided by Contractor pursuant to this Section shall be deemed given or made when received by County.

955-4472	
SONNEL ONLY—	

County of Riverside BAA 09/2013

# Exhibit D – Geographical Zone List

Zor	
North	,
City	Zip code
Calimesa	92320
Colton	92324
Corona	92879
Corona	92880
Corona	92881
Corona	92882
Mira Loma	91752
Norco	92860
Riverside	92501
Riverside	92502
Riverside	92503
Riverside	92504
Riverside	92505
Riverside	92506
Riverside	92507
Riverside	92508
Riverside	92509
Calimesa	92320
Calimesa	92320
Colton	92324
Corona	92879
Corona	92880

Client Name:	
Intake Date: Provider Name:	
Service Type:	
Provider Client ID #:	
CWS/CMS Client ID #:	
Service Delivery Location: Client home Other (specify):	
What is your relationship to the children in your household?  Biological Parent	
☐ Adoptive Parent ☐ Step Parent	
Foster Parent	
Grandparent	
Relative	
Non-Related Caregiver	
[This is the date that the Service Provider receives the	ne Referral]
Primary referral source (or, How did you hear about us) (sele	
	ect one only):
Primary referral source (or, How did you hear about us) (sele	ect one only):  Medicaid/Medi-
Primary referral source (or, How did you hear about us) (sele	ect one only):
Primary referral source (or, How did you hear about us) (selection   Adoption Assistance Program Eligibility  CBO (Community-based organization, including 2-1-1)	Medicaid/Medi- Cal Private Adoption Agency
Primary referral source (or, How did you hear about us) (selection   Adoption Assistance Program Eligibility  CBO (Community-based organization, including 2-1-1)  DMH (Department of Mental Health)	Medicaid/Medi- Cal Private Adoption Agency School
Primary referral source (or, How did you hear about us) (seles Adoption Assistance Program Eligibility  CBO (Community-based organization, including 2-1-1)  DMH (Department of Mental Health)  DOP (Department of Probation)	Medicaid/Medi- Cal Private Adoption Agency School Self-Referred
Primary referral source (or, How did you hear about us) (selection   Adoption Assistance Program Eligibility  CBO (Community-based organization, including 2-1-1)  DMH (Department of Mental Health)	Medicaid/Medi- Cal Private Adoption Agency School Self-Referred State
Primary referral source (or, How did you hear about us) (seles Adoption Assistance Program Eligibility  CBO (Community-based organization, including 2-1-1)  DMH (Department of Mental Health)  DOP (Department of Probation)	Medicaid/Medi- Cal Private Adoption Agency School Self-Referred Adoptions Office
Primary referral source (or, How did you hear about us) (selection   Adoption Assistance Program Eligibility  CBO (Community-based organization, including 2-1-1)  DMH (Department of Mental Health)  DOP (Department of Probation)  DPSS Children's Services	Medicaid/Medi- Cal Private Adoption Agency School Self-Referred State
Primary referral source (or, How did you hear about us) (selection   Adoption Assistance Program Eligibility  CBO (Community-based organization, including 2-1-1)  DMH (Department of Mental Health)  DOP (Department of Probation)  DPSS Children's Services  DPSS Other Services  DR (Differential Response)	Medicaid/Medi- Cal Private Adoption Agency School Self-Referred State Adoptions Office WIC Othe (specify):
Primary referral source (or, How did you hear about us) (seles Adoption Assistance Program Eligibility  CBO (Community-based organization, including 2-1-1)  DMH (Department of Mental Health)  DOP (Department of Probation)  DPSS Children's Services  DPSS Other Services  DR (Differential Response)  To improve social service delivery and meet the diver	Medicaid/Medi- Cal Private Adoption Agency School Self-Referred State Adoptions Office WIC Othe (specify): se needs of our client populations
Primary referral source (or, How did you hear about us) (seles Adoption Assistance Program Eligibility  CBO (Community-based organization, including 2-1-1)  DMH (Department of Mental Health)  DOP (Department of Probation)  DPSS Children's Services  DPSS Other Services  DR (Differential Response)  To improve social service delivery and meet the diver	Medicaid/Medi- Cal Private Adoption Agency School Self-Referred State Adoptions Office WIC Othe (specify): se needs of our client populations of the privacy is maintained over

2. Date of Birth:

	Black/African American		Native American/Indian
	Asian/Pacific Islander		Other
	☐ White/European		
Oo you hay [ [	nguage spoken in the home?  English Other  Spanish  ve a disability?  Yes  No  try were you born in?  United States  Other (specify):	(specify):	
How many		nited States?	
How many	years have you lived in the U	less	
How many	years have you lived in the U	less	
	years have you lived in the U One year or More than one year: N/A, born in US	less	
Marital sta	years have you lived in the U One year or More than one year: N/A, born in US tus:	less (number of years)	
Marital sta	years have you lived in the U One year or More than one year: N/A, born in US tus:	less (number of years)  Divorced	
Marital sta Married Single, 1	years have you lived in the U  One year or  More than one year:  N/A, born in US  tus:	less (number of years)  Divorced Separated	
Marital sta	years have you lived in the U  One year or  More than one year:  N/A, born in US  tus:	less (number of years)  Divorced	
Marital sta Married Single, 1 Widowe  Are you cu	years have you lived in the U  One year or  More than one year:  N/A, born in US  tus:  never married  rrently employed?  Yes, full-time (37 or more ho  Yes, part-time (less than 37 h  No	Divorced Separated Domestic P  Durs per week)  Dours per week)	
Marital sta Married Single, 1 Widowe  Are you cu	years have you lived in the U  One year or  More than one year:  N/A, born in US  tus:  never married  d  rrently employed?  Yes, full-time (37 or more ho) Yes, part-time (less than 37 h) No  Ir highest level of education o	Divorced Separated Domestic P  Durs per week)  Dours per week)	artner
Marital sta Married Single, 1 Widowe  Are you cu	years have you lived in the U  One year or  More than one year:  N/A, born in US  tus:  never married  Yes, full-time (37 or more ho  Yes, part-time (less than 37 h  No  Ir highest level of education o  4th grade or less	Divorced Separated Domestic P  Durs per week)  Dours per week)	artner  Some college
Marital sta Married Single, 1 Widowe  Are you cu	years have you lived in the U  One year or  More than one year:  N/A, born in US  tus:  never married  d  rrently employed?  Yes, full-time (37 or more ho) Yes, part-time (less than 37 h) No  Ir highest level of education o	Divorced Separated Domestic P  Durs per week)  Dours per week)	artner  Some college College Degree
Marital sta Married Single, 1 Widowe  Are you cu	years have you lived in the U  One year or  More than one year:  N/A, born in US  tus:  never married  d  rrently employed?  Yes, full-time (37 or more ho) Yes, part-time (less than 37 h) No  Ir highest level of education o  4 <sup>th</sup> grade or less  5 <sup>th</sup> grade to 8 <sup>th</sup> grade	Divorced Separated Domestic P  Durs per week)  Dours per week)	artner  Some college

	l	
	l NT	_
	$\perp I J$	L

13.	What kind of public assistance has the	participant and	d/or child r	eceived w	ithin the past	6
	months? (Check all that apply.)					
	CalWORKS/Welfare		<b>.</b>			
	☐ TANF					
	General Assistance					
	☐ Disability Benefits					
	Medi-Cal/Medicare/Medica	id – participant				
	Medi-Cal/Medicare/Medica	id – child				
	Food stamps	id Offid				
	SSI					
	AAP Monies					
	Unemployment insurance be	mofita				
	State Children's Health Insu		(CCIIID)			
	WIC State Children's Health hist	rance Program	(SCHIP)			
	Government subsidized chile					
		a care				
	Other (specify)					
	4.4 3371					
Г	14. What is your total annual hor	usehold income				
-	Less than \$10,000		\$45,000-\$	49,999		
L	<u> </u>		\$50,000-\$	54,999		
	<b>\$15,000-\$19,999</b>		\$55,000-\$	59,999		
	<b>\$20,000-\$24,999</b>		\$60,000-\$			
	<b>\$25,000-\$29,999</b>		\$65,000-\$			
	\$30,000-\$34,999		\$70,000-\$			
ľ	\$35,000-\$39,999		\$75,000-\$			
ļ	\$40,000-\$44,999	· <b>L</b>	\$80,000 or			
L_			յ աստ,սսս Մ	THILD		

15. Number of children under the age of 18 in your household?

# Exhibit F – Satisfaction Survey/Exit Form

Satisfaction Survey / Exit Form

	Name: Provider Name: Today's	TYPE THIS	IN					
Ins	Date: Service Type: structions: For ea	ch question, please che	eck the	box that be	est describ	es your respo	onse.	
				Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Always
1.	I looked forward to class/session/prog							
2.	l was bored in clas	s/session/program.						
3.	I put a lot of effort	into class/session/progra	m.					
4.	This class/session/ learning experienc	program was an excellent e.						
5.	I learned nothing.							
6.	I thought that my f to this class/sessio	riends and family should on program.	come					
7.	My clinician/instru understandable.	ctor was clear and	:					
8.	My clinician/instruappointments.	ctor was on time to						
9.	My clinician/instructions class material.	ctor was good at explainin	ng the					
10.	My clinician/instruction personal goals and	ctor speaks with me abou thoughts about treatmen	t my t.					

	Never	Rarely	Sometimes	Often	Always
11. My clinician/instructor and I are open with one another.					
12. My clinician/instructor and I share a trusting relationship.					
13. I believe my clinician/instructor withholds the truth from me.					
14. My clinician/instructor and I share an honest relationship.					
15. My clinician/instructor and I work towards mutually agreed upon goals.					
16. My clinician/instructor is stern with me when I speak about things that are important to me and my situation.					
17. My clinician/instructor and I have established an understanding of the kind of changes that would be good for me.					
18. My clinician/instructor is impatient with me.					
19. My clinician/instructor seems to like me regardless of what I do or say.					
20. My clinician/instructor and I agree on what is important for me to work on.					
21. I believe my clinician/instructor has an understanding of what my experiences have meant to me.					
22. Overall, I was satisfied with the class/service/program.					
For office use only:					

	INTOXIC ME		
		A STATE OF THE PARTY OF THE PAR	Nav_C_
THE DESIGNATION OF THE RESIDENCE OF THE PERSON OF THE PERS			
			Malada III
			MA LULE
A LINE CONTRACTOR OF THE			- Military
		Orac	W. H. L. L.
		15L.,)	Military Company
			OMALIJA P
			Marking and
			(Mt.)
			MARKS
			MARKET STATE
			, Michael
			MU U
			MALA CAR
			Maka
			(M) Vol
			(M.)
			(M, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1,
			(M) (A)
			M) vol
			(M) (A)

# County of Riverside Department of Public Social Services Contracts Administration Unit 10281 Kidd Street Riverside. CA 92503

AGREEMENT:

CS-03727

CONTRACTOR:

Cox Romain Psychological Services, LLC

**EFFECTIVE:** 

October 1, 2017 - June 30, 2022

**MAXIMUM AGGREGATE** 

AMOUNT:

\$107,825.00

WHEREAS, the County of Riverside, Department of Public Social Services (hereinafter referred to as the "County and or "DPSS"), desires to provide Domestic Violence Services;

WHEREAS, Cox Romain Psychological Services, LLC (hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor") is qualified to provide Domestic Violence Services;

WHEREAS, DPSS desires the Contractor, to perform these services in accordance with the TERMS and CONDITIONS (T&C) attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. The T&C specify the responsibilities of DPSS and the Contractor;

NOW THEREFORE, DPSS and the Contractor do hereby covenant and agree that the Contractor shall provide said services in return for monetary compensation, all in accordance with the TERMS and CONDITIONS contained herein and exhibits attached hereto and incorporated herein (hereinafter referred to as an "Agreement").

Authorized Signature for County	Authorized Signature for Cox Romain
	Psychological Services, LLC:
- Good	( Resa Bornain
Printed Name of Person Signing:	Printed Name of Person Signing:
John F. Tavaglione	Lisa Romain
Title:	Title:
Chair, Board of Supervisors	President/CEO
	THE GIGGING OLD
Address:	Address:
10281 Kidd St.	26395 Jefferson Avenue, Suite D
Riverside, CA 92503	Murrieta, CA 92562
Date Signed:	Date Signed:
0.50 0.0017	
SEP 2 6 2017	083117

DEPUT

APPROVED COUNTY COUNSEL

NE BELL-VALDEZ!

(Template T-00161 v9.0)

Page 1 of 43

SEP 26 2017 3.16

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

	DEFINITIONS	
П.,	OBJECTIVES	4
111.	OUTCOMES	5
IV.	DPSS RESPONSIBILITIES	5
V.	CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES	5
	A. GENERAL SCOPE OF SERVICE	5
	B. REFERRAL AND INTAKE/EXIT PROCESS	7
	C. INDIVIDUAL THERAPY SCOPE OF WORK (VICTIMS/SURVIVORS AND PERPETRATOR	(S) 8
	D. GROUP THERAPY SCOPE OF WORK (VICTIMS/SURVIVORS AND PERPETRATORS)	8
	E. REPORTING	۶
	F. FISCAL	C
,	G. ADMINISTRATIVE	
	1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST	11
	2. CONFIDENTIALITY	12
	3. HOLD HARMLESS/INDEMNIFICATION	12
	4. INSURANCE	13
	5. LICENSES AND PERMITS	15
	6. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR	16
	7. ASSIGNMENT	
	8. PERSONNEL	
	9. SUBCONTRACT FOR SERVICES	10
	10. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION	17
	11. COMPLIANCE WITH RULES, REGULATIONS AND DIRECTIVES	1 <i>1</i> 10
	12. EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES	10 10
	13. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY	10 10
	14. CLIENT CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE	10 10
	15. PROCEDURE TO RESOLVE CLIENT GRIEVANCE	
	16. HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY ACCOUNTABILITY ACT (HIPAA)	
	17. CHILD ABUSE REPORTING	
	18. ADULT AND ELDER ABUSE REPORTING	
	19. TRANSITION PERIOD	20
VI	GENERAL	20
V 1.	A. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE	∠ 1
	3. NOTICES	∠1
	C. AVAILABILITY OF FUNDING	∠1
	D. DISPUTES	
	E SANCTIONS	
	GOVERNING LAW	
	G. MODIFICATION OF TERMS	22
	H. NON-APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS	22
	TERMINATION	23
	CONTINE AGREEMENT	23
List	of Exhibits	
	bit A – DPSS 2076A & Instructions	
Exh	oit B – Assurance of Compliance	
	oit C - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement	
	oit D – Geographical Zone List	
	oit E – Intake/Referral Form oit F – Satisfaction Survey/Exit Form	
^1 I	on the Countries of the	

#### TERMS AND CONDITIONS

#### I. DEFINITIONS

- A. "Contractor" refers to Cox Romain Psychological Services, LLC and its employees, agents and representatives providing services under this Agreement.
- B. "Domestic Violence" refers to abuse committed against an adult or minor who is a spouse, former spouse, cohabitant, former cohabitant, or person with whom the suspect has a child or is having or has had a dating or engagement relationship. For purposes of this subdivision, "cohabitant means two unrelated adult persons living together for a substantial period of time, resulting in some permanency of relationship. Factors that may determine whether persons are cohabitating include, but are not limited to:
  - a. Sexual relations between the parties while sharing the same living quarters;
  - b. Sharing of income or expenses;
  - c. Joint use or ownership of property;
  - d. Whether the parties hold themselves out as husband and wife;
  - e. The continuity of the relationship; and
  - f. The length of the relationship.
- C. "DPSS and/or County" refers to the County of Riverside and its Department of Public Social Services, which has administrative responsibility for this Agreement.
- D. "Family" or "household members" refers to the following persons:
  - a. Persons related by blood or marriage;
  - b. Persons legally married to one another;
  - c. Persons formerly married to one another regardless of whether they still reside in the same household;
  - d. Persons who have a child in common regardless of whether such persons are married or have lived together at any time;
  - e. Unrelated persons who are continually or at regular intervals living in the same household or who have in past continually or at regular intervals lived in the same household; or
  - f. Unrelated persons who have had intimate or continuous social contact with one another and who have access to one another's household.
- E. "HIPAA" refers to the Health Insurance Portability Accountability Act.
- F. Joint Operational Meeting" or "JOM" refers to meetings that are typically scheduled every three to six months so that DPSS and the service provider can discuss the partnership, services, successes, challenges, or other items of relevance to the program and service delivery.
- G. "Licensed Clinical Therapist" refers to a Licensed Marriage and Family Therapist, Licensed Clinical Social Worker, Licensed Educational Psychologist, or Licensed Psychologist in accordance with the guidelines of the State of California Board of Behavioral Sciences (BBS) or Board of Psychology (BOP). Credentials must be current, active and in clear status with the BBS or BOP for the entire duration of the Agreement.
- H. "Non-residential program for victims/survivors of domestic violence" refers to any program operated by a not-for-profit organization for the purpose of providing non-residential services

for victims/survivors of domestic violence including, but not limited to, telephone hotline assistance, information and referral services, advocacy, therapy, and community education/outreach activities.

- I. "Not-for-profit organization" refers to any organization which is incorporated as a not-for-profit corporation or religious corporation under the laws of this State or which provides care and/or services In the State and has been granted a federal tax exempt status.
- J. "Perpetrator" refer to a person who has been accused of inflicting domestic violence.
- K. "Registered intern" refers to a pre-licensed registered Marriage and Family Therapy Intern, Clinical Social Work Associate, or Psychologist in accordance with the guidelines of the State of California Board of Behavioral Sciences/California Board of Psychology. Credentials of all facilitators must be current, active, and in clear status with the BBS/Board of Psychology for the entire duration of the Agreement.
- L. "Subcontract" refers to any contract, purchase order, or other purchase agreement, including modifications and change orders to the foregoing, entered into by the Contractor with a subcontractor to furnish supplies, materials, equipment, and services for the performance of any of the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement.
- M. "Subcontractor" refers to any supplier, vendor, or firm that furnishes supplies, materials, equipment, or services to or for the Contractor or another subcontractor.
- N. "Supervised Intern" refers to a Marriage and Family Therapist Intern (MFTI) or an Associate Clinical Social Worker (ASW) who is gaining experience under the supervision of a licensed mental health professional who meets the requirements to supervise such hours according to the Board of Behavioral Sciences (BBS) regulations. See <a href="https://www.bbs.ca.gov">www.bbs.ca.gov</a>
- O. "Residential program for victims/survivors of domestic violence" refers to any residential program approved by the County and operated by a not-for-profit organization for the purposes of providing temporary shelter, emergency services, and care to victims/survivors of domestic violence.
- P. "Team Decision Making" or "TDM" and "Child and Family Team" or "CFT" session refers to meetings scheduled in DPSS operational regions to meet goals and objectives that stabilize and maintain placements. TDMs may involve community members and service providers along with family members and care givers to reach a group consensus regarding safety and placement decisions for the child.
- Q. "Victim of domestic violence" refers to a person who is subjected to domestic violence.

#### II. OBJECTIVES

- A. Delivery of competent and effective individual and group therapy services to adult victims/survivors and perpetrators of domestic violence in Riverside County. Services are delivered to adult victims/survivors and/or perpetrators of domestic violence who are being served by DPSS for abusing and/or neglecting their child(ren).
- B. Prevent the unnecessary separation of children from their families, improve the quality of care and services to children and their families, and ensure permanency for children.
- C. Provision of services that strengthen parental relationships (when safe and appropriate to do so), improve parenting skills, and increase relationship skills within the family to prevent child abuse and neglect, while promoting timely family reunification when children must be

- separated from their parents.
- D. Provision of services which are culturally and linguistically appropriate to the population served.

#### III. OUTCOMES

- A. All services must be evidenced-based or evidence-informed.
- B. All services must be outcome-based and the following outcomes must be measured and addressed for DPSS CSD program evaluation purposes:
  - 1. Perpetrators:
    - a. After completion of the Domestic Violence (DV) batterer intervention program, participating clients will demonstrate a 10% increase in readiness to change their abusive behavior as measured by a difference in scores using an assessment provided or approved by DPSS, administrated to clients prior to participation in the program (Pre) and subsequent to participation in the program (Post).
    - b. After completion of the DV batterer intervention program, participating clients will demonstrate a 10% reduction in abusive behaviors as measured by a difference in scores using an assessment provided or approved by DPSS, administrated to clients prior to participation in the program (Pre) and subsequent to participation in the program (Post).

#### 2. Victims/Survivors:

- a. After completion of the DV survivor intervention program, participating clients will demonstrate a 10% increase in their knowledge about the topic of domestic violence as measured by a difference in scores using a knowledge test provided or approved by DPSS, administrated to clients prior to participation in the program (Pre) and subsequent to participation in the program (Post).
- b. After completion of the DV survivor intervention program, participating clients will demonstrate a 10% increase in domestic violence coping self-efficacy as measured by a difference in scores using an assessment provided or approved by DPSS, administrated to clients prior to participation in the program (Pre) and subsequent to participation in the program (Post).
- c. After completion of the DV victim intervention program, participating clients will demonstrate a 10% increase in perceived safety, culture, health, and self-strength as measured by a difference in scores using an assessment provided or approved by DPSS, administrated to clients prior to participation in the program (Pre) and subsequent to participation in the program (Post).

#### IV. DPSS RESPONSIBILITIES

- A. Assign staff to be liaisons between DPSS and the Contractor.
- B. DPSS may monitor the performance of the Contractor in meeting the terms, conditions and services in this Agreement. DPSS, at its sole discretion, may monitor the performance of the Contractor through any combination of the following methods: periodic on-site visits, annual inspections, evaluations and Contractor self-monitoring.

#### V. CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES

- A. GENERAL SCOPE OF SERVICE
  - 1. Assign staff to be liaisons between the Contractor and DPSS.

- 2. Provide individual therapy and group therapy in Zone 3. Zones are defined in the Geographical Zone List, attached hereto as Exhibit D, and incorporated herein by this reference.
- 3. All individual and group therapy sessions must be facilitated by a Licensed Clinical Therapist or Supervised Intern, as defined in "Section I Definitions" of this Agreement.
- 4. Program staff must have a minimum of two (2) years of experience providing domestic violence services.
- 5. Provide services in English and Spanish. Services must be available during the day and evenings; evening is defined as after 6:00 PM.
- 6. Domestic violence victim groups must always be separated from perpetrator groups. Perpetrators and victims/survivors must never attend the same groups. Additional safeguards must be identified and put into place to decrease the likelihood that perpetrators and victims/survivors will come into contact with each other or be put at risk for further domestic violence.
- 7. The type of services offered for each individual client will be determined on a case-by-case basis by the Contractor.

For victims, the services for the individual shall include but are not limited to:

- a. Safety Planning: Safety from the abuser / Lethality assessment
- b. Referrals to community resources and opportunities as appropriate
- c. Strategies to increase social support and community connections
- d. Individualized service planning
- e. Self-protection strategies
- f. Education regarding the process of moving from a victim to a "survivor"
- g. Providing information to increase knowledge about a variety of topics important to the client's long-term well-being, the impact of the family violence on the survivor and the child(ren); the risk for recurrence of violence
- h. Skills building: Coping, emotion regulation, problem solving, parenting, and parent-child relationships

For perpetrators, the services for the individual shall include, but are not limited to:

- a. Referrals to community resources as appropriate
- b. Individualized service planning
- Strategies to identify negative thoughts and redirect behavior
- d. Education regarding the various forms of abuse; beliefs of dominance; the impact of the family violence on the survivor and child(ren)
- e. Assistance in developing alternative behavioral strategies (non-abusive response to negative thoughts) and accepting responsibility
- f. Skills building: Coping, emotion regulation, problem solving, and parenting and parent-child relationships
- 8. The Contractor must assess and document the needs of the client and develop an individualized service plan for each client. The service plan should identify strengths, presenting problems, interventions, support system, family origin, education/employment, physical health, mental health, multi-provider involvement, interviewer's impressions, conclusions, recommendations, and referrals, if applicable.

The plan shall include measurable goals, objectives, and the methods of achieving the objective.

- 9. The Contractor shall maintain a neat and organized case file for each client served that ensures client confidentiality and HIPAA compliance. Case files must be available for DPSS to review upon request, and must contain:
  - a. Client's name (or unique identifier) and date of birth;
  - b. Basic demographic data;
  - c. A copy of the referral form from the County of Riverside;
  - d. Intake/Referral Form:
  - e. An assessment of each client's service needs;
  - f. A copy of the individualized service plan, including written narratives of contacts, progress reports and observations, safety plan, a record of other services to which the client was referred, and a closing assessment and summary of the services that have been provided to the client;
  - g. Client contact log;
  - h. Client Written Agreement;
  - i. Satisfaction Survey/Exit Forms; and,
  - j. Sign-in sheets for all Groups services provided, including date, starting and ending time, facilitator name, and topics reviewed.
- 10. The Contractor is required to enter into a written agreement with each client with respect to the responsibilities each client must satisfy in order to complete their prospective program. Written agreements must be maintained in the client's individual case file.
- 11. Participate in Joint Operation Meetings (JOMs) as requested.
- 12. Participate in Team Decision Making (TDM) and Child and Family Team (CFT) sessions when requested to do so by the referring social worker. When this occurs, the contractor liaison shall present a progress update to include the number of group and individual sessions a client has attended, along with a progress narrative update for the meeting. A note of such attendance must be entered in the client's case file.
- 13. Contractor must return phone calls to social workers and DPSS staff within one (1) business day.
- 14. Contractor must provide written progress reports (when requested by assigned social worker) within three (3) business days of the request.

#### B. REFERRAL AND INTAKE/EXIT PROCESS

- i. Services shall be provided only to clients referred by DPSS.
- ii. Contractor must contact or attempt to contact the client within two (2) business days of the referral to schedule an in-person enrollment/intake. The Contractor must document all contact attempts in writing.
- iii. Contractor must complete an Intake/Referral Form (Exhibit E) within fifteen (15) business days of the initial client contact for all clients.
- iv. All clients must begin group and or/individual therapy within fifteen (15) calendar days of client's in-person intake. If a client is not able to begin group therapy, the Contractor must begin individual therapy, place the client on the list for the next available group with start date, and notify the DPSS designated liaison via email.

- v. Contractor must have each client complete a Satisfaction Survey/Exit Form (Exhibit F) at the end of their services to measure changes in parental attitudes, behaviors, skills, and other relevant indicators.
- C. INDIVIDUAL THERAPY SCOPE OF WORK (VICTIMS/SURVIVORS AND PERPETRATORS)
  - All individual therapy sessions for victims/survivors must utilize the Seeking safety, Helping Women Recover and Community Advocacy Project program models and be facilitated by a Licensed Clinical Therapist or Registered Intern, as defined in "Section I – Definitions" of this Agreement.
  - 2. All individual therapy sessions for perpetrators must utilize the Duluth Project and Community Advocacy Project program models and be facilitated by a Licensed Clinical Therapist or Registered Intern, as defined in "Section I Definitions" of this Agreement.
  - 3. Each session of individual therapy must be a minimum of fifty (50) minutes of face-to-face contact between the Licensed Clinical Therapist or Registered Intern and the client(s).
  - 4. Individual therapy sessions are limited to a maximum of sixteen (16) sessions per client. The Contractor must obtain prior approval by DPSS for any client needing more than sixteen (16) therapy sessions. All approvals must be documented in writing and maintained in the client's case file.
- D. GROUP THERAPY SCOPE OF WORK (VICTIMS/SURVIVORS AND PERPETRATORS)
  - 1. All group therapy sessions for victims/survivors must utilize the Seeking safety, Helping Women Recover and Community Advocacy Project program models. All group therapy sessions must be facilitated by a Licensed Clinical Therapist or Registered Intern, as defined in "Section I Definitions" of this Agreement.
  - 2. All group therapy sessions for perpetrators must utilize the Duluth Project and Community Advocacy Project program models. All group therapy sessions must be facilitated by a Licensed Clinical Therapist or Registered Intern, as defined in "Section I Definitions" of this Agreement.
  - Each session of group therapy must be a minimum of ninety (90) minutes of face-to-face contact between the Licensed Clinical Therapist or Registered Intern and a group of clients.
  - 4. Group therapy sessions are limited to a maximum of sixteen (16) sessions per client.
  - 5. Groups must have a minimum of four (4) clients and a maximum of twelve (12) clients to one (1) Licensed Clinical Therapist or Registered Intern. Groups exceeding twelve (12) clients shall have a group facilitator (Licensed Clinical Therapist or Registered Intern) and a co-facilitator (Licensed Clinical Therapist or Registered Intern). The cost for a group with fewer than four (4) clients will be prorated per client at a rate of \$27.50.

#### E. REPORTING

The Contractor shall submit the following reports as specified below:

1. A monthly service report from the Contractor is required and shall be submitted no later than the 15<sup>th</sup> calendar day of the month following the month in which services were provided. This report will include, but is not limited to the following data elements:

- a. 19 digit CSD Client ID number;
- b. Client demographics (i.e. age, disability status, primary language, ethnicity, zip code);
- c. Clients that completed their service plans;
- d. Clients that stopped participating, refused service, otherwise dropped out of the program, or failed to complete their service plan indicating the reasons why;
- e. Total units of service provided:
- f. Service type and hours provided; and,
- g. Clients referred to additional services.
- 2. An annual report aggregating the year's monthly data shall be submitted no later than the 15<sup>th</sup> of the month following the end of the contract year.
- 3. Submit the results of agreed upon outcome measures on a monthly basis, utilizing a database provided by DPSS.
- 4. The monthly service and annual aggregate reports shall be submitted in electronic format to:

#### PDRreports@riversidedpss.org

- 5. The Contractor will also be required to
  - a. Meet with the DPSS data and evaluation team no later than 30 days after contract execution in order to discuss, collaborate, and provide input on the evaluation plan and mandatory evaluation instruments (e.g. surveys, assessment tests) that will be required to be utilized by the provider to measure and report progress on the program objectives and outcomes.

#### F. FISCAL

#### MAXIMUM AGGREGATE AMOUNT

Total payment under this Agreement shall not exceed in aggregate \$107,825.00.

Annually, payments shall not exceed:

FISCAL YEAR PERIOD	ANNUAL PAYMENT
October 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018	\$17,025.00
July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019	\$22,700.00
July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020	\$22,700.00
July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021	\$22,700.00
July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022	\$22,700.00
Total	\$107,825.00

#### 2. UNIT OF SERVICE COST RATE

Zone	Unit of Service	Billing Cost Per Unit of Service		Supporting Documentation	
3	Individual Therapy (Victims/survi vors)	\$70.00		<ul> <li>Client name (and/or 19-digit CSD Client ID number);</li> <li>Beginning and ending</li> </ul>	
3	Group Therapy	# of Clients in	Prorated Group	time of session;	

	(Victims/survi	Group	Amount	Date(s) of service;	
	vors)	4+	\$110.00	Facilitator name;	
	1.5	3	\$82.50	Initial CWS referral form	
		2	\$55.00	(2468)	
		1	\$27.50	Written documentation of	
3	Individual Therapy (Perpetrators)	\$70.00		the County approval for clients receiving more than 16 sessions per service (if applicable).	
	Group	# of Clients in Group	Prorated Group Amount		
.3	Therapy	4+	\$110.00		
	(Perpetrators)	3	\$82.50		
		2	\$55.00		
		1	\$27.50		

#### 3. METHOD, TIME AND SCHEDULE CONDITIONS OF PAYMENT

- a. The Contractor will be paid the actual amount of each monthly invoice for payment. If the required supporting documentation is not provided, DPSS may delay payment until the information is received by DPSS.
- b. All completed claims must be submitted on a monthly basis no later than 30 days after the end of each month in which the services were provided. All complete claims submitted in a timely manner shall be processed within forty-five (45) calendar days.
- c. The Contractor shall submit DPSS Forms 2076A, 2076B (if applicable) (Exhibit A), following the instructions set forth. Exhibit A is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference for request of all payments.
- d. Each claiming period shall consist of a calendar month claiming period. Contractor Invoice estimates for May and June are due no later than the 5th of June. Actual Contractor invoices for May and June are due no later than the 30th of July.

#### 4. FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Contractor warrants that during the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall retain sufficient financial resources necessary to perform all aspects of its obligations, as described under this Agreement. Further, the Contractor warrants that there has been no adverse material change in the Contractor, Parent, or Subsidiary business entities, resulting in negative impact to the financial condition and circumstances of the Contractor since the date of the most recent financial statements.

#### 5. RECORDS, INSPECTIONS AND AUDITS

- a. The Contractor shall maintain auditable books, records, documents, and other evidence pertaining to costs and expenses in this Agreement. The Contractor shall maintain these records for three (3) years after final payment has been made or until all pending County, State, and Federal audits, if any, are completed, whichever is later.
- b. Any authorized representative of the County of Riverside, the State of California, and the Federal government shall have access to any books, documents, papers, electronic data, and other records, which these representatives may determine to be